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President’'s Statement

EREHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’'s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$63,633,000 (2019: approximately
HK$830,347,000), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$766,714,000 or approximately 92.3% as compared to last
year. The loss for the year attributable to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) was approximately
HK$297,755,000, as compared to a profit of approximately
HK$315,959,000 last year. This year's gross profit margin was
approximately 96.2%. The basic and diluted loss per share
amounted approximately to HK$3.26 for the year ended 31 March
2020.

The Group will continue to focus on its strength to diversify
its properties portfolio, investing in high quality assets and
strengthening the income base of the Group. Outside real estate,
the Group has licenses for provision of financial services and will
continue to make use of its competitiveness to expand its loan
financing business.

The Board and | would like to express our most sincere gratitude
to our staff, the Shareholders and our business partners for their
continued support and are confident that with such support and
strong leadership and management, the Group will continue to
grow and create value for the Shareholders.

Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
President

Hong Kong, 3 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The board of directors (the “"Board”) of Easyknit International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to announce
the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 together with
comparative figures. These annual results have been reviewed by
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”).

The basic and diluted loss per share amounted to HK$3.26 for the
year ended 31 March 2020, as compared with earnings per share
of HK$3.52 for last year.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: HK5 cents per share).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the eligibility of the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2020 AGM"), the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Monday, 3 August 2020 to Thursday, 6 August
2020, both dates inclusive. During such period, no share transfers
will be registered for the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’
entitlement for attending and voting at the 2020 AGM. In order
to qualify to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM, all transfers of the
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) forms accompanied by the
relevant Share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s
Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 July
2020, for registration.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in property
development, property investment, securities investment and loan
financing businesses. The review of each business segment of the
Group is set out below.

(i) Property Development

One of the core businesses of the Group is property
development. The Group has extensive experience in property
redevelopment, in particular, acquisition of old buildings
for renewal and redevelopment. As the Group did not roll
out new properties during the year, there was no revenue
recorded from the property development segment for the
year (2019: HK$755,880,000). Below are the existing major
projects of the Group:

1. Project Waterloo

The Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, owns
the site at Nos. 93, 93A, 95 and 95A Waterloo Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong (also known as the Remaining
Portion of Section C of Kowloon Inland Lot No. 2145)
which has a site area of approximately 9,800 sq. ft. (the
“"Waterloo Site").

The Waterloo Site is being developed into a luxurious
residential accommodation with club house facilities
and car parks, and the estimated gross floor area is
approximately 48,977 sq. ft. The development works are
in progress and are expected to be completed in mid
2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Chatham Road North

The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
holds more than 80% of the properties at Nos. 470, 472,
474, 476 and 478 Chatham Road North, Kowloon, Hong
Kong (“Chatham Road North”). The total site area of
Chatham Road North is approximately 4,653 sq. ft. On 29
November 2018, the Company filed an application to the
Lands Tribunal for an order to auction all the undivided
shares of Chatham Road North (including those owned
by the Group) for the purposes of redevelopment.

If the Group successfully acquires all the remaining units,
the Chatham Road North site will be 100% owned by the
Group and will be developed into a composite building
with residential and commercial use. The estimated
gross floor area after redevelopment is expected to be
approximately 41,597 sq. ft.

Details of Chatham Road North are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 16 May 2018, 8
June 2018 and 30 November 2018 respectively and the
circular of the Company dated 25 June 2018.

Inverness Road Property — “Ayton”

“Ayton” is a residential building on Inverness Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong (also known as New Kowloon
Inland Lot No. 6573) developed by the Group. It
consists of two 8-storey residential blocks comprising
60 residential units, 29 car parking spaces and 3 motor
parking spaces. The total saleable area of approximately
40,742 sq. ft. The Group has launched its first phase of
the sale of "Ayton” in May 2020.
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(ii) Property Investment

Another core business of the Group is property investment.
The Group's investment properties comprise residential,
commercial and industrial properties in Hong Kong.

During the year, the total rental income of the Group
was approximately HK$38,957,000 (2019: approximately
HK$54,892,000), representing an approximately 29.0%
decrease over the last year. The decrease in rental income
was primarily due to the disposal of Easy Tower (an industrial
building located at No. 609 Tai Nan West Street, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong) which was completed on 8
March 2019, as well as the adjustment of rent for the shop
spaces at Fa Yuen Plaza, No. 19 Fa Yuen Street, Mong Kok,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. Details of the disposal of Easy Tower
are disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 21
November 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 12
February 2019.

As at 31 March 2020, the occupancy rate of commercial units
and industrial units of the Group’s investment properties
were 99% and 77% respectively. Income from building
management for the year amounted to approximately
HK$1,189,000, an increase of approximately HK$205,000
compared to last year (2019: approximately HK$984,000).
A loss on changes in fair value of investment properties of
approximately HK$196,888,000 (2019: gain of approximately
HK$126,430,000) was recognized during the year. The
overall results for the property investment segment was
approximately a loss of HK$178,691,000 for the year (2019:
profit of HK$162,264,000), representing a decrease of
approximately HK$340,955,000 compared to last year.

(iii) Securities Investment

The Group maintains a portfolio comprising blue-chip stocks
and top-tier investments products which generate high yield
in Hong Kong. The Group takes into account the following
criteria when determining whether to take up an investment
opportunity: (i) potential return on investment in terms of
capital appreciation and dividend payment for the targeted
holding period; (ii) risks exposure in comparison with the
Group's risk tolerance level at the prevailing time; and (iii)
diversification of the existing investment portfolio.

(i)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the Group had several major acquisitions and
disposals of securities investments which were as follows:

Purchases of CCB ELNs

On 15 May 2019 and 8 July 2019, the Company, through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, purchased the equity-linked
notes (“ELNs"”) of China Construction Bank Corporation
("CCB") (stock code: 939) in the principal amounts of
HK$10,000,000 and HK$14,000,000 respectively. The
coupon rate for these ELNs was 15% per annum and
through such purchases, the Group received the total
interest income of approximately HK$475,000 during the
year under review. Details of the purchases can be found
in the announcements of the Company dated 20 May
2019 and 11 July 2019 respectively.

Disposals of HSBC Shares

During the period from 27 August 2019 to 30 August
2019, the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, on-market disposed of in aggregate 631,700
shares of HSBC Holdings plc (“HSBC") (stock code:
5). The aggregate selling price was approximately
HK$35,452,000 (excluding transaction costs) and the
average selling price (excluding transaction costs) was
approximately HK$56.121 per HSBC shares. The Group
recorded a loss of approximately HK$4,567,000 through
such disposals, which was calculated on the basis of
the difference between the book value of the HSBC
shares disposed by the Group as at 31 July 2019 and the
aggregate gross sales proceeds (excluding transaction
costs). After the disposals, the Group no longer owns
any HSBC shares. Details of the disposals can be found
in the announcement of the Company dated 30 August
2019.
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Subscription of Convertible Note

The Company, through Goodco Development Limited
("Goodco") (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company),
as subscriber, entered into a subscription agreement
dated 17 June 2019 with Eminence Enterprise Limited
("Eminence") (stock code: 616), as issuer, relating to
the issue by Eminence to Goodco a convertible note
in the principal amount of HK$70,000,000, conferring
Goodco the rights to convert at any time before 28
August 2024 the principal amount into the shares of
Eminence (“Eminence Share(s)”) at a conversion
price which is currently HK$0.91 per Eminence Share
(after adjustment). The completion took place on 28
August 2019. If the conversion rights attaching to the
convertible note are exercised in full at the conversion
price of HK$0.91 per Eminence Share, a total of up
to 76,923,076 Eminence Shares will be allotted and
issued to Goodco. During the year, no exercise of the
conversion rights under such convertible note was made
and the outstanding principal amount held by Goodco as
at 31 March 2020 was HK$70,000,000. As at 31 March
2020, the Group received a total interest income of
approximately HK$1,248,000 from such convertible note.
Details of the issue of the convertible note are set out in
the joint announcement of the Company and Eminence
dated 17 June 2019 and the circular of Eminence dated
2 August 2019.
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Acquisitions of Eminence Shares

Eminence was an associate of the Group during the year.
During the period from 12 February 2020 to 2 March
2020, the Company, through Ace Winner Investment
Limited (“Ace Winner") (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), acquired on-market a total of 71,055,000
Eminence Shares, representing approximately 7.63%
of the then total issued share capital of Eminence.
The aggregate purchase price was approximately
HK$39,266,350 (exclusive of transaction costs) and the
average purchase price per Eminence Share (exclusive
of transaction costs) was approximately HK$0.553.
Through such acquisitions, Ace Winner became a
substantial shareholder of Eminence. As at 31 March
2020, the Group, through Ace Winner, Landmark Profits
Limited (“Landmark Profits”) and Goodco (all of which
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company), holds
a total of 255,887,665 Eminence Shares, representing
approximately 27.47% of the total issued share capital of
Eminence. As the fair value of the net assets attributable
to Eminence Shares acquired by Ace Winner was higher
than the aggregate purchase price, the Group recorded
a gain on bargain purchase of additional interests in
associates of approximately HK$200,462,000. Details of
the acquisitions can be found in the announcements of
the Company dated 13 February 2020 and 21 February
2020 respectively and the circular of the Company dated
5 March 2020.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group recorded a loss in fair
value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of approximately HK$28,824,000 (2019: loss of
approximately HK$21,794,000). As a result, the Group
reported a segment loss of approximately HK$24,385,000
(2019: loss of approximately HK$19,575,000) during the
year under review. The Group received dividend income
from the listed securities of approximately HK$2,282,000
(2019: HK$7,409,000) during the year under review.
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The Group considers the prospects in respect of the listed
shares investments are healthy. The Board understands
that the performance of the investments may be affected
by volatility in the Hong Kong stock market and subject to
other external factors. Accordingly, the Group will continue
to maintain a diversified portfolio of investments in different
segments of markets to minimize the possible financial risks.
The Group will also closely monitor the performance and
progress of the investment portfolio from time to time.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s investment in equity
securities listed in Hong Kong amounted to approximately
HK$61,411,000 (2019: approximately HK$105,666,000). It was
derived from (i) a conversion of equity-linked investments of
approximately HK$25,566,000; (ii) net disposal of securities of
approximately HK$74,978,000; (iii) net acquisition of securities
of approximately HK$3,529,000; and (iv) net decrease in the
market value of securities investments of approximately
HK$13,314,000 during the year under review. As at 31 March
2020, the Group’s investment portfolio comprises 6 (2019:
5) equity securities which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Group's significant securities investments as at 31 March
2020 were as below:
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Approx. %
held to
the total Dividend Fair value Approx. % of
issued share income forthe  gain/(loss) for total assets
capital of Investment yearended  the year ended Fair value at of the Group
Number of  the company/ cost/cost of 31 March 31 March 31 March at 31 March
Company name (stock code) shares held investment acquisition 2020 2020 2020 2020
L BZ2020% #2020
2R HE2020F 3A318 3A31H
BRE/RE 38318 LEEZ R2020% AR
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% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 %
% TET TET TET TET %
Best Food Holding Company
Limited (1488) 17,364 1.10 21837 - (8,824) 12,155 127
ARERARAT(1488)
Other listed shares* 10,306 - 56,715 2,282 (4,490) 49,256 1.02
At Lmkin
Grand total: 78,662 2,282 (13314) 61,411 2.29
&t

*

Other listed shares included 5 companies whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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(iv) Loan Financing

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded
interest income from the loan financing business amounting
to approximately HK$23,487,000 (2019: approximately
HK$18,591,000), representing approximately 26.3% increase
comparing to last year. Loss derived from loan financing
business was approximately HK$22,279,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: profit of approximately
HK$14,889,000). The carrying amount of loans receivable as
at 31 March 2020 was approximately HK$236,751,000 (2019:
approximately HK$206,674,000). At 31 March 2020, the net
impairment allowance recognized in profit or loss amounted
to approximately HK$29,256,000 (2019: approximately
HK$273,000) in its loan financing business.

Below were the major transactions of the Group on loan
financing business during the year:

1. Co-lending Agreement

On 18 June 2019, Planetic International Limited
(“Planetic”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a co-lending agreement with STI Partners
Limited (“STI") and China Yinsheng Finance Limited
(“China Yinsheng”), pursuant to which, inter alia,
Planetic, STl and China Yinsheng, as co-lenders, agreed
to enter into a loan agreement with an independent
third party, as borrower, and make available to the
borrower, an aggregate loan of HK$64,000,000 (of which
HK$45,000,000 was from Planetic) for a period of twelve
(12) months from the drawdown date. The interest rate
charged by Planetic was 8.50% per annum. Such loan
was secured by charge on properties of the borrower.
For the year under review, the Group received a total
interest income from such lending of approximately
HK$3,088,000. Further information can be found in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 June 2019.
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Sale of Junior Notes

Charming Flash Limited (“Charming Flash”) (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), as subscriber,
entered into a junior notes subscription agreement
dated 31 October 2018 with Golden Glow Limited (the
“Issuer”), as issuer, pursuant to which Charming Flash
subscribed for the junior notes (the “Junior Notes")
issued by the Issuer in the amount of US$4,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$35,100,000) at an
interest rate of 14.65% per annum.

Charming Flash later entered into a tripartite agreement
(the "Tripartite Agreement”) dated 20 February 2020
with Green Heyday Limited (“Green Heyday") and
the Issuer, under which Charming Flash agreed to sell
and Green Heyday agreed to acquire, the Junior Notes
at the consideration of US$4,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$36,660,000). The consideration will be
paid by three (3) instalments. Charming Flash will have all
rights attached or accruing to the Junior Notes, including
the rights to receive all payments, dividends and
distributions from the Junior Notes, until such time as it
receives full payment of the consideration from Green
Heyday and completes the sale and purchase of the
Junior Notes under the Tripartite Agreement. As at 31
March 2020, US$2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,480,000) of consideration had been received.
The Company is expected to recognize a gain of
approximately US$200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,560,000) from the sale, which is calculated on
the basis of the difference between the face value
of the Junior Notes of US$4,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$35,100,000) as at 20 February 2020
and the consideration of US$4,700,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$36,660,000). For the year under
review, the Group received a total interest income from
the Junior Notes of approximately HK$1,201,000.

Further information can be found in the announcements
of the Company dated 11 August 2017, 2 November
2018 and 20 February 2020 respectively.

Charming Flash Limited([Charming
Flash]) (KA RRIZ2EHNBAF
EBREE R ) B Golden Glow Limited
([BTADWEARBITA)GIZLAE
A2018F 10 A31B 2 R R EIERkE
W ¥t Charming Flashi2 8
7T AB 1T 2 [E1E4,500,000E 7T
(FEE R #35,100,000/ 7T) Z X
ZERIRBER]) FFEE14.65
@ °

Charming FlashE % EGreen
Heyday Limited ([Green Heyday))
FEITAETBEHA2020F2 A8
0Bz =h (I =ZAHE] -
Bt - Charming Flash@ E &
K{E4,700,000E T (HEERLD
36,660,000/ 0) HEMGreen
HeydayR BB X B ZE - REH
S =(3)HAZF » Charming Flash#
BERNBREE ZFTEKERTREF
BEWBUR BB 2 A RIEA -« R
BRMAF 2R - BEEIEHGreen
Heyday£15 2 SpE MY ZRIBE IR &
THETEREEAREE - HE
202093 A31H - 2,000,000 7t (17
BN #915,480,0008 7T) 2 R BRED
B - ARRITBHBRZEEHE
#3200,0003 7T (#8E 7 491,560,000
Brt) 2 Wz - TR 20202
A208 R E 15 HHE{E 494,500,000
EL(AE R 435,100,000 L)
KA {E4,700,000E T (FBE R L
36,660,000/ L) 2 Z&EFTE - KR[E
BETA AEERZAREEES
4T S UL A 41,201,000/ 7T °
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Default of Loan Agreement

Great Sail Global Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) (“Great Sail”), as lender, entered into a
facility agreement dated 16 November 2016 (the “2016
Facility Agreement”) with Fortunate Gravity Hongkong
Limited (“Fortunate Gravity"), as borrower, in relation
to the granting of a loan in the principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 (the “2016 Loan”) from Great Sail
to Fortunate Gravity. The 2016 Facility Agreement
was supplemented and amended by supplemental
agreements and consent letters. The 2016 Loan was
secured by share charges and personal guarantee.

Great Sail later entered into a loan agreement dated 19
December 2018 (the “Loan Agreement”) with Fortunate
Gravity, under which Great Sail granted to Fortunate
Gravity a loan in the principal amount of HK$40,000,000
(the “2018 Loan") which was exclusively for the
repayment of the outstanding principal amount under the
2016 Facility Agreement which was HK$40,000,000 as
at the date of signing of the Loan Agreement. The loan
period was for a period of twelve (12) months from the
date of drawdown. The 2018 Loan was secured by share
charges and personal guarantee.

Great Sail later entered into an amendment agreement
dated 5 February 2020 (the “Amendment Agreement”)
with Fortunate Gravity, the shareholders of Fortune
Gravity and Wang Jie, as guarantor, pursuant to which,
inter alia, Great Sail conditionally agreed to amend the
Loan Agreement and extend the maturity date of the
2018 Loan under the Loan Agreement for a period
of twelve (12) months from 19 December 2019 up
to 18 December 2020. The interest rate of the 2018
Loan under the Amendment Agreement was 16% per
annum and as per the confirmatory share charges and
confirmatory guarantee dated 5 February 2020, inter alia,
the 2018 Loan will continue to be secured by the share
charges and personal guarantee.
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However, as Fortunate Gravity failed to pay the due
interest on 28 February 2020, an event of default had
occurred under the Loan Agreement (as amended by the
Amendment Agreement) and on 12 March 2020, Great
Sail initiated the process of enforcement of the share
charges and enforcement of its rights generally under
the Loan Agreement (as amended by the Amendment
Agreement).

Further information can be found in the announcements
of the Company dated 17 November 2016, 16 November
2017, 14 February 2018, 14 August 2018, 17 September
2018, 20 December 2018, 5 February 2020, 11 February
2020, 12 March 2020 and 16 March 2020 respectively
and the circulars of the Company dated 8 December
2016 and 7 December 2017 respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Year ended 31 March

BE3ANBLEE
2020 2019 Change
20205 20195 28
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET FET
Revenue E2 63,633 830,347 (766,714)
Gross profit E 61,206 353,892 (292,686)
Gross profit margin % 96.2% 42.6% 53.6%
Distribution and selling expenses K&l (13,009) (53,044) 40,035
Administrative expenses THRX (57,305) (60,226) 2,921
Finance costs RMEKA (23,622) (23,043) (579)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBLAT(B51R) RA (298,936) 354,985 (653,921)
Taxation it 877 (39,171) 40,048
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BB, &7 (298,059) 315,814 (613,873)
(Loss)/profit for the year RARREEL
attributable to shareholders AEE(BR) /B8
of the Company (297,755) 315,959 (613,714)
Net (loss)/profit margin R(ER), /= (468.4%) 38.0% (506.4%)
(Loss)/earnings per share SRIBR) /27
Basic and diluted EALEE HK$(3.26)i& T HK$3.52/& T HK$(6.78)7% T
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Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group's revenue decreased
by approximately 92.3% to approximately HK$63,633,000 as
compared with last year of approximately HK$830,347,000 which
was mainly due to a decrease in rental income as well as revenue
from property sales as the Group did not roll out new properties
during the year.

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020
was approximately HK$61,206,000, representing a decrease
of approximately 82.7% or approximately HK$292,686,000 as
compared to approximately HK$353,892,000 in 2019. Gross
profit margin for the year reached approximately 96.2% (2019:
approximately 42.6%), representing an increase of approximately
53.6% over the last financial year.

Loss before Taxation

Loss before taxation of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020 was approximately HK$298,936,000, as compared with profit
before taxation of HK$354,985,000 last year.

Distribution and selling expenses of the Group decreased from
approximately HK$53,044,000 to approximately HK$13,009,000, a
decrease of approximately 75.5% as compared with last year.

Administrative expenses of the Group were approximately
HK$57,305,000, a decrease of approximately 4.9% over last year
of approximately HK$60,226,000.

During the year under review, there was a loss on changes in
fair value of investment properties amounting to approximately
HK$196,888,000 (2019: gain of approximately HK$126,430,000).

Finance costs of the Group for the year was approximately
HK$23,622,000, representing an increase of approximately
HK$579,000 or approximately 2.5% from approximately
HK$23,043,000 in 2019.
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Loss for the Year and Loss per Share

Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 was approximately
HK$298,059,000 (2019: profit of approximately HK$315,814,000).
Net loss margin of this year was approximately 468.4% as
compared to the net profit margin of approximately 38.0% of last
year.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the taxation credit was
approximately HK$877,000 (2019: taxation charge of approximately
HK$39,171,000).

Basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2020
was approximately HK$3.26 as compared to basic and diluted
earnings per share of approximately HK$3.52 in last year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operations through internally generated
cash flow and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2020, the Group's
bank borrowings amounted to approximately HK$1,428,186,000
(2019: approximately HK$1,285,984,000). The gearing ratio of the
Group, calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to total equity,
for the year was approximately 0.44 (2019: approximately 0.36).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has net current assets
of approximately HK$1,549,088,000 (2019: approximately
HK$1,690,736,000). Current ratio was approximately 2.5 (2019:
approximately 2.8). The bank balances and cash as at 31 March
2020 was approximately HK$117,920,000, representing a decrease
of approximately 38.5% or approximately HK$73,750,000,
compared to last year of approximately HK$191,670,000.

Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2020, the total number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) was 91,320,403 Shares (31 March
2019: 91,320,403 Shares), and the nominal value per Share was
HK$0.1 (2019: HK$0.1). The total share capital of the Company
was therefore approximately HK$9,132,000 (31 March 2019:
approximately HK$9,132,000).
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Charges of Assets

As at 31 March 2020, bank loans amounting to approximately
HK$1,428,186,000 (2019: approximately HK$1,285,984,000) which
were secured by leasehold properties, investment properties,
properties held for development for sale, properties held for
sale, life insurance policy, listed equity securities in Hong Kong,
perpetual bonds and debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income of the Group having a net book
value of approximately HK$3,480,944,000 (2019: approximately
HK$3,064,625,000). In addition, 71,500,000 Eminence Shares with
fair value of HK$33,041,000 (2019: nil) held by a subsidiary of the
Group is pledged to a bank.

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are in Hong Kong
dollars. During the year, the Group did not have significant
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and thus, no financial
instrument for hedging purposes was employed. The directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) considered the risk of exposure to
the currency fluctuation to be minimal.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries or associates during the year ended 31
March 2020.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 March 2020 (2019: nil).

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group invested
approximately HK$32,000 (2019: approximately HK$232,000)
on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and spent
approximately HK$3,128,000 (2019: approximately HK$4,743,000)
on additions of investment properties.
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no capital commitments in
respect of capital expenditure contracted for but not provided
(2019: nil).

PROPOSED SPIN-OFF

On 12 May 2017, the Company submitted a spin-off and separate
listing proposal of the Group's residential property business (the
“Proposed Spin-off”) to the Stock Exchange and on 24 October
2017, the Stock Exchange agreed that the Company may proceed
with the Proposed Spin-off. However, on 29 March 2019, the
Company received a letter from the Stock Exchange rejecting the
Proposed Spin-off on the basis that the Company did not satisfy
certain requirements of Practice Note 15 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange as introduced
in February 2018. After several rounds of review, appeals and
hearings, the Listing Committee on 13 August 2019 upheld its
decision of rejecting the Proposed Spin-off. As such, the Company
decided not to further appeal nor proceed with the Proposed Spin-
off.

For further details, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 27 October 2017, 9 April 2019, 17 May 2019, 24 May 2019
and 14 August 2019 respectively.

FULL ACCEPTANCE OF ALLOTMENT UNDER
THE RIGHTS ISSUE OF EMINENCE

On 4 November 2019, the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Landmark Profits and Goodco, owned 739,330,692
Eminence Shares. Goodco had irrevocably undertaken to Eminence
that it would not exercise any conversion rights under, or transfer,
the convertible notes held by it before close of business on the
record date. Each of Landmark Profits and Goodco had irrevocably
undertaken to Eminence and the underwriter that Eminence
Shares beneficially owned by it would not be disposed of or
transferred from the date of the undertakings (i.e. 4 November
2019) before close of business on the record date, that the rights
shares to be allotted in respect of those consolidated shares would
be taken up in full, representing a total of 147,866,132 rights
shares and it would not apply for any excess rights shares. Further
information can be found in the Company’s joint announcement
with Eminence dated 6 November 2019 (as supplemented by a
further announcement dated 18 November 2019).
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 32 employees (2019: 33).
Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to
approximately HK$30,600,000 for the year under review (2019:
approximately HK$63,647,000). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice. The Group has set out the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme for Hong Kong's employees. The Group has a share
option scheme to motivate employees.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(1)

On 21 May 2020, the Company, through Ace Winner, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, purchased an ELN
of CCB for a principal amount of HK$50,000,000 (exclusive of
transaction costs). The coupon rate is 15% per annum, issue
price is HK$6.270 per CCB share, strike price is HK$5.806 per
CCB share. The first valuation date is 6 July 2020, the final
valuation date is 4 August 2020 and the maturity date is 11
August 2020. Details can be found in the announcement of
the Company dated 22 May 2020.

The outbreak of coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") has a
severe negative impact on the retail property market in Hong
Kong. The fair value of the Group's investment properties
which are mainly comprised of commercial properties is
expected to decrease in 2020. Besides, the fair value of the
residential and commercial properties held by the Group's
associates, Eminence, for leasing are also affected if the
rental income for the residential and commercial properties by
the associates will be reduced in 2020.

Given the unpredictability of future development of COVID-19,
the impacts to the Group cannot be reliably quantified or
estimated at the date of issuing the consolidated financial
statement. The Company will continue to closely monitor the
situation. The actual financial effects, if any, will be reflected
in the Group's future financial statements.
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PROSPECTS

Although uncertainties in the global economic outlook have been
caused by the softening global economic growth, trade war
between US and China and outbreak of COVID-19, the Group
maintains a cautiously optimistic view on the property market and
will devote resources and efforts in increasing and replenishing its
land bank for development.

The Group will continue to adopt a prudent approach on acquiring
and disposing properties. In addition, the Group will continue to
look for potential investment properties for recurring income and
capital appreciation, at the same time expanding its loan financing
business for the growth of its stable recurring income.

These strategies are intended to enable the Group to maintain its

competitiveness thereby ensuring the Group's sustainability and
securing the Shareholders’ benefits.
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Biographical Details of Directors

MR. TSE WING CHIU RICKY

President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu, Ricky, aged 62, is an executive director (the
"Director”), president, chief executive officer and authorized
representative of the Company, a member and chairman of
the executive committee of the Company (the “Executive
Committee”), and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company (the "Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”). He is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Tse obtained a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Adam Smith University of America in the
United States in 1996. He has more than 30 years of experience in
garment manufacturing and merchandising. Mr. Tse was appointed
to the board of the Company (the “Board”) as an executive
Director and vice president of the Company in 2005, and was
subsequently re-designated from vice president of the Company to
president of the Company and appointed as chief executive officer
of the Company in 2006. In 2007, he was re-designated from an
executive Director to a non-executive Director and resigned as
president and chief executive officer of the Company. In 2017,
Mr. Tse was re-designated from a non-executive Director to an
executive Director, president and chief executive officer of the
Company.

MS. LUI YUK CHU

Vice President

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, aged 62, is a co-founder of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), an executive Director and
vice president of the Company and a member of the Executive
Committee. She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Besides, Ms. Lui is an executive director, deputy
chairman and a member of the executive committee of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (“Eminence”) (stock code: 616) and serves
as director of various subsidiaries of Eminence. She has been
involved in the textiles industry for over 30 years and has extensive
experience in design, manufacturing, marketing and distribution
of apparel. Ms. Lui was appointed to the Board as an executive
Director in 1994. In 2006, she was appointed as vice president of
the Company. Ms. Lui is the wife of Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the co-
founder of the Group. She is also the mother of Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy, an executive Director.

EECZERE

H KB &
TR ERTBAH

BIKEBELE 625k  BARAMITES(E
B ¥FE BRTHAHEEERER A2
AATZEG((HITEE]DKERERF - MU
EARREFMNZES((FMEES ) MARQ A
REZEE(REBZEENZKE - BHAR
RAZEZEWBRRIMES - #LAEN1996
FH1S E B Adam Smith University of America
ZIREBBETEMN -  HREKXRERFERE
FEERBBI0FLLE o # L ER2005F &
ZANMARRAESE((ESEDANTES
RARBIEIER - H1%EKR2006F A AR &
ITREATAARBERFREEITRER -
R2007F - HHPTES AT AIENTE
FUBHARARAEFERERITHRER - R
20174 » WEREBIERTEFSERETRAT
EE  ARQBEERERITHESR -

BELRLL
e

EEH%REL 625 BEARRREWBAF
([FEEDZHRAHA - BITEZHAAA
BIERE UERBMITZEGZHKE - AR
RAIZZREMNBARIMNES - LI B L
MAESLCEAERARTEW]) (BRHRRE
BIB)ZHITESE BIEERATEZEE K
B kElLzZEHBARMNES - #HitE
GEEBI0F  WRAKRZR  &E W
BHERDHE A EHREELELR - ELLTR
194FEZTMAERTECBATES - FR
2006 F ELZEAARABERFE - ELLAAK
SEHERBIMABKELECET - BFINA
WITESEAMZ L 2T -



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

Biographical Details of Directors

EECZERE

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY

Executive Director

Ms. Koon Ho Yan, Candy, aged 35, is an executive Director and
authorized representative of the Company and is a member of the
Executive Committee since 2010. She is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Koon obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics and Politics from the University of Durham,
England in 2007. She also received her Bachelor of Laws degree
and Legal Practice Course gqualification in 2009 from the University
of Law, England. Ms. Koon is the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, the
vice president of the Company.

MR. TSUI CHUN KONG

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, aged 69, is an independent non-executive
Director since 2004. He is also a member and chairman of the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Tsui obtained a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration
from the Oklahoma City University in the United States in 1991
and is a fellow member of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He has over 40 years of experience in the
public accounting profession and the commercial sector, especially
the travel industry. Mr. Tsui has experience in the preparation for
the listing of shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and worked for a few listed companies. He is now practising as a
public accountant under his own name.
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MR. JONG KOON SANG

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Jong Koon Sang, aged 71, is an independent non-executive
Director since 2005. He is also a member and chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Currently, Mr. Jong is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Association of International Accountants, England; a fellow
member of the Chartered Management Institute, England; a fellow
member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong; the accountant
ambassador of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; and Honorary Vice President of Accounting Student
Society of Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. Since
2014, he has been elected as director and council member of the
Association of International Accountants, England. In the years of
2011 and 2012, Mr. Jong was the President of The Association
of International Accountants, Hong Kong Branch. From 2010 to
2020, he was a member of the Regional Advisory Committee of
the Hong Kong Hospital Authority. Mr. Jong has over 40 years of
management experience in the financial, industrial and property
business.

MR. HON TAM CHUN

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Hon Tam Chun, aged 85, is an independent non-executive
Director since 2008. He is also a member and chairman of the
Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Hon is a retired Magistrate and
Barrister. He had been in service with the Hong Kong Government
for more than 40 years. During 1969 to 1973, he was a Crown
Counsel in the Legal Department of the Hong Kong Government.
Mr. Hon was a Judicial Officer in Judiciary from 1975 to 1995
when he retired.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company firmly believes that the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence are essential for upholding the
interests of the stakeholders and maximizing shareholder’s value
and is dedicated to maintaining a good standard of corporate
governance within a sensible and practical framework.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance, it
is responsible for developing and reviewing the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance as well as compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. During the year,
the Company has fully complied with the code provisions of the
CG Code, except for the deviations disclosed herein.

Code Provision A.1.1

The board should meet regularly and board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.

Code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the Board
should meet regularly and the Board meeting should be held at
least four (4) times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
During the year ended 31 March 2020, a total of four (4) Board
meetings (including two (2) regular Board meetings with at
least 14 days’ prior notice being given to all the Directors) were
held due to the social unrest in Hong Kong and the outbreak of
coronavirus disease 2019. During this period, written resolutions of
the Directors were circulated and passed for approving significant
matters. The Directors were provided with all relevant information
in advance to enable them to make informed decisions. The
Company will consider holding more regular Board meetings in the
coming year if the situation allows to meet code provision A.1.1 of
the CG Code.
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Code Provision A.2.1

The roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the
roles of chairman and chief executive of the Company (the “Chief
Executive”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky serves as the
president of the Company (the “President”) as well as the Chief
Executive and this dual leadership role has been adopted by
the Company for a number of years. Such deviation is deemed
appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient to have one
single person to be the President as well as to discharge the
executive functions of the Chief Executive thereby enabling more
effective planning and better execution of long-term strategies.
The Board believes that the balance of power and authority is
adequately ensured by the operations and governance of the
Board which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals,
with half of them being independent non-executive Directors. The
Company will review the current structure when and as it becomes
appropriate.

Code Provision C.2.5

The issuer should have an internal audit function

Code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code provides that the Company
and the subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) should have
an internal audit function. The Group does not have an internal
audit function. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group and there were no major issues but areas for improvement
have been identified by the audit committee of the Company (the
“Audit Committee"”) and appropriate measures have been taken.
In addition, the Board was of the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function within the Group in light
of the size, nature and complexity of the Group's business. The
situation will be reviewed annually.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Group is vested
in the Board, who assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group's businesses,
strategic decisions and performances.
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Board Composition

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprised six (6) Directors, including
three (3) executive Directors and three (3) independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Hon Tam Chun has confirmed that he will
retire from office as an independent non-executive Director in the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM")
which will be held on 6 August 2020.

Details of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (President and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong

Mr. Jong Koon Sang

Mr. Hon Tam Chun (Mr. Hon has confirmed that he will retire
from office in the forthcoming AGM which will be held on
6 August 2020.)

Details of background and qualifications of all Directors are set out
in the section headed "“Biographical Details of Directors” of this
annual report. Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by
rotation at the AGM for a term of up to three (3) years under bye-
law 99 of the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws").

The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity
which are appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Group. A balanced composition of executive and independent non-
executive Directors also generates a strong independent element
to the Board, which allows independent and objective decision-
making process for the best interest of the Group. The Company
will review the composition of the Board regularly to ensure the
Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise, skills
and experience to meet the needs of the business development of
the Group.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Despite the
fact that each of Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, Mr. Jong Koon Sang and
Mr. Hon Tam Chun, has served as an independent non-executive
Director on the Board for more than nine (9) years, the Board is of
the view that their duration of service will not interfere with their
exercise of independent judgement in carrying out their duties
and responsibilities as the independent non-executive Directors
and believes that their valuable knowledge and experience in
the Group's business will continually benefit the Company and
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) as a
whole. Accordingly, the Board considers that all independent non-
executive Directors have met the independence guidelines of Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The President meets at least annually with the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of other Directors.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at the AGM no later than the third AGM since the last
re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the next following AGM after
his or her appointment, or any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following AGM after his or her appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

Board Meeting

The Board meets regularly at approximately quarterly intervals.
During the year, the Board convened a total of two (2) regular
meetings and the attendance of the Directors are set out as below
section headed "ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS".

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the
Group’s overall strategies and policies, approval of business
plans, evaluating the performance of the Group and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting the success of
the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising the
Company's affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the
Group.
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The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the
executive Directors and senior management of every business
segment, while reserving certain key matters for its approval.
Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management
through executive Directors who have attended Board meetings.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly basis, with the
Group's management information updates to give them aware of
the Group’s affairs and facilitates them to discharge their duties
under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

Continuous Professional Development

During the year, the Company provides regular updates on the
business performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors
are regularly updated on the latest development regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional developments (the “Continuous Professional
Development”) to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. According to the confirmations received from
the Directors, all Directors have participated in the Continuous
Professional Development for the year ended 31 March 2020 in
the following manner:
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HA EER
(Note)
(Hf3E)
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky KBS
(President and Chief Executive Officer) (FEFERETHAEZ) v
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President) EETt(EFEE) v
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy BRAIMR&Z =+ v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong BREBLE v
Mr. Jong Koon Sang MR v
Mr. Hon Tam Chun BEAELE v

Note: Continuous Professional Development through attending briefings/
seminars/webcast/conferences/forums/online trainings/reading

relevant materials
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions as set out below:

(a) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance by monitoring of the corporate
governance practices and procedures; and maintenance
of appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group to ensure compliance with
applicable rules and regulations;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(e) To review the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report in the
Company's annual report.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board had performed
the above-mentioned corporate governance functions by reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers of the Group arising out of corporate
activities of the Group.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Board Committees (the “Board Committees”)

The Board has established four (4) Board Committees, namely,
the Audit Committee, remuneration committee of the Company
(the "Remuneration Committee”), nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and executive
committee of the Company (the “Executive Committee”), to
assist in the execution of the Board's responsibilities and to
oversee particular aspect of the Group's affairs. Each Board
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties properly, and holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-
laws, its specific written terms of reference and, where applicable,
the proceedings of the Board meeting. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are reviewed and updated regularly to
ensure that they are aligned with prevailing governance practices.
The terms of reference of each of the Board Committees
are available on the Company’'s website. The attendance of
each member of the Board Committees are set out as below
section headed "ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS".

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three (3) independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tsui Chun Kong (chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Hon Tam
Chun and held two (2) meetings during the year ended 31 March
2020.

The chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Tsui Chun Kong,
possesses appropriate professional qualifications in finance and
accounting and meets the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner
of the existing auditing firm of the Company during two (2) years
after he ceases to be partner of the audit firm.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee included:
—  to oversee the relationship with the external auditor;

- to review the interim and annual financial statements before
publication;

—  to oversee the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures; and

— to review of the internal control and risk management
framework.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee has
reviewed (i) the reports from the Company’s auditor, accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, management
representation letters, and management’s response in relation
to the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2020 and the
interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2019; (ii)
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
the six months ended 30 September 2019 and recommended the
same to the Board for approval; and (iii) the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2019/2020 consolidated
financial statements in conjunction with the external auditor
of the Company. Based on this review and discussions with
management, the Audit Committee was satisfied that the
consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and fairly present
the Group's financial position and results for the year ended 31
March 2020.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three (3)
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jong Koon Sang
(chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
and Mr. Hon Tam Chun, and one (1) executive Director, namely
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky. The Remuneration Committee held one
(1) meeting during the year ended 31 March 2020.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee included:

—  to recommend to the Board on the Company’s policies and
structure for the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

- to recommend to the Board on the remuneration package of
all executive Directors and senior management of the Group;
and

— to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to corporate goals and objectives by
the Board from time to time.
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The primary objective of the Company’s remuneration policy is
to attract, retain and motivate the personnel by providing fair
reward for their contributions to the Group's performance. In this
context, the remuneration policy is to set the overall remuneration
package at a competitive level and in a form that permits additional
remuneration to be earned for high performance over a sustained
period. The remuneration packages are determined with reference
to the time commitment and responsibilities of each individual, the
Company’s performance and the prevailing market conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policies and structure for
the Directors and senior management of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprising three (3)
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hon Tam Chun
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, Mr.
Jong Koon Sang, and one (1) executive Director, namely Mr. Tse
Wing Chiu Ricky. The Nomination Committee held one (1) meeting
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee included:

—  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

—  toidentify and nominate suitable candidates of directors for
the Board’s consideration; and

—  toassess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Nomination Committee
(i) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board; and (ii) assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.
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Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy and board diversity
policy which set out the nomination procedures adopted by the
Nomination Committee and the approach to achieving board
diversity in the Company in order to enhance the effectiveness of
the Board and its corporate governance standard.

The Company recognizes the importance of having a diverse team
of board members, which is an essential element in maintaining
a competitive advantage. The Nomination Committee has been
delegated the authority to review and assess the diversity of the
Board and its skills and experience by way of consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
industry experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Nomination Committee will give consideration to the diversity
policy when identifying and selecting suitably qualified candidates.
The policy will be reviewed on a regular basis.

Both the nomination policy and the board diversity policy are
available on the Company’s website.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all the executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (chairman of the
Executive Committee), Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy.

It meets as and when required between regular Board meetings of
the Company, and operates as a general management committee
under the direct authority of the Board. Within the parameters
of authority delegated by the Board, the Executive Committee
is committed to the implementation of the Group's strategy
set by the Board, monitors the Group's investment and trading
performance, funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

Messrs, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been reappointed as
the external auditor of the Company at the 2019 AGM until the
conclusion of the forthcoming 2020 AGM.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the audit and non-audit
fees paid or payable to the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, was made up of an audit fee of approximately
HK$2,658,000 and a non-audit related service fee of approximately
HK$877,000. The latter included taxation service and other
professional service.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Details of the attendance of each individual Director at the regular
Board meetings, the Board Committee meetings, the AGM and
the special general meeting of the Company (the “SGM") held
during the year ended 31 March 2020 is as follows:
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REBZE2020F3A831BIEEER B3k
JEMARRNBINEZ BT E S e B TR S G 5T
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Attended/Eligible to attend

HE/ GERILE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name meeting meeting meeting meeting AGM SGM
Ezg ENZEEE ¥MzEe REZEE RRAF REEH
i3] g3 g3 S g% VN-1 A8
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky HAKBEE 22 NATEA 7n n M NATER
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu RS e 212 N/ATE N/ATEF N/ATEF 0/1 N/ATEF
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy BAMEL 22 N/ATNE N/AZN i N/AZN o1 NATER
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong REREE 22 202* 7n mn 1M NATER
Mr. Jong Koon Sang HEERE 22 22 n* 7N m o NATER
Mr. Hon Tam Chun BRERE 22 22 7 1+ "o NATER

*  Chairman of the Board/Board Committee

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Lee Po Wing, assists
the Board by ensuring that the Board policy and procedures are
followed and the Board activities are effectively and efficiently
conducted. In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr.
Lee Po Wing confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of
the relevant professional training during the year ended 31 March
2020.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board leads and maintains effective controls over the
Group's activities, with executive responsibility for the running
of the Group’'s business being delegated to management.
The management provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates in order to give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects to
enable them to discharge their duties.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks and it is willing to take in
achieving the Group's strategic objectives and ensuring that the
Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. The Board is also responsible for overseeing the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems. The risk management and internal
control systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operating systems
or in achievement of the Group's business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts a review of the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems annually by requiring all department managers to undergo
a detailed self-risk assessment process using a common risk
management framework. It covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, on an annual basis.
It also considers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programs and budget of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function.
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Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies and
procedures are in place to identify, assess, manage, control
and report risks. Such risks include strategic, credit, operational
(administrative, system, human resources, reputation), market,
liguidity, legal and regulatory risks. Exposure to these risks
is continuously monitored by the Board through the Audit
Committee.

The internal control system includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority. The Board has clearly
defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each division
to ensure adequate checks and balances. The internal control
system has been designed to safeguard the Group's assets
against unauthorized use of disposition, to ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for producing reliable financial
information, and to ensure compliance with applicable laws,
regulations and industry standard.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the
year under review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group and there were no major
issue but areas for improvement have been identified by the Audit
Committee and appropriate measures taken. The Board is of the
view that the enterprise risk management and internal control
systems in place for the year and up to the date of issuance of the
annual report is effective and adequate. In addition, the Board is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit function within the Group in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group's business. The situation will be
reviewed from time to time.
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Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the
Group'’s financial performance and cash flows for the relevant
accounting periods, and in compliance with all the relevant
statutory requirements, the Listing Rules requirements and Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards. In preparing the financial
statements of the Group, the appropriate accounting policies are
selected, applied consistently and in accordance with the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and appropriate and reasonable
judgment and estimates are made. The Directors have prepared
the financial statements for the reporting year on a going concern
basis.

The Board is committed to present a clear, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group's performance and
financial positions in all its financial reporting and to ensure relevant
publications in a timely manner.

Auditor’'s Statement

The statement by the Company’s external auditor about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 78 to 85 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE OF THE
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiries by the Company, the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2020.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which sets out the guideline for the Board and the
Company to determine (i) whether dividends are to be declared and
paid, and (ii) the level of dividend to be paid to the Shareholders.

The Dividend Policy is to allow the Shareholders to participate in
the Company's profit whilst to retain adequate cash reserves for
its working capital requirements and future growth.

In determining/recommending the frequency, amount and form of
any dividend in any financial year/period, the Board shall, inter alia,
consider the following factors:

(i) the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

(i) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group;

(i) the Group’s business strategies and operations, including
future cash commitments and investment needs to sustain

the long-term growth aspect of the business;

(iv) the current and future liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group;

(v) the interests of the Shareholders; and
(vi) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no

assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period.
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Subject to the Bye-laws and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Company may declare and pay
dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the Board
considers appropriate.

The Board may determine and pay to the Shareholders interim
dividends as it considers appropriate. Any final dividends declared
by the Company must be approved by the Shareholders at general
meetings and must not exceed the amount recommended by the
Board.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a SGM

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene
a SGM. Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company as at the date of
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may send a written request to the Board to request for
a SGM. The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) and deposited
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481—
483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (for
the attention of Company Secretarial Department).

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be
responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the requirements under Section 74 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”) once a
valid requisition is received.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at the
general meetings

The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the
Shareholders concerned, together with a statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposal or the business to be dealt with at the general meeting
must be deposited at the Company's principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building,
Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect
thereto in accordance with the requirements under Sections 79
and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents are received.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other a retiring
Director for election as a Director at a general meeting, the
Shareholder should follow the “Rules and Procedures Governing
the Election of Directors”, which can be found on the website of
the Company.
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Procedures for putting enquiries by the
Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing via the following channel:

Company Secretarial Department
Block A, 7th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6
481-483 Castle Peak Road

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-mail: 1218share@easyknit.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has not
made any changes to its Bye-laws. A consolidated version of the
memorandum of association of the Company and the Bye-laws are
available on the website of the Company.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present this
annual report together with the audited financial statements of
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are property development,
property investment, investment in securities and loan financing
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 86 to 87 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the
Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) including an analysis of
the Group's performance, material events that have occurred since
the year end date and an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business are contained in the preceding “President’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
set out on pages 5 to 22 of this annual report. Details of the
Group's capital risk management are disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In addition, relevant details of the Company’s environmental, social
and governance policies and performance are reported in the
section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
set out in this annual report from pages 63 to 77.

The Directors were not aware of any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the
Group during the year.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five (5) financial years is set out on page 234 of
this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of the Directors (the “"Board”) does not recommend the
payment of final dividend to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: HK5
cents per share).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31 March
2020 by an independent firm of qualified professional property
valuer and the gain/loss arising from changes in fair value of
investment properties was recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
Details of these are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

Details of the Group's properties held for development for sale are
set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2020 are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$3,370,000.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity on pages 90 to 91 of this annual report and
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

FEHMBE LT
RABR2020F3A31HZ T EMB A RIS
HRGRE VB RRM 41 -

B
REM > REEELESE RGBS
3,370,000/ 7T, ©

ft 8

ARBRARTAREANZ HREZDHED B
AR REONFI A A MABBER
KA M BREN A -

XA B HY A 41 2 K £

RRAFR20205FK%2019F3 A31 B ] AR EH
IR ZFEENT

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

20204 20194

3A31H 3A31H

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Contributed surplus AR 220,937 220,937
Accumulated profits 25HEE 650,260 710,969
871,197 931,906

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus shall not be distributed to the shareholders if
there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(@) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realizable value of the company’s assets would thereby

be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium account.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (President and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong

Mr. Jong Koon Sang

Mr. Hon Tam Chun (Mr. Hon has confirmed that he will retire
from office in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the "AGM ") which will be held on 6 August 2020.)

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this
report are set out on pages 23 to 25 of this annual report.

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws"), Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, an executive Director, and Mr. Tsui
Chun Kong, an independent non-executive Director, will retire from
office by rotation. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM. Mr. Hon Tam Chun has confirmed that he will retire from
office in the forthcoming AGM which will be held on 6 August
2020.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes to information required to be disclosed by the Directors
are set out below.

(1) There were changes to the directorships of each of Mr. Tse
Wing Chiu Ricky and Ms. Lui Yuk Chu in certain members of
the Group.

(2)  Mr. Hon Tam Chun will retire from office as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, all with effect from 6 August 2020.

(3) Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year are set out
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent
non-executive Directors as regards their independence to the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2020. Despite the fact
that each of Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr.
Hon Tam Chun, has served as an independent non-executive
Director on the Board for more than nine (9) years, the Board is of
the view that their duration of service will not interfere with their
exercise of independent judgement in carrying out their duties
and responsibilities as the independent non-executive Directors
and believes that their valuable knowledge and experience in the
Group's business will continually benefit the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Company considers all
the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the
AGM for a term of up to three (3) years under bye-law 99 of the
Bye-laws.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Group which
is not determinable by the Group within one (1) year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance relating to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contracts of significance between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries subsisting during or at the end of the year, and there
was no contracts of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling Shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company (the “Chief Executive”) in the shares
of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")), which were required to be (i) notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests which the Directors or the Chief Executive
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or (i) entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as
follows:

(a) Long positions in ordinary Shares and underlying
Shares
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Approximate

percentage
Number of of the
ordinary total issued
Name of Director Capacity Shares held Total Shares
HERITRAG
BESER BN
ExE8 14 RGOEE #st BOk
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Interest of controlled 17,429,664 17,429,664 19.09%
corporation (Note i)

EEHRZT RIEGERE 2 s ()

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a trust 29,179,480 29,179,480 31.95%

ERAMZL

(Note ii)
EE=XmA B aFi)
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Notes:

(i) 17,429,664 Shares are owned by Sea Rejoice Limited which is
wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, an executive Director.

(i) 29,179,480 Shares are registered in the name of and are
beneficially owned by Magical Profits Limited which is wholly-
owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is
wholly-owned by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited as
trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries include Ms.
Koon Ho Yan Candy). As a result, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy is
deemed to be interested in the Shares by virtue of her capacity
as one of the beneficiaries of The Magical 2000 Trust.

(b) Long position in ordinary Shares and underlying
Shares of the associated corporation

Eminence Enterprise Limited (“Eminence”)

Hiat

(i)

(ii)

17,429,664 ML FHER AR ExR
BE ZARHEBTEFEERLT
2EHE -

29,179,480 J& 15 LAMagical Profits
Limitedz BEE L KAEERER -
#% A AlJhHAccumulate More Profits
Limited2&# %A * MAccumulate More
Profits LimitedBI{E&The Magical
2000 Trust(EZm ABEEAIMA L)
ZEFARFEREXERQAFEZE
BHE -t BEAMZETEEAThe
Magical 2000 Trust=z A 2 — 115 AR
RN B s o

(b) REBEZEEERK G R EERK

2HR
BLlEEBERRE(FHLL])

Approximate

Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying the total issued
shares of shares of shares of
Name of Director Capacity Eminence held  Eminence held Total Eminence
BB
2RITRH
FERLERR HERILEE BYBY
£ 54 RPEE RAEE @t BOl
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Interest of controlled 255,887,665 94,457,553 350,345,218 37.61%
corporation
(Note i & i)
EEhat REHEE 2w
(i)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a trust 255,887,665 94,457,553 350,345,218 37.61%
(Note i & i)
BAfE+ EERHEA

(5% R%iii)



Notes:

(i) In the 255,887,665 shares of Eminence (“Eminence Shares”),
71,055,000 Eminence Shares, 23,387,370 Eminence Shares
and 161,445,295 Eminence Shares are registered in the
name of and beneficially owned by Ace Winner Investment
Limited, Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco Development
Limited (“Goodco") respectively, all of which are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. The 94,457,553 underlying
Eminence Shares are the total number of convertible Eminence
Shares (subject to adjustment) to be issued upon full conversion
of the convertible notes issued by Eminence to Goodco.

(i)  Sea Rejoice Limited is interested in approximately 19.09% of
the issued share capital of the Company and is wholly-owned by
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

(i) Magical Profits Limited is interested in approximately 31.95% of
the issued share capital of the Company and is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited as trustee of The
Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries include Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
Directors or the Chief Executive had any interests in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which would be required to be (i) notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests which the Director or the
Chief Executive would be taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (ii) entered in the register kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, so far as is known to the Directors and the
Chief Executive, the interests and short positions of the persons
or corporations other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary Shares and underlying
Shares

FTERRREOREERSG 2

7R2020F3A31H * REEXRETEITHRAEFT
M EBERFTETRABRINZ ALTIEE
RARBRMDFMABBR DA ER W TR
KB RER AR IRE S N BN E33615
AGFEZERMA

\EBRRRORAEBRKRD ZFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of ordinary the total issued
substantial Shareholder Notes  Capacity Shares held Shares
HERITRG
BEEER BHEZBH
FTERRER W a6 RHEE B
Mr. Koon Wing Yee il & iif Interest of spouse 17,429,664 19.09%
BKERE i BoiBtEE
Sea Rejoice Limited il & iv Beneficial owner 17,429,664 19.09%
LFERAT] ikiv  Bm¥#EBA
Magical Profits Limited I &iv Beneficial owner 29,179,480 31.95%
iRiv  Bm@BEAA
Accumulate More Profits Limited i Interest of controlled 29,179,480 31.95%
Corporation
RiEHER 2w
The Winterbotham Trust i Trustee 29,179,480 31.95%
Company Limited
BFEFERETAER AR ErtA
Winterbotham Holdings Limited i Interest of controlled 29,179,480 31.95%
corporation
REHLER 2 s
Markson International Holding i Interest of controlled 29,179,480 31.95%
Limited corporation

AL HEE 2 e as
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of ordinary the total issued
substantial Shareholder Note Capacity Shares held Shares
HEBRTRSG
BEEER BHZHA
TERRER M BH ROEE BO
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas i Interest of controlled 29,179,480 31.95%
Hooper corporation
RIEHLER 2 S
Ilvan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper i Interest of controlled 29,179,480 31.95%
corporation
RIEHLER 2 S
Notes: et

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

29,179,480 Shares are registered in the name of and are beneficially
owned by Magical Profits Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by
The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited as trustee of The Magical
2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy, an executive Director). The Winterbotham Trust Company
Limited is owned as to 75% by Winterbotham Holdings Limited
(“Winterbotham Holdings"”) and 25% by Markson International
Holding Limited (“Markson”) respectively. Winterbotham Holdings
is owned as to approximately 99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper. And Markson is owned as to 99.99% by Mr. lvan
Geoffrey Douglas Hooper.

17,429,664 Shares are owned by Sea Rejoice Limited which is
wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, an executive Director.

Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, is deemed
to be interested in the 17,429,664 Shares by virtue of the SFO.

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a Director, is also a director of Sea Rejoice Limited
and Magical Profits Limited.

Apart from Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, no Director is also a director or
employee of any substantial Shareholders.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2020, the Company had
not been notified by any persons who had interests in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

29,179,4800% % {5 LAMagical Profits Limited
ZEETLRBEEREE  ZRAFH
Accumulate More Profits Limited2 & %A
MAccumulate More Profits Limited 8l f{EA
The Magical 2000 Trust(E &z ABIEAITE
EEAMX D) ZETARRERETERA
A2 & %A ° Winterbotham Holdings Limited
(TWinterbotham Holdings/) ¥ Markson
International Holding Limited ([Markson )78
HEREEBERRF D ANEET5% K25 %
zx ° Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hoopert4
#EAWinterbotham Holdings 99.99% 2 #25
Ivan Geoffrey Douglas Hooperst £ Markson
#E599.99% 2 1%k ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 July 2012, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme") was adopted and approved by the then Shareholders for
a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date whereby,
the Board, may at its discretion, grant share options to any eligible
participants (including Directors and employees of the Group) to
subscribe for the Shares subject to the terms and conditions as
stipulated in the Share Option Scheme. During the year ended
31 March 2020, no share option(s) were outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.
Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

At the AGM held on 8 August 2019, the scheme mandate limit for
the Share Option Scheme was refreshed to allow the Company
to issue a maximum of 9,132,040 new Shares under the Share
Option Scheme to eligible participants. After such refreshment
of scheme mandate limit, during the year ended 31 March 2020,
the Company did not grant any Share Options to any eligible
participants. As such, as at the date of this report, the total number
of Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
9,132,040 Shares which represents approximately 10% of the total
number of issued Shares as at 31 March 2020 (i.e. 91,320,403
Shares).

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18, was granted any
right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company
or any other body corporate nor had exercised any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Interests of Directors in competing businesses as at 31 March
2020 required to be disclosure pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Name of director Name of company

Nature of competing business

XEFEBEEBBRAR 202055
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Nature of interest

EEnE NEER BREEBME EEME

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Eminence Property investment, property Director of
development, security Eminence
investment and loan financing

BEKZT = MERE  MEZRE  FBHFRE mlES

As the Board is independent of the board of Eminence and
maintains three (3) independent non-executive Directors, the
Group operates its businesses independently of, and at arm’s
length from, the businesses of Eminence.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during
the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions which were undertaken in
the normal course of business are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. For those related party
transactions that constitutes connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions (as the case may be) under the Listing
Rules, these transactions are exempt from reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Bye-law 178 of the Bye-laws provides that, among other, every
Director and other officers of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur sustain by
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices and related matters provided that the indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which
may attach to any of them. In this connection, the Company has
arranged directors’ and officers' liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Company during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five (5) largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 87.62% of the Group's purchases and
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 60.15% of the
Group's purchases.

The five (5) largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 66.38% of the Group's revenue and the largest
customer accounted for approximately 37.20% of the Group's
revenue.

None of the Directors and their respective close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) have any interest
in the five (5) largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

PROPERTY VALUATIONS

Property valuations in respect of the Group’s investment properties
in Hong Kong have been carried out by Colliers International
(Hong Kong) Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer.
The valuations were based on residual value approach, income
capitalisation approach and/or direct comparison method as the
valuation methodologies and were used in preparing 2019/2020
final results.
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The Group's investment properties were valued at approximately
HK$1,265,040,000 (2019: approximately HK$1,458,800,000),
an increase over 2019 after adjusted for the additions of
investment properties. The decrease in fair value of approximately
HK$196,888,000 was recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year.
Properties held for development for sale and properties held for
sale of the Group were stated at cost less impairment, if any, in
these consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its businesses and
operations. Through internal control systems and procedures, the
Company has taken reasonable steps to ensure that significant
risks are monitored and do not adversely affect the Group’s
operations and performances. The relevant risks are managed
on an ongoing basis. A non-exhaustive list of principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group is set out below.

Market Risk

The Group’s revenue is principally derived from Hong Kong. The
conditions of the economy as a whole and the property market
may have significant impact to the Group’s financial results and
conditions.

Compliance Risk

The Group’s operations require compliance with local and overseas
laws (including those of Bermuda and the British Virgin Islands) and
regulations, including but not limited to property sale, management
and construction as well as companies and securities laws. The
Group has constantly monitored its compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIP

The Group adheres to the standards of business ethics, this
underpins how we conduct business with our customers, suppliers
and contractors.

Employees

The Group values its employees who are the Group’s most
important assets. Staff are rewarded with competitive
remuneration packages and benefits. The Group is committed to
fostering a conducive, harmonious and discrimination-free working
environment.
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Occupational health and safety is the top priority across the
Group's operations. Safety guidelines are established to safeguard
the employees from any occupational hazards.

Customers

The Group strives to provide high quality and reliable services
to its customers. The privacy of the Group’s customers are well
protected through a privacy policy. Any complaints from customers
are handled and investigated in a thorough and efficient manner.

Suppliers

The Group is committed to forging collaborative partnership
with its suppliers and have a database of approved suppliers and
vendors who are assessed on a regular basis.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments policy of employees of the Group is set up by
the executive Directors on the basis of employee’s performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice.

The emolument of the Directors is determined by the Board
after review and on the recommendation of the remuneration
committee of the Company, having regard to factors such as time
commitment and responsibilities of Directors, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market practice.

The Group has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible participants. Details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float of its Shares as required under
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee in compliance with the
requirement of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The principal responsibilities of the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) is to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and risk management
and internal control systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
comprises three (3) independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has an Audit Committee in compliance with the
requirement of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The principal responsibilities of the Audit
Committee is to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee comprises three (3) independent non-
executive Directors as at 31 March 2020. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the "Corporate Governance Report” from pages 26 to 43 of
this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

At the Company (or “Easyknit” or “we" or “us"), sustainability is
a key strategic objective which we take into careful consideration
in managing our business operations and environmental, social and
governance ("ESG”) related risks. Our sustainability governance
framework represents our commitment to cultivating sustainable
growth and operating efficiency across the Group whilst
generating shared value for local communities and minimising
our impact on the environment. The Board supported by the
management of the Company, is ultimately accountable for the
Group's sustainability matters. To effectively monitor, manage, and
implement ESG-related aspects into our operations, our corporate
social responsibility policy helps to provide strategic guidance on
our overall sustainability approach.
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Discussion on Environmental Policies and
Performance

With oversight from our Board, the Group has formulated relevant
polices which outline our overarching dedication to the continual
improvement of our environmental performance. The policies
are well communicated across the Group and help us to better
manage our environmental impacts. Easyknit has identified
energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions as relevant
environmental issues which arise from our business operations.
Moving forward, we will continue to integrate sustainable practices
into our operations and maintain our search for opportunities
to enhance operational efficiencies. Due to the hard work and
dedication towards environmental performance from everyone in
the Group, we experienced an 8.51% reduction of our total CO,e
emissions as compared to the year ended 31 March 2019.

Account of Key Relationships with Employees,
Customers and Suppliers

Employees

The Group greatly values the wellbeing of our employees, we are
steadfast in providing an inclusive, respectful, caring, harmonious
and discrimination-free working environment to ensure we foster
a supportive internal culture. We place strong emphasis on equal
opportunities and tailor employee remuneration based on merit,
work experience, and job duties with reference to local and
industrial standards. To effectively manage our human capital, we
have a set of well-established and transparent procedures on talent
acquisition and employee dismissal in place.

Alongside our competitive remuneration packages, the Group
also offers attractive benefits and provides a variety of internal
and external opportunities for staff to continue their professional
development. With feedback from our staff, we arrange and
encourage our employees to participate in various external training
courses and seminars.

The wellbeing of our employees is crucial to creating a positive
workplace. Occupational health and safety are our top priority
across the Group's operations. The Group's internal safety
guidelines align with the requirements set out by the Labour
Department and were established to safeguard employees from
any potential occupational hazards. There were no work-related
fatalities or lost days due to work injury during the year.

BRARRBRR KRBV ®

FEETEMEET  A£EBEHTETHBER
RO TRMAEBENERMANRERE
MERRL - BEBRERSB AP H
BiE YHPREMEASUERERMER
BHWEE  kECDHBEREEMBEESRES
MELAEEMMNEBZERBRENZ
B BERR  BMBHECITRENEER
MARMNEER  TEESKESUIRES
BIBEMR - EAEEE ANS IMEIRE
REHRLT - B2019F3A31 8 IEFEH
L BAPIE — S bR BERE R T8.51% °

BREE  FEFRHEEEHNEERES
i

ES

AEEFRFERBEINEL  BABRETE
WRE—EER - BF - BE - MEMER
BHTIERE  UBREMEE—EAIHE
WAL - HPIEFESRFEERKE - WiR
BIE  ITHEKBMIERS W2 ERD R
TEZEABRETHFW - BT EVHEER
PMWANER  BAFET —EXSEKEHR
RIAA BEEFN B TBEERTE T o

BRIRPIABFOOFMFEIN  AEREER
TR WEN  XARETRESEAIMI
MEENEBEEXER -EBEIHNRE
T BATHY BB T2 mERINEEII
RIZMATE -

BANE I RUHNAEB BN THERES
HEE  -BERENZERAMBEEEE
ENBEERR - AKENARLE2ERNNE
BTRNER MRUNBBEHEREET
EREMEBENBERE - EFER - HIE
AI{EREMETCHKETGBREATIERHD
(EE



Customers, Suppliers and Subcontractors

The Group aims to provide efficient, professional and quality
services on a consistent basis. In cases where quality concerns
arise, a comprehensive investigation will be conducted and
corrective actions will be taken promptly. We take all necessary
precautions to protect the privacy of the Group’s customers
through guidance provided by our privacy policy, which was
established in accordance with local regulations to guarantee that
all personal data is handled in strict confidence.

Easyknit seeks to positively influence the environmental and
social practices of our suppliers and subcontractors by integrating
our sustainability values into our supply chain through our well-
established management process. Taking sustainability-related
criteria into account during the procurement process, we
encourage our suppliers and contractors to explore and implement
best practices within their own operations. Our policies on supply
chain management ensure we uphold the highest ethical standards
and fair competition throughout the supplier selection process,
and potential suppliers and vendors are subject to our stringent
selection and evaluation mechanism.

Compliance Status with Relevant Laws and Regulations
that Have a Significant Impact on the Business

During the year, there were no reported cases of non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on our business regarding the environment, labour standards,
occupational health and safety, anti-corruption, or data privacy.

The environmental, social and governance policies and
performance of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020
are set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
from pages 63 to 77 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 were
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will
be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 3 June 2020

In case of any inconsistency, the English version of this annual
report shall prevail over the Chinese version.
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OVERVIEW

This environmental, social and governance ("ESG") Report (the
“"ESG Report”) is presented by Easyknit International Holdings
Limited (“Easyknit”, “we"” or “our”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “"Group”) to provide an overview of its
management approach as well as ESG initiatives and performance
in four core areas: the environment, human capital, value chain and
community investment for the reporting period from 1 April 2019
to 31 March 2020 (the “Year").

1. Reporting Standard and Scope

This ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide")
set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"HKEx"). To better navigate and locate relevant ESG topics,
disclosures and key performance indicators (“KPIs"), an ESG
Guide content index is included on pages 74 to 77 of this ESG
Report.

To represent and cover the business areas that have the
most significant impact on the Group's environmental and
social performance, the scope of the ESG Report includes
our principal operations, consisting of properties owned and
operated by the Group in Hong Kong.

Materiality Assessment

In preparation for this ESG Report, we commissioned an
independent consultant to conduct a materiality assessment
to identify material ESG issues for disclosure by following a
three-step process:

Step 1. Identification

e  Reviewed ESG disclosures of industry peers to identify
common disclosure practices.

Step 2: Prioritisation

e Consolidated and analysed the results of the peer
benchmarking exercise to develop a prioritised list of
ESG issues of varying materiality levels for confirmation.
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Step 3: Validation

e The relevant departments of the Group convened an
online meeting with the independent consultant to
confirm a finalised list of material KPIs for disclosure.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As part of our corporate social responsibility (“CSR") vision,
Easyknit is dedicated to minimising potential negative impacts
associated with our operations on the environment while
creating long-term positive value for all our stakeholders
including the wider community. To this end, we make
every effort to promote environmental stewardship, build a
sustainable and resilient workforce and proactively contribute
to different community programmes.

An effective governance structure is essential to manage
ESG-related risks and ensure sound governance practices.
The board of directors (the “Board”) of Easyknit provides
strategic guidance on our business direction and maintains
oversight of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. To support the process, the Board is responsible for
overseeing the day-to-day execution of our ESG strategy and
reviewing the Group’s CSR policy which set out our long-term
sustainability goals and direction.

Our Environment
3.1 Introduction

As a responsible corporation, we recognise our role
in fostering a sustainable future for tomorrow. To this
end, we are committed to the efficient use of natural
resources across our operations and continuous
improvement of our sustainability performance. To
properly manage adverse environmental impacts arising
from our business activities, the Group has implemented
internal policies which guide our efforts in relation to
energy saving, reduction of waste generation and water
resource management. During the Year, there were no
non-compliance cases relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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3.3
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Energy Consumption and Emissions

The Group actively seizes energy-saving opportunities
and adopts different upgrading projects at our offices
and properties to reduce our carbon footprint. For
instance, apart from replacing obsolete lighting fixtures
with energy efficient LED lighting, we select products
with Grade 1 Energy Labels or better energy efficiency
during our procurement. To prevent unnecessary energy
consumption, we carefully monitor and adjust indoor air
temperature and switch off our building chillers after 8
pm. Additionally, we utilised low-e or double-glazed glass
in our most recent development, which reflects a greater
amount of incoming infrared energy, helping to better
insulate our buildings from indoor heat gain.

Waste and Resource Management

As one of our environmental focus areas, we have
adopted a variety of measures to enhance our resource
management. Staff is encouraged to adopt electronic
communication and documentation whenever possible.
When hardcopy documents are necessary, we
encourage staff to adopt double-sided printing to reduce
paper use. Recycling collections points have been set
up in our major properties and we encourage proper
separation of recyclable materials such as paper, glass,
aluminium, and plastic. Aside from conducting regular
inspections of water pipes and taps to prevent water
leakage, we posted posters and signs in common areas
and washrooms to remind employees of conserving
valuable water resources.

Cultivating Environmental Awareness

Enhancing awareness is an essential driver of
environmental sustainability. To foster a lasting
environmentally conscious culture within the Group,
we have implemented our internal policies which serve
as practical guidance for staff on energy conservation,
waste reduction and sustainable resource use. For
example, the policies encourage procurement of
energy efficient office equipment and light fixtures as
well as avoiding unnecessary resource use and waste
generation.
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4. Our People

4.1

4.2

Introduction

Employees are our greatest assets contributing to the
continuous growth and development of the Group.
With this in mind, we are fully committed to creating an
inclusive, supportive and safe workplace which enables
our employees to fulfil their professional and personal
aspirations.

Caring Company

At Easyknit, we strive to provide employees with a
working environment which embraces the principle
of equal opportunities at all times. We ensure fair
recruitment and promotion procedures for all individuals
regardless of race, religion, gender, disability, family
status, age or any other basis prohibited by law. To
safeguard and protect human rights, the employment of
child and forced labour is strictly prohibited within the
Group and throughout our supply chain.

As outlined in our remuneration policy, we ensure
employees are rewarded with attractive packages based
on their qualifications, working performance and market
trends. To maintain a sustained and motivated team, we
conduct annual performance appraisals in recognition
of staff achievements as well as identifying promotion
opportunities and salary increments. We also provide
employees with comprehensive fringe benefits and a
range of leave entitlements. Taking great care to staff
physical and mental well-being, we organised different
staff engagement activities such as mealtime gatherings
and weekly breakfasts, and set up a refreshment corner
to encourage staff to mingle and communicate with each
other. To celebrate festive seasons together with our
staff, we organised annual Christmas and Chinese New
Year luncheon which enable our staff to socialise in a
pleasant environment. Additionally, we have increased
the greening areas at our workplace with an intention to
build a better and fresher working environment.
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During the Year, there were no non-compliance cases
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, welfare and
the relevant legislation including but not limited to the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57
of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Occupational Health and Safety

Ensuring the health and safety of our employees is a
first and foremost task. In line with the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), our safety guidelines serve to
protect our employees against occupational hazards
at the workplace. Emergency policies have also been
implemented and are clearly stated in our employee
safety guidelines in preparation for potentially dangerous
situations such as typhoons and rainstorm warnings.
During the Year, there were no work-related fatalities or
lost days due to work injury.

Training and Development

To ensure our team remains competitive in an ever-
changing business environment, we continue to equip
our staff with up-to-date knowledge and skill sets
tailored to meet individual career needs. During the
Year, we organised numerous training and development
opportunities for our employees through which they have
the chance to further enhance their personal toolkits for
their career advancement.

Business Ethics

At Easyknit, we are dedicated to upholding the highest
ethical standards and accountability throughout our
operations. Our expectations for professional behaviours
are clearly outlined in the employee’s handbook of the
Group where all employees are obligated to follow.
Staff is also required to strictly comply with Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Easyknit has established the policy on anti-money
laundering to provide guidelines on preventing and
detecting activities related to money-laundering and
terrorist financing and to ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. Our whistle-blowing policy is in
place to allow employees at all levels to report suspected
violations and raise concerns of any improper behaviour.
The Group’s gift policy sets out provisions for handling
conflict of interests and our standards of conduct. Any
cases of corruption or bribery observed by an employee
may be raised in writing directly to management. To
encourage whistle-blowers to raise grievances without
fear of reprisal, all whistle-blowing reports are treated
confidentially.
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During the Year, there were no cases of non-compliance RAFEAN BEEREHEBE -
with laws and regulations relevant to bribery, extortion, R - BEFRARERNEERRG

fraud and money laundering.

5. Our Value Chain

B -

5. EMWEERE

5.1 Supply Chain Management 5.1 REHERE
The Group partners with suppliers and contractors AEFESEEREMATFELZEMNE
who share our sustainability considerations and ethical EEE-—HMNEEENEABRE
standards. In line with our internal guidelines, we E - MBEE MR EBIES - S
conduct regular performance reviews and evaluations FrEGERNEBEREAERNET
on all approved supply chain partners to ensure their EERE N E ST - ARERM
delivery of quality products and services. Through MIRBEEENERMRE - @BiBHRE
developing long-term partnerships with trusted suppliers s EEEANA B EL RS
and contractors, we manage to mitigate ESG-related /a\f’E%Z&F'EH? BB RREET
risks across our supply chain networks whilst enhancing BEAEE AP EIRE gk
our operational efficiency. EREENRR - RRES T M
B ERR o
5.2 Responsible Services 52 BEFHRE

As a responsible service provider, we strive to go
beyond regulatory compliance and deliver high quality
services which exceed customer expectations. As such,
comprehensive assurance processes are in place to set
out supplier performance monitoring, quality control
procedures, employee training and development and
preventive and corrective action plans. The Group's
privacy policy adheres with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to
ensure customer data is only accessible by authorised
personnel on a need-to-know and need-to-use basis
and all confidential data is handled in a safe and secure
manner.
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We have also developed a complaint-handling
mechanism to handle and investigate customer
complaints in a thorough and timely manner. Throughout
the Year, there were no complaint cases relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

Our Community

The Group is committed to the positive development of
the communities we serve, with a special focus on youth
education, healthcare and community empowerment. Through
Easyknit Charitable Foundation and proactive participation
in different charitable activities, we are proud to have made
numerous contributions in support of a more connected and
vibrant society.

During the Year, we continued to offer scholarships to
support the educational needs of disadvantaged youth
through Easyknit Charitable Foundation. Additionally, in
response to the global health crisis caused by the coronavirus
disease, Easyknit Charitable Foundation donated face masks
to the needy. At Easyknit, we believe in equal opportunities
for everyone to showcase their talents and skills. With this
in mind, we supported Run for Paralympians 2020 organised
by the Hong Kong Paralympic Committee and Sports
Association for the physically disabled. During the Year, we
have contributed over HK$3,370,000 to different charitable
foundations and events. We are delighted to be able to
make such a positive impact through these engagements
and donations, and hope to continue to foster growth and
development in these different segments of society.
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7. HKEx KPI Data Table

7. BXFRAREARIEEBRER

A. Environmental
A BE
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BRERBAKREREE
Scope 1 emission Tonnes of CO,e 23.62
HENHERE 17t | ﬁé.‘.?i
Scope 2 emission Tonnes of CO,e 45,56
HE2HHE mE — &t JT—@SE
Scope 3 emission Tonnes of CO,e 0.19
HESHNE mE— &t ﬁ?-?z
B ta; ungm;—nS;l; ;%?ei 69.37
- by intensity Tonnes of CO,e/FTE o
- AEEET M — 41t ﬁiﬁ% ZRIzBIES
A14 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity
BEBRYELHERRRE
Demolition W Tonn
T)?Fe };;@o aste w; e 212538
Tonne/FTE
um,a/%/ A2MES o042
(ieﬁ;i;;efuse ;I%;\)nne 3048
Tonne/FTE 0.95
W, ER2BES
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A21 Energy consumption by type and intensity

RENESNEREERREE

Direct Energy Consumption

HiERERFEE
= in total ‘000 kWh
- TETRE 794
— by intensity ‘000 kWh/FTE 248
- B R TETEE ERA2BES

Indirect Energy Consumption

MR ER
—in total ‘000 kWh 8103
- A EE FEF &
— by intensity ‘000 KWh/FTE 253
- A EET TRERFERE ZR2BES

Total Energy Consumption

HEeRiER
— by intensity ‘000 kWh/FTE 502
- B TETER ER2BES

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity

BEKEREE

Water Consumption

FEKE
= in total m?3
- s ST 462
- by inter\wsity me/FTE oy
- AEEEt NAK/ERERES
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B. Social
B. #&
B1.1 Total workforce by employment type and gender Male Female
REREERMAIBINESAH EElka =g
Full-time Number of people
2 s 20 "
Part-time Number of people 0 0
FB N
Total workforce by employment type and age group 30-50
RERELE FRENHA NEARY sy | PEE |
507%
Fgég%tlme NAugber of people 5 18 g
Part-time Number of people 0 0 0
B A
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender Male Female
BURE S NESRKLLE St =g
% 3.46 0.86
Employee turnover rate by age group 30-50
BERERINA WRERALE s | a0z | e
505%
% 0 4.32 0
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities
EIEREMETHAERLER
= By number Number of people 0
- AABGH A
- By rate % 0
- HcEs
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B2.2 Lost days due to work injury
AIGEAIERH

- Staff Days

-8T B¥
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received
BEERERRBENIRFHE
Number of complaints 4
KFEE
B7.1 Number of concluded cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the company
HERNRRHYEEBENE SHFARHNHE
Number of cases 0
RHHE
B8.2 Resources contributed
ERER

*

The four complain cases were related to cleaning and security o EORES 1;%%1%21["1%13'@_&’\]%%&’97‘%
issues taken place in or managed properties. Immediate BHMRZAMH - RERMBEEDTIHF
repairing works were carried out to address the issues. KO SIBETT -
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8. HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Content Index

SDARRESI

8. MXFT(RE  HEREBEEHE

A. Environmental

A RE
Al Al General Disclosure
64-65
Emissions —REE
A1\ A1 The type of emissions and respective emissions data Due to the business
B e AR EUR nature of the Group,
this KPI is considered
not material.
ERAEENERT
B HERERER
BRBUTERK -
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity 20
RERBLHNERTE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity Due to the business
FELEEERENBREREE nature of the Group,
this KPI is considered
not material.
ERAEENERT
B HERERER
BRABULTERK -
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity 70
ELREERNRERER
A15 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved 64-65
MUK B E R R TR
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved 64-65

HilREAEREEEZMOTE  HEELENERIAE
R
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A2 A2 General Disclosure 64-65
Use of Resources —MREE
A2 A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and
ARG intensity 71
RERESMERRJHEEREEERTE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 7
BREKEREE
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved 64-65
AL R A BT B R TR AR
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved 64-65
HHSKEUER KR LT AERRRE - L RBARKE TS R
PSR R
A25 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if Due to the business
applicable, with reference to per unit produced nature of the Group,
R DRTABENENEER(WER) BEEEM(LE this KPI is considered
not material.
ENREENERT
B HERERER
BRABULTERK °
A3 A3 General Disclosure
: _ 64-65
The Environment and —MREE
Natural Resources A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
A3 environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
RIBERKRARER manage them 64-65
HREBEHHRERRAERNERT ERERKNEEEH
TEMITH
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B. Social
B.#&
Employment and Labour Practices
BEREIESR
B1 B1 General Disclosure
Employment —RIEE 06768
B1 B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
e geographical region 72
BRI EREER  FRANRES S NESEH
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region 72
RIER - FRER RMEEI D HEBRAE
B2 B2 General Disclosure 67
Health and Safety —REE
B2 B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities
Rz BT (R ETIL A AR b 2
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 73
EITHEATIER &
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored 67
W PTER A B R R 2 - A RABRRIT RER A
B3 B3 General Disclosure
Development and —MREE
Training 67
B3
EEPEE
B4 B4 General Disclosure
Labour Standards —MRIR 66-67
B4
STRA

76




KEFREEERART 2020F 1

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERRE

Operating Practices
EEER
B5 B5 General Disclosure
Supply Chain —REE
Management 68
B5
HrEEER
B6 B6 General Disclosure
Product —REE 68769
Responsibility B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received
B6 and how they are dealt with 73
BRI BRI R RS0 3R 8 A A R %
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and monitored 68-69
BB EERRERALBBER - RBRITRER A
B7 . | B7 Genera;DBclosure 67-68
Anti-corruption —REE
B7 B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
k&S brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases 73
REHRHAHZEITASEESREVEBENE SFARGH
218 MR
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored 67-68
by R BRI - URAABRITRER A
Community
#HE
B8 B8 General Disclosure 69
Community —MREE
Investment B8.1 Focus areas of contribution
B8 SIENEE *
HERA B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area 69 73
ERISRMERNERMNS EHAMH) '
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EASYKNIT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to
233, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
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LEFREEENER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter

BRENEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYXZ1EE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significant judgments
and assumptions made by management of the Group
in determining the fair value.

mY EEEEEREEREEATERIRERZHE
MR - HABRNREMEZHER/R —BBRESF
18 o

At 31 March 2020, the fair value of investment
properties was approximately HK$1,265 million (note
15 to the consolidated statement of financial position),
with a fair value loss recognised in profit or loss of
approximately HK$197 million (consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income).
M2020F3H31H - REWELFELNR
1,265,000,000% TT (47 & M B KM zE15) - MER
HER 2 A FEWRE#)/197,000,0008 T (4R & B R E
b2 E R ©

The Group’'s investment properties are stated at
fair value based on valuations performed by an
independent firm of qualified professional property
valuers (the “Valuers"”). Details of the valuation
techniques and key inputs used in the valuations are
disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EEEREMECZATEDRBE IS EREXME
BT ([fEER D EL 2 EESIR - MEMEAZHE
FERFEBRAZFBEREREMBERERMT15RE

& o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNESFTNAEERRETSERE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

BPHREYEGLEZRRRETF R

e  Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
management of the Group about the valuation
techniques, performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgmental areas, key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

WEEME BESEERETHMOHESE WE
MSRE IRACEERRE  FEFIGESHE -
HEMEAZ EEHAREE

e Assessing the integrity of information provided
by management of the Group to the Valuers by
comparing, on a sample basis, details of rentals
to the respective underlying existing lease
agreements;
FRAMBEAALBEEREENCEEFE
marfh EEEERERMHMEEMIERZ TR
'l‘?—t ;

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers; and

AMEREMNER  EOIREEE &

e Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used
by the Valuers and management of the Group
by comparing with relevant market information
with similar properties and assessing the
appropriateness of specific assumption of the
properties by reference to character, location and
other individual factors which affect the valuation
of properties.
FRERERAMERETSERTR2ELEY
FEE2YEEE - LB MEAE R E = AT
FEBRZMEEMEMAERBEMR SEEERE
BRAZFEHAZ AR -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)
BEREASEGE

Impairment assessment of interests in associates
B R ] i Bl (B A

We identified the impairment assessment of
interests in associates as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the Group's interests in
associates in the context of the Group's consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with the
judgements involved in management's impairment
assessment of the interests in associates.

B BEEERBERARIIERY SEEERBNLG
EUMBMERABEXN WHESEREEHHE QA ER
BURVE RT (4 PSR HI K - BRI S R AR
BB A —EMARNETEIE -

The Group's interests in associates represented the
interest in Eminence Enterprise Limited ("Eminence")
with its shares listed in Hong Kong. The carrying value
of the Group's interests in Eminence as at 31 March
2020 amounted to approximately HK$789 million.
EEERBERAZHENRINSUEEER AT
((BWDRER LM 2RENHER - K2020F3H31
B EBSERSILZ#ERHREEL789,000,000 #
IE o

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, interests in associates are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associates.
As disclosed in notes 4 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying value of the Group's
interests in associates exceeded the market value of
the Group's holding therein as at 31 March 2020. The
management performed impairment assessment on
whether the estimated recoverable amounts exceed
the carrying amounts of the interests in associates. No
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss during
the year.
MANARE SRR M 3AT IR R - B R R VIR TR
BRARER  HEe BESXEEBEARRRETHEN
REEBERTZBRRAEMEERA - HEaE
MBHRRMTARI6TIEE X BEXECBERAFER
ZEEESR BE5£EMN2020F3A31AHAEER
ZTE - BEEDHEEARER G IRE 5
AR EREEETREN G - X2020F3A314F
A - WA B BN B NEER -

FARETEE®
How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)

EMNEFNAEERRETSRE)

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of interests in associates included:

P E QR ER S 2 HEREF 2

e Understanding the management's process for
determination of recoverable amount of the
associates;

TREEEETHE ARAKE&E I RT

e  Determining the recoverable amounts of interests
in associates by comparing the value in use
amounts and fair value less cost to disposal;

FiB L BREAEERA T ERE LS KA EE
ERRAER AT E £ 5

e Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
and assumptions used by management in their
estimation of value in use amounts; and
AEEEENGEAEERKAZEIERAR
REzEEN : &

e Performing sensitivity analysis on key inputs to
evaluate the magnitude of their impacts on the
calculation of the recoverable amounts of these
associates.

HEARE A ETRRESN - AT H LR
ERBAKRE S ERGENZEHAN



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)

BEREASEGE

Impairment assessment of loans receivable

FER B 52 8 71

We identified the impairment assessment of loans
receivable as a key audit matter due to the significance
of balances to the Group's consolidated financial
position and involvement of significance management
judgment in evaluating the expected credit losses
("ECL") of the Group’s loans receivable at the end of
the reporting period.

R|EHR - 71 EXEBZERERZEBREERS
BIHEHREEERDE s KB HIE R E R
T BMERIERRER 2 REN G R —BERETS
15 o

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, in making the assessment, the loans
receivable from borrowers are assessed individually by
the management of the Group, based on the financial
background, financial collateral and the historical
settlement records, including the past due dates and
default rates, of each borrower and forward-looking
information that is reasonable, supportable and
available without undue costs or effort. Each borrower
is assigned a risk grading under internal credit ratings
to calculate the ECL, taking into consideration of
the estimates of expected cash shortfalls. At every
reporting date, the financial background, collateral
and the historical settlement records are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

BANARE IS MR AR4FT I TR - IAMEHFTEER - B
SEEREGTMSERAZHBESR  BERARRE
SRR BEaBARENE  UREE - AR
BEARAYEBEEETNEXNARSB H 2AEHE
o RERARBARBEETRES @EHKA—r,& LA
FTERMEEEE - ZRIGHERRSEMR o
WEBH  EFAGTBESR - %Eﬁ?ﬂﬂuu&ﬁ_&*i}i?ﬂ
B E BRI EERNES o
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FAEENEE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BMMETOMEERZETNSHEGE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of loans receivable included:

A9 R E R R ER E 2 BREIEFB1E

e Understanding the Group's policy on granting
loans to its borrowers and the Group’s credit and
impairment assessments including the related
credit control and loan monitoring process;

TR BEEERHERTHERAZEER k &%
EEEMREMEEERBEERFIRERER
ZRRFF

e FEvaluating the management’'s assessment on
the credit quality of the borrowers by examining
records including financial background, current
creditworthiness, collateral and past collection
history of the borrowers;
HEEEEAREHERERAMBESR A
ERMRR ﬁﬁ#ﬁuu&FEE?IK%&Z;&%MHE
ERAEEEER

o Checking the past due dates of outstanding
loans receivable against the loan agreements for
the terms of the loans to identify any significant
change in credit risk or default in loans receivable;
BREERBZE L EXERBEREERRERN
BHRE - BRTEBEREERBRIENER
ZEMEXRES

e Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the impairment
assessment of the loans receivable as at year-
end by checking the historical settlement records
on a sample basis;

RBWMERLENRTHE  AREEERNERS
ERKERBENEAERZER 2 T8I
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)

FAREENEE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(Continued)

BEREASEGE

Impairment assessment of loans receivable (Continued)
FEIR B 5.2 3 (8 718 (48)

At 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of loans °
receivable was approximately HK$237 million, net of
accumulated impairment allowance of approximately

HK$33 million (note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements).

7202053 A31H - EKREFRIREE4237,000,000
BLT(IREWNER2EREEEEBRERED

EHNEFNAEERREET SR

Evaluating the expected cash shortfalls estimated
by the management by checking the expected
cash flows from the realisation of collaterals
received, of any, against publicly available
information; and

BBEARAASEHWA) REEREKERRZ
FRHRERETHERBMT 2 EHRESER
33,000,000 7T (AR & B B Rk M =E21)) o M

e  Assessing the reasonableness of forward-looking
information used by the Group.

5

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

B R B AT A AL R 2 TR0 -
Hft 52

BERAEEFHEMESAT - HBEEE
BHENFHRANGEE  BFEREAHMT
WR LB ZBEN RS -

BAUSEEMBHRRNBERE MR EEME
B BATAHZFEMESERTMEA
HYEERE KM ©

BERMHREMBRROFS - RANE
TEMEEMES  EUBRES  ZEEHEM
EERTEMBHERIRMEEBIETHM
BENBERGFEERBEBREUAFFEEAN
HREULHBER - ERRMCTAITHTIE
MREMABLSEMESFEERERRA -
BB ERE%ZFE A& @ KfVRE
EAIHRE -

EERAEERGRSMBTRER
ARENEE

BARESALEREEERHBARERS
BT B 7 R 25 B R B0 40 ) (L B B R
SRBBEEMATREARERE - L8
ERAAEEAMBREOEE T EESR
B o 42 50 7 18 B A B A B2 SRR AL PR MO
MR -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

83

B % AR

BEERAEEBMRGESMEHRER
AERENET®

ERBEAMBRERE  EFAENE &
SESBELENEN  YEERBRTHE
HEBEKLEEHNER UREAKELE
SBRTER KRIFEFFEL BEEEER
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o
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ENEE
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T 7£ B 70 AR AF 2088 5R T 28 2R BB K S R PR
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BEDE o BRUEIASL - AP IRE T AT A1
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

R MBS IR R AA
ENET®

ERBEEEHEIETENNBES R
PLER T EXHE - RIFTHEXEREE -
BAIIR

B ARH A AR EFE S R M E AR A
MHEBERFEERHRRANAR - &
FARBMITEEFABEELERR - A
NEBRFTRNEENRIERE  (ERAK
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ERAEES 2 £ - B AREZERREAR
*’Fﬁﬁ%@lﬁ’]éﬁfa%&ﬁ%LE’]ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂi
BE B IR RS AR T G B B AR SH R R EY
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ENEIEF 1HEW]I§FLT E?K.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Leung Chui Shan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

3 June 2020
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REBEEREMEEWRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(o2 FET FEr
Revenue EES
Rental income A WA 38,957 54,892
Interest income from loan financing KEEXREFSWA 23,487 18,591
Building management BFER 1,189 984
Property sales MEIEE = 755,880
Total revenue BMEER 5 63,633 830,347
Cost of properties sold and services rendered  $5& 12 I fR i AR 7% A K (2,427) (476,455)
Gross profit EH 61,206 353,892
Other income, gains and losses Hip A - s ke 11,009 17,511
Distribution and selling expenses SN (13,009) (53,044)
Administrative expenses THFAX (57,305) (60,226)
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of BEMEZ ATEED
investment properties (B#8) Wz 15 (196,888) 126,430
Write-down on properties held for sale BEREWEZRE (578) =
Write-down on properties held for BIERERRWEZRNE
development for sale 23 (28,573) -
Loss on changes in fair value of BRFEGFAERZ
financial assets at fair value through SREEZNTE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") 2IEE (28,824) (21,794)
Release on disposal of debt instruments EREEREATERTA
at fair value through other Hp2mksy
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") EHIA 1,051 58
(Impairment loss) reversal of impairment sREE (REBE) RESE
loss on financial assets: R
- Loans receivable, net - FRIER 21 (29,256) (273)
- Debt instruments at FVTOCI -BATERFAEMEE
ks EBIA 19 (126) (1,505)
- Other debt instrument at amortised cost - BB ER AT ECEA
BEIA 20 (4,353) (3,523)
- Other receivables - R (1,819) =
Share of results of associates AN 16 (55,676) 12,593
Loss on deemed partial disposal of IR AT S5 & R RIEH
equity interests in associates PR A 5 B 2 5 1B 16 (130,957) =
Gain on bargain purchase of additional RURBE BN & N\ R 2
interests in associates ZEWEYE 16 200,462 =
Share of results of a joint venture —RAEERAERNIOER (1,678) (4)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRRB LR W 40(a) = 7,913
Finance costs BB 7 (23,622) (23,043)
(Loss) profit before taxation PR AT (B518) A A 8 (298,936) 354,985
Taxation A 10 877 (39,171)
(Loss) profit for the year REE(ER)EF (298,059) 315,814
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GEREEREMZEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

2020 2019
Note HK$000 HK$'000
(o3 FET FET
Other comprehensive (expense) income  HA 2 (B x) A
Items that may be reclassified subsequently — BE## AIE¢EFT A2 A28 2
to profit or loss: EH -
Share of other comprehensive (expense) AMEHERR Z EMEE
income of associates: (FAWA :
Share of translation reserve of associates DIEEE N A2 (7,965) (6,527)
Share of FVTOCI reserve of associates DEBERAZEATE
STARM R E K S (985) 189
Reclassification of translation reserve to REBREERATEL
profit or loss upon deemed partial RAEHERERAIHD
disposal of interests in associates BaRENIEEERL
without loss of significant influence B L 15 1,350 =
Reclassification of FVTOCI reserve to REBREEATEL
profit or loss upon deemed partial BALEREARIHD
disposal of interests in associates ExREN > BE2EE2
without loss of significant influence BAYEF AEMEZE
W (36) -
(7,636) (6,338)
Release on disposal of debt instruments at B ERAFEF AL 2
FVTOCI mla e BB TA (1,051) 191
Change in fair value of debt instruments at ~ HAFEFAEM2EREZ
FVTOCI EBTAZ A TES (343) -
Impairment loss on debt instruments at BATEFARLMEERE 2
FVTOCI included in profit or loss, net BERIAZFRAEBERE
FRET 126 1,505
Other comprehensive expense for the year ~ RNEE 7 E2EF X (8,904) (4,642)
Total comprehensive (expense) income AEEzZ2EEIBA
for the year Fk (306,963) 311,172
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: AEE(BR)EFE
Owners of the Company ARRIRR (297,755) 315,959
Non-controlling interest JEiERR R A (304) (145)
(298,059) 315,814
Total comprehensive (expense) income AEEZEEIBA
for the year attributable to: o1
Owners of the Company N/NETE (306,659) 311,317
Non-controlling interest JEIERR A A (304) (145)
(306,963) 311,172

Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share FREARREE (5B AN 12 HK$(3.26)8 7T HK$3.52/ 7T
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At 31 March 2020 /202035315

2020 Annual Report

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BENRER 13 79,146 83,770
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 1,231 =
Investment properties REME 15 1,265,040 1,458,800
Interests in associates BN Bl 16 788,883 671,921
Interest in a joint venture —BEENAES 17 62 1,740
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFAERZEREE 18 100,162 79,000
Debt instruments at FVTOC] BATEFAEMERKE 2
BEHIA 19 25,700 34,614
Other debt instruments at amortised cost REEK A E 2 EtET
TAH 20 15,215 31,712
Loans receivable U E R 21 13,278 27,785
Intangible asset BV EE 22 500 500
Deferred tax assets EREREEE 30 2,632 =
Deposits ®e 205 205
2,292,054 2,390,047
Current assets MBEE
Properties held for development for sale FIELEERYE 23 1,984,981 1,932,432
Properties held for sale FELEME 118,603 119,181
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFAERZEREE 18 72,696 105,666
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BRATEFAEMEZEKEZ
EHTH 19 3,843 11,762
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEWFHIE 24 9,199 96,811
Tax recoverable EEMEEDE 530 331
Loans receivable W E TR 21 223,473 178,889
Bank balances and cash RITREBLIES 25 117,920 191,670
2,531,245 2,636,742
Assets classified as held for sale SEARBELEZEE 20 34,830 =
2,566,075 2,636,742
Current liabilities @Jﬁfé
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNFIR 26 52,162 41,932
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder — JEff —{i7 JEH2A% A% R & %8 27 90,348 101,009
Tax payable LCHMIE\ 50,351 50,514
Lease liabilities HEAR 29 851 =
Secured bank borrowings BHEBRTEE 28 823,275 752,551
1,016,987 946,006
Net current assets MENE S 1,549,088 1,690,736
Total assets less current liabilities BEEBRRDEE 3,841,142 4,080,783
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e BB AR R &

At 31 March 2020 7#2020%3531H

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(o3 FAET FET

Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Secured bank borrowings BIKRRITEE 28 604,911 533,433
Lease liabilities HEaE 29 410 =
605,321 533,433
3,235,821 3,647,350

Capital and reserves BEARGE
Share capital N 31 9,132 9,132
Reserves [ 3,227,138 3,538,363
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR &l 2 A A JE{h S 3,236,270 3,647,495
Non-controlling interest RS (449) (145)
3,235,821 3,647,350

The consolidated finan

cial statements on pages 86 to 233 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 3
June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

TSE WING CHIU RICKY

K
DIRECTOR
EE

BEEEN2020F6 A3 HhE R IXEZEKRESE
BE23BEZGAUBERE TR THWNESER
REE

KOON HO YAN CANDY
BEAR
DIRECTOR
EF
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 220203 531H 1L F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRAREAEE
Property Non-
Share Share  Capital Translation Special Contributed FVTOCI revaluation ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium  reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total interest Total
RAVE
HARMRE  UEER R
Bx  BROEE RAGE ENRE  RHEE  EEER W GE e ZitaA it B -
HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HKSOO0  HK$000  HK$000 HKS$000  HK$ 000 HKS$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
Tér  TEr  TET T T AT TEr T AT TEr fEr  TAr
(note a) fnote b) fnote ¢/ fnote d
(Hiita) (etn)  (Wite) (Wiztd)
At 1 April 2018 R2018%E4A18 7942 218330 196,565 3,634 9,800 200931 - 69,872 2459471 3,186,551 - 3186551
Release on disposal of debt BREERATETA
instruments at FVTOC A2k ER
I - - - - - - 191 - - 191 - 191
Impairment loss on debt SABRTZRATE
instruments at FVTOCI FAR2ENE
included in profitor loss, net LEBIEZ
FREER - = S S S = 1,505 S - 1505 - 150
Share of other comprehensive AEBEATL LR
(expense) income of associates (R = = S (6,527) = = 189 = - (63 - (633
Profit loss) for the year RERETEE) - - = = = = = = 315959 315959 (145 315814
Total comprehensive (expense) TR 2ERR)
income for the year %t - - - (6,527) - - 1,885 = 315969 311317 (145) 311,172
2018 final dividend paid N18FEEXAAH
fhote 11) REMitn) - - - - - - - - (4566)  (4,566) S ]
Issue of new shares (note 37/ BORR W31 1190 53550 = = = = = = - BATH0 - B0
Transaction costs attributable ¥ikexa
toissue of new shares A - (547) S - - - - - = (547) - (547)
At 31 March 2019 #201953A318 9132 271333 196565 (2893 9,800 200,937 1,885 69,872 2,770,864 3547495 (145) 3,547,350
Release on disposal of debt BREERATEIA
instruments at FVTOCI Eth2ENE BE
I8 - - - - - - (1,051) - - (1,051) - (1,051)
Change in fair value of debt BATEIALBZE
instruments at FVTOC Wiz EBIAY
NFEEY - - - - - - (343) - - (343) - (343)
Impairment loss on debt SABRTZRATE
instruments at FVTOCI FAL2ENE
included in profitor loss, net LEBIEZ
FRESE - - - - - - 126 - - 126 - 126
Share of other comprehensive HMEBEATEBRE
expense of associates 53 - - - (6,615) - - (1,021) = - (7636) - (7636)
Loss for the year rFEEE - S = = = = = = (297,755)  (297,755) (304)  (298,059)
Total comprehensive expense for ~ AFE 22 ER L 4%
the year - - - (6,615) - - (2,289) - (297,755)  (306,659) (304)  (306,963)
2019 final dividend paid WIIEEELARE
fhote 11) REMin) = - - - - - - - (4566)  (4566) - (4566)
At 31 March 2020 H202053A318 9132 271333 196,565 (9,508) 9,800 220,937 (404) 69,872 2468543 3,236,270 (449) 3,235,821
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes:

(a)

(d)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital of the Company in October 2006.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the
companies forming the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
prior to the listing of the Company's shares in 1995.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising
from the reduction of certain reserves of the Company in August
2004.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group includes (i) the gain
on revaluation of certain leasehold properties of the Group, (i) share
of the gain on revaluation of leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment of the Group's former associates, both arising from the
transfer of the Group's leasehold properties or associates’ leasehold
land and property, plant and equipment to investment properties
in prior years, net of (iii) the transfer to accumulated profits upon
deemed disposal of subsidiaries in prior years.

GEREDEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

Wizt

(a) AEBZEARFEBRREN20065F10A KA
BT EE A 2 #EBR o

b) FEEZEHNFERREAAREETRAEE
SRR AR PN AR R I (IR IR AN X Bl £ #1995 4F
EtHAZEEER B TS ARZRAEER
BB Z5R -

() AEBEZEHBHRARANRFN20045F8 A Hl
WETREZER -

(d AKEZYMEEEFERHREOARESTHEY
ME BB - (D EASERE 2 AR Z
MO HRBERYE  BMERREZEMBR
g7 BERBEFEAEEZBAYENLE
RAZ B LFIARYE - BFE MR EEE
EREVEME - MRIENREETFENES
HEMBARREREREN -



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

Effect of unrealised exchange difference

AERERERCTE

1,338

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities RELEFH RAETE
(Loss) profit before taxation B A (B598) & 7 (298,936) 354,985
Adjustments for: R
Interest income MEBRA (32,682) (27,927)
Interest expense FIEHX 23,622 23,043
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERIETE
equipment 4,656 4,675
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEEZIE 1,266 =
Dividend income from listed EFREZREBA
investments (2,282) (7,409)
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of BEMEZ AFEE
investment properties BB k) 196,888 (126,430)
Write-down on properties held for sale BIEREMEZRE 578 =
Write-down on properties held for BIELERRWEZRE
development for sale 28,573 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEREE
equipment 2B = 125
Loss on changes in fair value of BRFEGFAERZ
financial assets at FVTPL SREELATE
2HEHE 28,824 21,79
Release on disposal of debt instruments RN ERATEF AL
at FVTOCI EEBEEBTA (1,051) (68)
Impairment loss on debt instruments at BATERAEMER
FVTOCI WszBHEIAZ
REER 126 1,505
Impairment loss on other receivables H IR 2 RERE 1,819 =
Impairment loss on other debt instruments TRE AR ANET B 2 BAh
at amortised cost EB TR RERSE 4,353 3,523
Impairment loss on loans receivable, B ER 2 FRERE
net 29,256 273
Share of results of associates BENRERDMEE 55,676 (12,593)
Loss on deemed partial disposal of equity IR A B & R AIEM IR
interests in associates BEERER 130,957 =
Gain on bargain purchase of additional RYEEER NG & 1 R e 2R By
interests in associates 2 EBEWERE (200,462) -
Share of results of a joint venture —BEERREENHEE 1,678 4
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B ARz W =

(7,913)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(o3 FAET FET
Operating cash flows before movementsin ~ &&E&E & EEA1 v
working capital RERERE (25,803) 227,597
Increase in properties held for development  ¥{EH EXE ML N
for sale (57,245) (508,589)
Decrease in properties held for sale BIEHEMFERD - 476,772
Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFAERL
TREERD 64,967 125,511
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 RHEMEWFIER D 77,470 95,048
(Increase) decrease in loans receivable FEME TR L) R (74,275) 33,197
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 RE M ERFRIER (4,995) (15,841)
Decrease in contract liabilities BHEERD - (11,554)
Cash (used in) from operations (AR)RELEZRE (19,881) 422,141
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREEFGEH (2,117) (18,181)
Dividend received B E 3,319 5,114
Interest received from loan financing RAEEFBEFSMWA 23,487 18,591
Net cash from operating activities RELL B R FE 4,808 427,665
Cash flows from investing activities RERERBH RAEHTE
Acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL BARATEFABRZ
CREE (116,001) (109,583)
Acquisition of additional interest of WIS R AR
associates (110,769) -
Acquisition of other debt instrument at BAREEKAGEZ
amortised cost HMEBTA (16,015) (19,575)
Additions of investment properties REREME (3,128) (2,773)
Purchase of property, plant and BAME  BER&H
equipment (32) (93)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERATEFTABRZZ S/
at FVTPL BEZENE 43,564 -
Proceeds from redemption of debt BRI AT E AR
instruments at FVTOCI 2EMECEBEIAY
RS 5IA 16,040 3,915
Deposits received for disposal of other debt  H E3R# Ak &t 8 7 H fth
instrument at amortised cost BREIAEZEWES 15,480 =
Other interest received H R EMA 14,318 11,957
Net cash outflow on acquisition/disposal BRE LERELA
of assets and liabilities through BA/HEEER
acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries BEZHERILFE 40(a) - (268,086)
Acquisition of debt instruments at FVTOCI BARRTE AL
PEREZEBIA - (50,042)
Addition of interest in a joint venture b IF= =N = (1,744)
Proceeds from redemption of financial EREAFENABRZ
assets at FVTPL SREEMEBNE = 95,484

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HENE  BEREEZ
and equipment P{S3IE = 404
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mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Net cash used in investing activities ARKEES 2R 53 (156,543) (340,136)
Cash flows from financing activities REREES 2 RENE
Bank borrowings raised BEERTEER 257,803 359,765
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder ~— —fi 3EEAR AR 58 7 457 6,939 101,009
Repayment of bank borrowings ERRITEE (115,966) (522,848)
Interest paid BRAFIE (47,284) (33,782)
Repayment to a non-controlling shareholder {818 T IEH AR AL 3R (17,600) =
Dividend paid EMRE (4,566) (4,566)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEHEEE (1,236) -
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENHAEAEFE (105) =
Proceeds from issue of new shares BT 2 T3 20R = 54,740
Transaction costs attributable for issue of BITHR 2 R B
new shares - (547)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities RE(ARNBEEE
ReHE 77,985 (46,229)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash Be kERBE S (RD)E M5
equivalents (73,750) 41,300
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FURERFRRE
of the year 191,670 150,370
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the FRBERZERRS
year, represented by bank balances and ER{TESBERS
cash 117,920 191,670
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; the
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company's principal subsidiaries and
associates are set out in notes 41 and 16, respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) = Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 20152017 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

—R&ER
XEEREBMERARN(AAT] A5
AREMBARGEAAEE)EER
EERRTAERE BEREEAT -
HRHEEEBEXHHARDE (B
R ER LT - ARRZ EMHEER
iR EBEE SRR AR ATE
$ | — B PO -

RemBRRoRABITIENHKS)) - 75
RERAZINEEEH -

RRABT—EREER AR - KAFEZ
FTENBAREBE AR ETERE
HE D BIER M E41 516 ©

FER TR R BT E R M

== =

[ = Ry P

T2 6F B2 38 ) A RO T RT R AR S
BBV BREEL

RAFE  AEEDHEXERATIHE
ABEIMAE(HESEAE])MEM
ZHR] RABIERT BB B RE £

ERMBREEN HE

£1658

BEBBERBHRE FMEHEECTEEER

REZEYE)

- RREE3R

EANBREEN . BB BREER

=5l 2015F £2017F
B FELH#

BAERBREENY ABEMECEMNEE

BRI

BEGTERE19% FHEUEET - BREE

A ]

ERGEAF28S NYEAARAELEY
ZIEFT KR
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B B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”
and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4
“"Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease"” and not apply this standard to contracts that were
not previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore,
the Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
April 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16
in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

FERF T RZIET BB
& ZE Al @)

JR 2N F FE 5 1) 4 R A9 R AT B AR A8
B BYIREER @)

BTXAaES » RAFEERBI R
RIETEEMBERELENHAFEE LB
EFEAKENTBRRERRE R, &L
HBREEAVBEREAMEBRRELEEX

B o
=

=

2.1 BBREHEERIE165HE ]

AEERAFECERERABTEY
BHELERFE 165 - EEP KRS
ZHIF16REMK BB G EAFE
175R[HE | AR RE -

AEBECEREUNITEEE Bk
RIERAEEG S ERF17TREER
(BRMBEHRERBERES)-RES
ARBEELZHEERREEEIB#A
SHEENANERBEMEHREE
A 165% - M I & 5 55 AT 0 R AR
RERHEENANERAZER -
It AEEYEBHFER ERE
HEHREFENSL -

FRH2019F4 A1 B 2 R AT LSk fE
ANEHAME  ARBERFHEH
TR HERREEBMBRE
#E R 55 1655 P 8 A0 AR E e AR A & A9
B °
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e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERFTIRLETEBITIE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG R E 2Bl @)

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are A ZS G 08 ) 4 Y FTRT R 48
mandatorily effective for the current year R BBV BEHREER @
(Continued)
2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) 2.1 BEEUBHEEAE165HE
(&)
As a lessee tEABAENA

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 April 2019.

As at 1 April 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to
the related lease liabilities by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)
(ii). Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening accumulated profits and
comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective
lease contracts:

(i)  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application;
and

(i) used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as
at date of initial application in determining the lease
term for the Group's leases with extension and
termination options.

AEFEEBPERE BT IFRELE
AIZE165: » Rt ERNEXEAH
Hi(2019F4 A1 B)FER »

R2019%F4 818 @ KREBMEREM
ZHEAE  WERERBBMG
2 A B 2516.C8(b) (i) 57 1B 53R
HERERHEEAENSBERME
RAEEE -VIREAZAZAEMNE
EEBRYRGANBEERETIEEL
BRER EFE -

RBEBIET  ERAFTEVHH
SFEAFE 165 H T KEBCEWE
B ARECRERNEEEEL L
AIRBEEEEHERFITROER
REMENHERBUTHSER
BREENEEEHESNERE
BR)

) MREXEABHPFSERESE
ERMEBRMRERRAN © &

(i) EREVRERBEMZEER
BN FRETAEEHGIT
HRKEEERE HECHE
FH -
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B B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group
has applied incremental borrowing rates of the relevant
group entities at the date of initial application. The
weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied by

the relevant group entities is 4.7 %.

2. ER#TIRZETEBUE
& ZE Al @)

JR 2N F FE 5 1) 4 R A9 R AT B AR A8
B BYIREER @)

2.1 BB BHEERF165[HE ]
(&)
TERAA (&)
RERMDELAREREZHERR
HERER  AKECEARIS
EREHHEEEERRZEREER
FE - HHEASE N FEMR 2 i
FHREBENERATY%

At 1 April
2019
R2019%F
4A1H
HK$'000
FEITL
Operating lease commitments disclosed MR2019F3A31HEHEZ
as at 31 March 2019 R E AR 1,989
Add: Extension options reasonably certain to be Al : fLHA 7 HEF| 2 A B b FER
exercised 1 & 1 A A 559
2,548
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant MR2019F4 A1 HERABBM KRS
incremental borrowing rates relating to AERE 165 HERELEHE
operating leases recognised upon application B BRI B IE I 8 AR R B3R A
of HKFRS 16 as at 1 April 2019 HEaE 2,390
Analysed as: PaRiv=1
Current mE 1,235
Non-current FEmED 1,155
2,390
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e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERFTIRLETEBITIE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG R E 2 Bl @)

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are RAF E @ £ BT R &1
mandatorily effective for the current year R EBMBEHREER @
(Continued)
2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) 2.1 BBUBEEERE 165 HE ]
&)
As a lessee (Continued) TERZAMA (B)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 April FRAEEER2019F481BMER
2019 comprises the following: ERENT&IE :
Right-of-use
assets
EHEEE
HK$'000
FET

Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases B &8 B #4535 X8 55 1655 i

recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 ERELEHEFENEHEEE 2,390
By class: BRI
Leasehold land and buildings MA T RETF 2,390
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B B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 April 2019. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

FERF T RZIET BB
& ZE Al @)

JR 2N F FE 5 1) 4 R A9 R AT B AR A8
B BYIREER @)

2.1 ZEEBUBHEEREI165[HE
&)
TEREATHAN (4B)
2 N2019F4 A1 B NZEA B EIR
NEERNSBIEL AT AR - W
EHARZEYTENIER o

Carrying Carrying

amounts amounts

previously under

reported HKFRS 16

at 31 March at 1 April

2019 Adjustments 2019

BRMBRE

ZRFE165E T

S ATR201945F H2019F

3A31BHE 4818

K ERMEE AR HEREE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FETL FETL FEITL
Non-current assets kRBEE

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE = 2,390 2,390

Current liabilities REBEE

Lease liabilities HEEE = 1,235 1,235
Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Lease liabilities HEAE = 1,155 1,155

Note:For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
March 2020, movements in working capital have been
computed based on opening consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 April 2019 as disclosed above.

Bt - BERBIEREEEE202043
A31BLEFENREEEESH
REMEMS  EEESE
B E XA ER20196F4 A1
AR BRSSO RETE -
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e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERFTIRLETEBITIE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG R E 2 Bl @)

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are A ZS G 08 ) 4 Y FTRT R 48
mandatorily effective for the current year R BBV BEHREER @
(Continued)
2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) 2.1 BEEUBHEEAE165HE
(&)
As a lessor TEBH A

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16, the Group is not required to make any adjustment
on transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor
but account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS
16 from the date of initial application and comparative
information has not been restated.

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental
deposits received were considered as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied under
trade and other payables. Based on the definition of
lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right-of-use assets and were
adjusted to reflect the discounting effect at transition.
However, the adjustment to present value is insignificant
at the date of initial application, 1 April 2019.

The directors of the Company consider the application of
HKFRS 16 as a lessor has had no material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020 and the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2020.

HRBBWEMEENE 16528
BIR AR EEAREESRE®
AEBESHBEAZBEELERHE
X G BEemiAERABERRE
BUBHREEF16RHLZEHE
AERMELREHATET

ERABEMBRE L1652
Al - BEWEE ARIETH ER SRR
RBEEENE1TREES LA
i A FRIR TS B A O AR & 0 A R AN
1% - REBEBFAMBMEERF 16
FHHEMNRNESR - HEEE T
EHRERREERBONK  AE
T T B AR BGE R BT R
& - AT - HERFEAZH (20195
4R818) - BIRENARBTRE -

AAREERE  EFRAEEVBER
HEREAEB16RIERDHEALREE
REE2020F3A318 IEFE 24
B EHER MR 2020F3831H 2
REMBRAREBERTE -
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B B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERFTIRLETEBITIE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG R E 2Bl )

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are FA 7 6F B 08 o A R FT T R 848

mandatorily effective for the current year R EBMBHREER @

(Continued)

2.2 Amendments to HKAS 28 “Long-term Interests 22 EEBEERFE28% [ RBE
in Associates and Joint Ventures” RAREELEZRA#Hm |2

1£aT

The amendments clarify that the Group applies HKFRS ZEEIERASEB R LM B R
9 “Financial Instruments”, including the impairment SRAFW SR T A EAREE
requirements, to long-term interests in an associate or ARG ECENRIER B
joint venture to which the equity method is not applied WERE - HTEREREWEEK
that form part of the net investment in the investee. RIEHRWITEFEE - o £
Furthermore, in applying HKFRS 9 to long-term interests, JERBAEYBRELENFEIRERH
the Group does not take into account adjustments to Rl ANEETEFREBEE
their carrying amount required by HKAS 28 “Investments ERE28RIMEEE AR RE B
in Associates and Joint Ventures” (i.e. adjustments to RIEE TR EE RE AR R
the carrying amount of long-term interests arising from RRABSTENFE28RELED S
the allocation of losses of the investee or assessment of fie 4% 8 % 5 B 18 SR E 5T B & HA
impairment in accordance with HKAS 28). The application RRREEMNAE) - ARASER
is not expected to have impact as the Group's exiting B S BOREZEBIEELH
accounting policies are consistent with the requirements E—H AU EHZERASR

clarified by the amendments. EfI2 -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform?*

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, "the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards”, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

FERF T RZIETE BT
&5 ZE Al @)

A=A

EEMERDARERZHFTRE
BRI BRI EREEL
AEEWEIBFIEA AT EB/MER K
ERB T RSB BRBHRE L
Al :

EATBHEEN  RREY
E17%

EANBREEN  EBNER?
FEIR 1B

BAPBREEN  FEREERE

F5 - BAEDH
ERBEIRNEE

HBIREER

FTRZIEFT

BREMBHREED REFEEBENFLA
FIORREEGt LOECHAMEAELE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 "Definition of a Business"

The amendments:

add an optional concentration test that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The election
on whether to apply the optional concentration test is
available on transaction-by-transaction basis;

clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set
of activities and assets must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs;
and

narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by
focusing on goods and services provided to customers
and by removing the reference to an ability to reduce
costs.

The amendments are applied prospectively to all business
combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition
date is on or after the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after 1 April 2020. Starting from 1 April 2020, the Group
will apply the new definition of business and may elect to
apply the optional concentration test for future acquisition
transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 "Definition of
Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations in
making materiality judgments. In particular, the amendments:

o include the concept of "obscuring" material information in
which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating the
information;

e replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
‘could influence" to "could reasonably be expected to
influence"; and

o include the use of the phrase "primary users" rather than
simply referring to "users" which was considered too
broad when deciding what information to disclose in the
financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 April 2020. The application of the amendments
is not expected to have significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group but may affect the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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B B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the "New Framework") and the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards

The New Framework:
° reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

e introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights
and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader
than the definition it replaces, but does not change the
distinction between a liability and an equity instrument;

e discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

e states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in exceptional
circumstances other comprehensive income will be
used and only for income or expenses that arise from a
change in the current value of an asset or liability; and

° discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the
reporting entity and combined financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the New
Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to the
previous versions of the framework. These amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2020, with earlier application permitted. Other than specific
standards which still refer to the previous versions of the
framework, the Group will rely on the New Framework on
its effective date in determining the accounting policies
especially for transactions, events or conditions that are not
otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for investment
properties and certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, at the end of the reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 "Share-based Payment", leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of
HKFRS 16), and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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B B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combinations
under common control, are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’'s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

Acquisition of subsidiaries not constituting
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and the financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance
of the purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at
the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other than profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or
joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant associate or joint venture.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the asset is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of such asset and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell except for financial assets within the scope of
HKFRS 9 which continue to be measured in accordance with
the accounting policies as set out in respective sections.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

The Group recognises revenue from property sales at a point
in time when legal title of property has been transferred to
customer, being when the customer has the ability to direct
the use of the property and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits of the property.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The Group recognises building management service income
over time. The progress towards complete satisfaction
of a performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services transferred to the
customer to date relative to the remaining services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group's performance
in transferring control of services.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises property sales commissions as an
asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

3. FEETHHER®w

HE@®

A EBEREAMEA (RIFHZ2098 8
BREBHBREERFE165)
RIEZE#E & RIAVAE K B8 75
HRBeesHERI M —ExLZ EEME
EXFEEROINAR - AKEIREE
EMOaMBHBLIEBRMNEERKAR
FEOHESELESEEET S IFHEES
DHEE  BRESEREMEHLIMIE
HEBTFHOEANMENIBEER
AR BRIEER DA RE R SEAETT

FHEARIY ERE LD WEE B
BOF -

EHELE
EREEENKABYE

HERBEMVIATESHE

s HEMRHBAHHZANNEMEE
IR R EWR B EM S KRS
I

s AEHEEANEFNVMEERER:
54

e MREAKEEHREMFKBKERE
EEEMEMMASEREE
V1R B & RGP Z AL
o

EREEERKAREEMNRFHTEM
MEBRENERETIE - UHHEE
SREMNTAENTEETHE

EREEERAMGAAERFRNIEE
HIR P ERE E IR EARVERHRITE -



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 April 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered
as integral part of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract
is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component on the
basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For partial disposals of associates that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence, the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are charged as expenses when
employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contribution.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before taxation
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interest in a joint venture, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-
of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal
portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building
(Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use assets”
(upon application of HKFRS 16) or “prepaid lease payments”
(if any) (before application of HKFRS 16) in the consolidated
statement of financial position except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assets and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for the properties
transferred from property, plant and equipment, which are
measured at fair value at date of transfer. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible asset

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life that is acquired
separately is carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset other
than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset other
than goodwiill (Continued)

In addition, corporate assets are allocated to individual cash
generating units when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established.
The Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset other
than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale which are intended
to be sold upon completion of development are classified as
current assets. Except for the leasehold land element which
is measured at cost model in accordance with the accounting
policies of right-of-use assets upon the application of HKFRS
16, properties held for development for sale are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on
a specific identification basis including allocation of the related
development expenditure incurred and where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make the sales.

Properties held for development for sales are transferred to
properties held for sale upon completion.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are
classified under current assets. They are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business is presented as revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by selling and collecting contractual
cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss. All other changes
in the carrying amount of these debt instruments
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of FVTOCI reserve.
Impairment allowances are recognised in profit or loss
with corresponding adjustment to other comprehensive
income without reducing the carrying amounts of these
debt instruments. When these debt instruments are
derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes interest earned but
excludes any dividend earned on the financial asset and
is included in the other income, gains and losses line
item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“"ECL") model on financial assets (including
loans receivable, debt instruments at FVTOCI, other debt
instruments at amortised cost, trade and other receivables
and bank balances) which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12 months ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are made based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to debtors, general economic conditions and
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL for trade receivables is assessed
individually.

For all other assets, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
borrower or debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the borrower's or
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the borrower or debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environments of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the borrower’s or debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (1) it has a low risk of default, (2) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (3) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers the credit risk of the
debt instrument mainly with reference to external credit
rating of “investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flow used for determining the ECL
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1
April 2019) or HKAS 17 (prior to 1 April 2019).

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped on the basis below:

° Nature of financial instruments;
o Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of loans receivable where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account. For investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve without reducing the carrying amount
of these debt instruments. Such amount represents the
changes in the FVTOCI reserve in relation to accumulated

loss allowance.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire
or, when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets to another

entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or

loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, amount
due to a non-controlling shareholder and secured bank
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and only
when the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the management
has reviewed the Group's investment properties portfolios
and concluded that while the Group’s investment properties
located in Hong Kong are depreciable, they are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in determining the Group's
deferred taxation arising from these investment properties
located in Hong Kong, the management determined that the
presumption that these investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered through sale is not
rebutted.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

Investment properties

The Group's investment properties are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated
team to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
key inputs for fair value measurements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers to perform valuation of the
Group’s investment properties. At the end of the reporting
period, the management works closely with the independent
firm of qualified professional property valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key
inputs for fair value measurements. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.
Information about the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in determining the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties is disclosed in note 15.

Estimated impairment of interests in associates

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying value of the Group's
interests in associates exceeded the market value of the
Group's holding therein. In view of indication of impairment,
the Group performed impairment assessment on interests in
associates. Determining whether impairment loss should be
recognised requires an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the relevant associate which is the higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. In cases where the
estimated recoverable amount is less than the carrying value
of the Group's interests in associates, impairment may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of the interests
in associates amounted to HK$788,883,000 (2019:
HK$671,921,000). No impairment loss has been made as at
31 March 2020 (2019: nil).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment assessment of loans receivable

Management regularly reviews the impairment assessment
and evaluates the ECL of the loans receivable. Appropriate
impairment allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the loans receivable as at the reporting
date with the one as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the loans receivable from borrowers
are assessed individually by the management of the Group,
based on the financial background, collateral and the historical
settlement records, including past due dates and default
rates, of each borrower and forward-looking information that
is reasonable, supportable and available without undue cost
or effort.

Each borrower is assigned a risk grading under internal credit
ratings to calculate the ECL, taking into consideration of the
estimates of expected cash shortfalls which are driven by
estimates of possibility of default and the amount and timing
of cash flows that are expected from foreclosure on the
collaterals (if any) less the costs of obtaining and selling the
collaterals. At every reporting date, the financial background,
collateral and the historical settlement records are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s loans receivable
are disclosed in notes 39 and 21 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties
held for development for sale/properties held for
sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the Group's properties held for development for sale/
properties held for sale, which are situated in Hong Kong
and with an aggregate sum of HK$2,103,584,000 (2019:
HK$2,051,613,000) at 31 March 2020, with reference to
current market environment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may exceed its net realisable value. Appropriate write-
down for estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in
profit or loss when the net realisable value is below cost. The
estimates of net realisable value are determined based on
the evidence available at the time the estimates are made,
less the anticipated costs to completion (where appropriate).
Actual realised amount may differ from estimates, resulting
in a decrease or an increase in the net realisable value of
the properties held for development for sale/properties held
for sale and additional write-down or reversal of write-down
previously recognised may be required.
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5.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of the amounts received
or receivable in respect of rental income and building
management from property leasing, interest income from
loan financing and property sales during the year.

Revenue from sales of properties was recognised at a point
in time when the completed property was transferred to
customers, being at the point that the customer obtained
the control of the completed property and the Group had
present right to payment and collection of the consideration
was probable. The Group received deposits from customers
pursuant to the payment terms of the sale and purchase
agreement.

For building management services, the Group bills a fixed
rate for services provided on a monthly basis and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and that corresponds directly with the value to the
customers of Group's performance completed. The Group
acts as principal and is primarily responsible for providing the
building management services to the property owners, who
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit provided
by the Group's performance as the Group performs, the
Group recognises the fee received or receivable from property
owners as its revenue over time and all related building
management costs as its cost of services. The Group elected
to apply the practical expedient by recognising revenue in the
amount to which the Group has right to invoice. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Rental income and interest income from loan financing
fall outside the scope of HKFRS 15 and the revenue from
contracts with customers for the year ended 31 March 2020
amounted to HK$1,189,000 (2019: HK$756,864,000).

LR
BETRFARAHANERSWAR
BFER - RAERBANBLARY
¥ BIRENHIE 2 B8 -

MEHEREREZRNEERTEP
FHER - RIS EERYE A
EE AR B A WE ER - LA A
BEENR(E - ARERBEEEHHENN
IR TP WEIRE

REFEERBME - AKEIZ A
RERBUREEER - LIRAEEE
REARRVERHENEEEFNE
HMEENSHEERNE  ARBIEAZ
AATERERAXIREBFTEER
% EEREKESOBFEARSEE DR
Hrod s - At ASEEREERD K
SEREETER /S - ARFAAEH
BTEERARRSRIGAAR - REBIEE
RARITRERE  AAEFPRARE
SHEERWES - REBEBFEMBERE LR
FIMHAF  PEEXFEREREE
HIH) X (B W AR EE

HeWARKEERMENFEWAR
BBV HREERFE1GHMEE -
HZE2020F3A3MHIEFERKRERTF
AHIEB1,189,000/8 7L (20194
756,864,000 7T) °
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's chief executive officer,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"),
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered
or services provided. This is also the basis of organisation,
whereby the management has chosen to organise the Group

around differences in products and services.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under HKFRS
8 "Operating Segments” are (i) property investment, (ii)
property development, (iii) investment in securities and (iv)

loan financing.

(a) Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

2 EER
REBRDERDBRBAFEMS - 2]
RAKREZTERERREBRITHA
BIETBRERREDZER - HEFR
EmRXNERBRE ZEE - IR AA
BoEE EEEERBEAMABAEEH
EmkRBzER -

BEEEVHHELENERLED
o AEEZEEREFRSIBEIE - ()
PERE - (i) WJ%%E (i EHFIEE R
(VVERRE -

(a) TEEXRBERRE
BBEREBDBOMAEE 2 &

results by operating and reportable segment: EBmREENOT
For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z2020F3H31HILFE
Property Property  Investment Loan
investment development in securities  financing Consolidated
NERE NEBE BERE HENRE me
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
Féx TET TET FET FiEx
(note)
(#z)
SEGMENT REVENUE PEEZE
External sales INRSEE = = 23,481 63,633
RESULTS ES |
Segment results NExE (57,687) (24,385)  (22279) (283,042
Unallocated corporate income EAR 2 AFWA 272
Unallocated corporate expenses AN |5 (4,69)
Share of results of associates HENREREEE (55,676)
Loss on deemed partial disposal of MR AL EBENFHH
equity interests in associates IR R 2 B (130,957)
Gain on bargain purchase of additional ~ PRUUEETESNE L A F]
interests in associates ERE 2 BENEKE 200,462
Share of results of a joint venture —HAEAFERAEEE (1,678)
Finance costs BERA (23,622)
Loss before taxation BEAES (298,936)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EER @
(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (a) PEPEXBEREE®)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E2019F3H31H 1L FE
Property Property  Investment Loan
investment  development in securities  financing  Consolidated
NERE NEER ErRE  ENRE A

HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
TAT TAT TET  TFAT TAT

(note)
(B3z)

SEGMENT REVENUE NEES
External sales IREE 55,876 755,880 - 18,591 830,347
RESULTS E |
Segment results PEEE 162,264 213,292 (19,5675 14,889 370,870
Unallocated corporate income AN ON 264
Unallocated corporate expenses BAR ARRY (5,695)
Share of results of associates BERREE Db%E 12,593
Share of results of a joint venture —HAENRERIEER (4
Finance costs BERAE (23,043)
Profit before taxation B AR 354,985
Note:Rental income generated from properties held for Kiat - REBELSEERDEZHESK

development for sale (included in property development ANBREMEERS>HFN)ER

segment) was included in property investment segment. EEYERED A -
The accounting policies of the operating segments are MY FESFT AT & 5 30 2 ERTER B2
the same as the Group's accounting policies described in REB 7 @1 HEMER
note 3.
Segment results represent the profit earned or loss DEEBERKE D BRI %= 3k
incurred by each segment without allocation of share of BB 2o E T K—
results of associates and a joint venture, loss on deemed FAEZRNaERDINES  KNEA
partial disposal of equity interests in associates, gain on HEBENT LM IRERERE S
bargain purchase of additional interests in associates, 1B RGBS N RS
finance costs and unallocated corporate income and ZBEUWEWE AR NESR
expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM ZRAFIBARRY o LtEFEmE
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance ERERARERR  EABERDE

assessment. ERBFHZLE -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

DEER )
(b) PHEERERE
BEE R 2R BN AER Y A

liabilities by operating and reportable segment: ENBENT
At 31 March 2020 K2020F3531H
Property Property  Investment Loan
investment development in securities financing Consolidated
NERE NERE BERE EXRE g4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FiEx FiEx FiEx FiErx FiErx
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PHEE 1,286,098 2,108,506 166,770 289930 3,851,304
Interests in associates BENFER 788,883
Interest in a joint venture = -UNG L 62
Tax recoverable akEHE 530
Bank balances and cash ROTEBREAE 117,920
Unallocated corporate assets ENRZAREE 99,430
Consolidated assets GREE 4,858,129
LIABILITIES af&
Segment liabilities PHasE 10,472 112,198 1,884 18,026 142,580
Secured bank borrowings BHEBRTEE 1,428,186
Tax payable JEfiHE 50,351
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ei AN =Y 1,191
Consolidated liabilities Heak

1,622,308
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EER @
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) "HEERBE®
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3531H
Property Property  Investment Loan
investment  development  in securities financing ~ Consolidated
NERE nEER  EHFRE EFNRE A

HK$000 HK$000

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEHEE 1463348 2,142,526 222,221 22,213 4,070,308
Interests in associates YNl £ 671,921
Interest in a joint venture NG 1,740
Tax recoverable Bk 331
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRE 191,670
Unallocated corporate assets ERRNREE 90,819
Consolidated assets GREE 5,026,789
LIABILITIES f&
Segment liabilities PEak 18,117 118,679 286 4,544 141,626
Secured bank borrowings BEBROEE 1,285,984
Tax payable e 50,514
Unallocated corporate liabilities AR ARARE 1,315
Consolidated liabilities mEaR 1,479,439
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances MERDHBERBERRED I HERD
and allocating resources between segments: femE :
-~ all assets are allocated to operating and reportable - kBEATER - —HEHEEAR

segments other than interests in associates, interest AlME - ATRERIE - IRITA

in a joint venture, tax recoverable, bank balances
and cash and assets used jointly by operating and
reportable segments.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable -

segments other than secured bank borrowings,
tax payable and liabilities for which operating and
reportable segments are jointly liable.

1
BEREREER2HmO K
RERzEESN  IBEEER

DEERERZFBE -

BRAERKBIRTEE  EMFE
AMEE R 2| D PR AE
ZEBEN ERBEESEZR

AL ks
REREZHRDEL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TEER®
(c) Other segment information (c) EftpZBEFR
For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z2020F3H31H L FE
Property Property  Investment Loan
investment  development in securities financing ~ Unallocated ~ Consolidated
NERE NERE HERE BRRE ) &a
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FiEr TE7 FE7 FE7 FE7 FEx
Amounts included in the measure of  EBEEHBEES
segment assets o segment results;  AMEEHEZEE:
Capital additions BAEN 3,128 = = = 3 3,160
Depreciation of property, 0% BEREEL
plant and equipment fE 1,602 1,350 28 - 1,676 4,656
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ BAEBE & = 350 518 56 342 1,266
Loss on changes in fair value of RENE/LTERY
investment properties Fa 196,888 = = = = 196,888
Loss on changes in fair value of RATENER 268
financial assets at FVTPL BE/ATEEDER - - 28824 - - 28,824
Impaiment loss on loans receivable, ~ ENER 2 FHESE
net - - - 29,256 - 29,256
Impairment loss on debt instruments AT EF AL B2 ERE
at FVTOCI LEBIAZAERR = - 126 = 2 126
Impairment loss on other debt BEENRHE AR
instruments at amortised cost TAZREER - - 4,353 - - 4,353
Impaiment loss on other EfEWTEZAEER
receivables - - - 1,819 - 1819
Write-down on properties held for sale  F{EHENE 2 A = 578 = = = 578
Write-down on properties held for ~ F{EREZENE 2 A
development for sale - 28513 - - - 28573
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Other segment information (Continued)

6. PEER®@
(c) EftpEBER B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E2019F3F31HILFE
Property Property  Investment Loan
investment  development in securities financing  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
nERE mEER BERE e e I A
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
AT AT AT AT THAT THT
Amounts included in the measure of  EBEEHBEES
segment assets or segment results:  AMEEHEZEE:
Capital additions BRI 4815 827 = = = 5,642
Depreciation of property, % BEREEL
plant and equipment ik 1,644 1373 80 - 1578 4,675
Loss on disposal of property, HENE - BREREEL
plant and equipment BB 125 = = = = 125
Gain on changes in fair value of RENELATEEDNE
investment properties (126,430) - - - - (126,430)
Loss on changes in fair value of BATETABE 28
financial assets at FVTPL EECATREYRE - = 2179 = = 21,794
Impairment loss on loans receivable, ~ EWEH 7 SR ERKE
net - - - 273 - 273
Impaiment loss on debt instruments  FATEF AL 2 EREZ
at VTOCI BREIAZRERR - - 1,505 - - 1,50
Impairment loss on other debt BEERRHE A MER
instruments at amortised cost TAZREER = = 3523 = = 3523
(Gain on disposal of a subsiciary HE-HHBAR ME 7,913 - - - - 7,913

150
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(d) Geographical information

(e)

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong (place
of domicile).

The Group's revenue from external customers based
on location of its customers and information about
the Group’s non-current assets (excluding financial
instruments and deferred tax assets), analysed by the
geographical area in which the assets are located, are as
follows:

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

6. DEER @

(d)

Revenue from
external customers

& & R
AEEZEBENLRES (TR
) o

BINREPZMBE D ARE 2%
XERmEEZAEMEE DO
AEEZFRDEE(TBREERT
AMERRIREE) ZERIT ¢

Carrying amounts
of non-current assets

REIREFZEERE FRBEEZREE
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHETT FAET
Hong Kong BE 63,633 830,347 2,135,067 2,216,936
Information about major customers (e) TEEFZEH

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
is as follows:

EFRHEBATEEMASEEBE
FHBIBI10% N 2 &ZERBmIT :

2020 2019

HK$000 HK$'000

FHET F&ET

Customer A BEPEA 25,215 N/AT 33 A 4

Customer B? BFEB? 6,412 N/ANE R

Customer C? =PCe = 680,685
" Revenue from property investment. T REMEREZERE -

2 Revenue from loan financing.

9 Revenue from property development.

4 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

2 REERBE CEHERE -

3 REAMETERIEERE -

¢ HALERITERRASER
EETEHBB10% MU E -
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BE KA
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FEITL
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEZFE 105 =
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEEZHE 47,394 34,058
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of B REBREE
qualifying assets ER{z 458 (23,877) (11,015)
23,622 23,043
8. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. BrR®iAr(E518)&mF
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHEITL
(Loss) profit before taxation has been FRELRT(E518) 2 A E 06k -
arrived at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 9(a)) EEMe B719(0) 7,142 41,554
Other staff costs, including retirement HARE TAA - BIRERIK
benefits scheme contributions 1@ FET Bk 23,458 22,093
Total staff costs B TR AN 4258 30,600 63,647
Auditor’s remuneration Z SN & 2,658 2,459
Cost of properties recognised as expense O R A X 2 W2k A = 473,671
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BREREBEITE
equipment 4,656 4,675
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEEZINE 1,266 -
Loss on disposal of property, LEMZE - BREREEZ
plant and equipment &8 = 125
and after crediting: WEFA :
Dividend income from listed investments KB FHi%E 7 R EWA 2,282 7,409
Interest income from FEW AR E
Other debt instruments at amortised REHEKFTE
cost HMEBITA 5,391 2,153
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAFERT AHAM
2HKEZEBITA 1,979 1,240
Bank and others HRIT R EAMD 1,825 5,943

162
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'SAND 9. % - 5ETHRARBRRES

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS ZHE
(a) Information regarding directors’ (a) FERESHEe2EHR
emoluments
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company HZE2020F3A31HIEFEEARADT]
for the year ended 31 March 2020 are as follows: EEMeFBEOT
Independent
Executive directors non-executive directors
BITES BUKHTES
Tse
Wing Lui Koon Jong Tsui Hon
Chiu Yuk Ho Yan Koon Chun Tam
Ricky Chu Candy Sang Kong Chun Total

ke Bi% EAMR HRE #ER BEE ag
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET FEr FET TET FE7r TET TE7r
(note (i) (note (ii))  (note (ii))
(et (i) (i)

Fees Yk = = = 140 140 140 420
Other emoluments Hip@e
- salaries and other -He LA
benefits &7 1,500 3,456 1,598 = = = 6,554
- retirement benefits — RIKEH
scheme contributions AR 18 132 18 = = - 168

Total directors' emoluments ~ EZM& % 1518 3,588 1,616 140 140 140 7,142
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9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Information regarding directors’
emoluments (Continued)

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company

9.

EE  gETHAEARZREES
pd . AC)

(a) FRESEME 2ER®W)

HE2019E3A3MRILEEARNT]

for the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows: EEMeFBOT
Independent
Executive directors non-executive directors
BiES BUdRiTES
Tse
Wing Lui Koon Jong Tsui Hon
Chiu Yuk Ho Yan Koon Chun Tam
Ricky Chu Candy Sang Kong Chun Total
i EE% BAM HEA RER EER ag
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
TAT FET FET TAT FET FET TAT
fnote (i) (note (i)
W) (W)
Fees EELGE - - = 140 140 140 420
Other emoluments Ehie
- salaries and other -HeREM
benefits 3l 1,500 3132 1,846 = = = 6,478
- performance-related -BREAH
bonus pa: 5 = 34,500 = = = = 34,500
- retirement benefits —RINEH
scheme contributions SRS 18 120 18 = = = 156
Total directors' emoluments ~ EFM S 1518 37,752 1,864 140 140 140 41,554
Notes: K -

(i

(ii)

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu, Ricky is the Chief Executive of the
Company. His emoluments disclosed above for the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 includes those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

With effect from 1 March 2019, the Company determined
to provide certain residential units and carparking spaces
to Mr. Koon Chun Ting, a son of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a
director of subsidiaries of the Company, free of rental
and charges for as long as he is employed by the Group.
With effect from 20 March 2020, the Company further
determined to provide these residential units and
carparking spaces to Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy. Aggregate
rateable value of these properties as set by the Hong
Kong Rating and Valuation Department was HK$2,448,000
(2019: HK$2,370,000).

154

(i

(ii)

FKBAEBARRZEFITERE
oA EBEREZHEeREREER
20204 K 2019F3A31HILFEE
BEREITBERFTIREZ RS -

B2019F38 1B LK - AR A
RERMBEEELRE  EEHRLEN
RIMABARGMBARES @ 12
HEFTEEEMRESEN  TRE
FZERAAEENSHFSRHEALRE
F > B2020F3A208 AR - K
ANaElE—FZRERE AR ARG
ZEEEEMREEN - RIBERS
EMYMEGBERE  ZEME
2 TERZEMFE 52,448,000 7T
(20194 : 2,370,000 7T) ©
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9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Information regarding directors’
emoluments (Continued)
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

Information regarding employees’
emoluments
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during

the year included two (2019: three) directors. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2019: two) highest

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

9. EEX aFETTHARKRES

o eAC ),
(a) EBREEME 2ER @
TRERIHTEEMS T AR

(b)

EHNARARAREERFL
R -

FRBRZBIFATESTHESE
ERBEFER/RNRAESTZ R -

FRREEME &R

ERN - AEEREZESHTALTEE
WA (2019%F : ZR)EF - e =
2 (2019F : MB)WHEEZHE

paid individuals, not being directors, are as follows: FALTZME20T :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits e kEMET 6,630 4,406
Retirement benefits scheme RIRE N ET SR
contributions 54 36

6,684 4,442
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9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'SAND 9. % ETHREAZBERES

EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) pd ., I AC)
(b) Information regarding employees’ (b) ERAEEME2ER®

emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of these employees fall within the
following bands:

ZEREZMEN T THIEE :

Number of individuals

BEAR
2020 2019
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 2,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001;& 722,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001;% 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1 -
3 2

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors and the other three (2019: two)
highest paid individuals, as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss in office. In
addition, during both years, no director waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments.

156

RMEFE  AEEREXNHE
FTEEREM=%(2019%F : MA)
Rm#eZ AT ERIMAZR I
AREER 2 BBRIE/RERE
ZHE - I RMEFE - RE
EEMBRXAFABERELTMAME
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

10. TAXATION 10. %418
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEITL
The charge (credit) comprises: AXGIA) B -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEH
Charge for the year AEERX 1,719 39,191
Under(over)provision for prior years BEFERETR
(RBEERE) 36 (20)
1,755 39,171
Deferred tax (Note 30) EIERE I (K77£30) (2,632) =
(877) 39,171

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits
of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years.

M20184FE3A21H » BEAENEZEEA
2017FE M (BN (B75) GHIER)
([FZIEPIBER]) MES| AMESHRES o
ZIEPERN2018F3A28AKEEAL
WMo WHRBHEERTE - REFGSH
MRS - & ER LB EE%2,000,000
T B JE SR T i B 15 42825 % 2 TR R B4R
I8 - WHLEBIE B 2,000,0007T K &R
Bm A #51216.6% 2 B RBMFRIE - &
EETHEFSHMAARHERHEME
B G #4592 16.5% 2 T RGN TR
18 o

RRB 2 EEZRBNSH MRS PSR
ZHNBHeERERGAMBHRRLEE
AEE  IMEFEZIFENEHIIR
BT EARTEM 2166%H -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

10. TAXATION Continued)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

10. Bi 38 ()
AEEHERGAERE

H b 2 m W e

T BB A (B 18) s Al 2 SRR -

2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FEIL
(Loss) profit before taxation BR A5 A1 (B548) 73 A1 (298,936) 354,985
Tax (credit) charge of Hong Kong BHEBNEHNE16.5%
Profits Tax at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (20194 : 16.5%) 2 Fi1A
Gt AFXZ (49,324) 58,673
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TEMFIFI S 2 FiE 2
for tax purposes 63,135 4,885
Tax effect of income not taxable for AR A 2 TR IBEZ 2
tax purposes (35,499) (26,857)
Tax effect of share of results of N REm DI ERE
associates HErE 9,187 (2,078)
Tax effect of share of results of —HEaERRIERSHEEL
a joint venture BB 277 1
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KR IERFHIBE B 7 FiITEZ £ 11,725 4,889
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses  ENFA @A RFERTE
previously not recognised EEzRIERE (71) (57)
Under(over)provision for prior years @&k F[E BEH T (BRERE) 36 (20)
Others HAth (343) (165)
Taxation for the year REFZTHIA (877) 39,171




KEBBREEERAT 2020F %,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

11.DIVIDEND 11.RE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Dividend recognised as distribution RERTERDRBEZRE
during the year
Final dividend paid of HK$0.05 per HZ=2019F3A31 8 LK
share for financial year ended FRZEMNKBAKRES
31 March 2019 (2019: HK$0.05 per HM%0.05/8 7T (20194 :
share for financial year ended B Z=2018F3H31H1E
31 March 2018) B IR 8 R A%0.05/87T) 4,566 4,566
Dividend proposed BREEZ
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.05 per #Z201943A31H L8
share for financial year ended FERBIARARER
31 March 2019 (2020: nil per HM%0.05/8 7T (2020%F :
share for financial year ended HZE2020F3A31H 1k
31 March 2020) BRFEERA/T) - 4,566
The directors of the Company do not recommend any final HZ=2020F3A31B IEFEARRREET
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$0.05 ER MRS (20194 © B/%0.05/8

per share). JT) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

12.BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS) EARNINGS 12. 8 REXRKR#H (&R 2R
PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per ARARIBRREGEZERERREE (S
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the B)EFTIBIBEATERTE -

following data:

2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of METESRERREE
calculating basic and diluted earnings BHME 2 (BE)
per share ((loss) profit for the year B (R R B FEM
attributable to owners of the REE (B8R H)
Company) (297,755) 315,959
2020 2019
Weighted average number of shares METEGREARES
for the purpose of calculating basic (BR)BAME 2
and diluted (loss) earnings per share In#EF AR Mm 8B 91,320,403 89,820,677
The computation of diluted earnings per share did not assume FR#EBERN ZTEN IR E /BN
the conversion of the associates’ outstanding convertible BNTRARLB R ERE &K RARE
notes and share options since their exercise would result in AETER2019F@F L 5k EEgig
increase in earnings per share for 2019. INEREEF] -
The computation of diluted (loss) per share does not assume SRS (EEB)ZTET S EBRE LR
the conversion of the associate’'s outstanding convertible BMENTMEARLB Z AR EERET
notes since their exercise would result in decrease in loss per FR2020F @ L SR EE -
share for 2020.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.9% - MERRE

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
properties equipment vehicles Total
B #E
ROk ES e AE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FAET
COST A
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4A18 80,934 11,294 3,933 96,161
Additions NE - 232 = 232
Acquisition of a subsidiary WrBE — R B AR
(note 40a) (Hiit40a) - 28 639 667
Disposals HE - (284) (715) (999)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNBATF
(note 40a) (Hfit40a) - (501) - (501)
At 31 March 2019 ©®201943A31H 80,934 10,769 3,857 95,560
Additions HE - 32 = 32
At 31 March 2020 2020437318 80,934 10,801 3,857 95,5692
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ ZEHTE
At 1 April 2018 ©®201854 718 2,838 3,045 2,036 7,919
Provided for the year KEERE 1,747 2,208 720 4,675
Eliminated on disposals T B i 8 = (160) (310) (470)
Eliminated on disposal of a HE—RHB AR
subsidiary (note 40a) Wiss (42 40a) - (334) - (334)
At 31 March 2019 201953 A31H 4,585 4,759 2,446 11,790
Provided for the year KEERE 1,747 2,128 781 4,656
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3A31H 6,332 6,887 3227 16,446
CARRYING VALUES FHE
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3A318 74,602 3,914 630 79,146
At 31 March 2019 2019437310 76,349 6,010 1,411 83,770
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.9% - MERZE®

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis according to the following
useful lives:

Over the duration of the leases
or fifty years, whichever is
the shorter

Leasehold improvements, 5 years
furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles

Leasehold properties

3 to 5 years

The leasehold properties are situated in Hong Kong.

LREBBEME - BEREKE GAER
ERBIA T Z AHERFHIRETE ¢

Gizk L7/ B2 F 1
AFF UK
REE
L - R B4
HE MR
B 3EBFE

HOMERTIUNRES °

14.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14.FEAEEE

Leasehold land

and buildings
AH T RESF
HK$'000
FEITL
As at 1 April 2019 7"2019F4A1H8
Carrying amount BREE 2,390
As at 31 March 2020 7420203 A31H
Carrying amount BREE 1,231
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE2020F3A31ALFE
Depreciation charge WEEHA 1,266
Total cash outflow of leases BRER ML 1,341
Additions to right-of-use assets REEREEE 107

EREEEREAFAIERFRMEE
HIR P ERE E R BRI E -

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.
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14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

15.

For both years, the Group leases office for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms of 2 to 3
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

14.FREEE®

MEFEHRE  AEREEAEARLZE
TRE - RITWBENAREEHRA2E
3F - MAOGFRIFMERITRETIHE
£ 7 E A 40 HABR 30 R 5 S AT EOH B R
B ARERAAANEELHREAR
HARI S 31T

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWZE
HK$'000
FETL
FAIR VALUE NFE
At 1 April 2018 201854 H1H 1,791,200
Additions NE 4,743
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBRERZ AFEEM 126,430
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 40a) & — B A B (0157 40a) (463,573)
At 31 March 2019 201943 H31H 1,458,800
Additions NE 3,128
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBHER 2 AN FER D (196,888)
At 31 March 2020 720203 A831H 1,265,040

All of the Group's investment properties at 31 March 2020
and 2019 are situated in Hong Kong. The fair values of the
Group's investment properties at 31 March 2020 and 2019
were arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out as at
these dates by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited, an
independent firm of qualified professional property valuers not
connected with the Group. The valuations were arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties or by reference to net rental income allowing for
reversionary income potential using the applicable market
yields for the respective locations and types of properties.

2020 M 2019F3H31H » FTAASE
BzEREVWEDIMNREE - AEBER
2020F M 2019F3A31H 2 EWHER
FETRATERNEEREEE B
EEREEMEGBEMTS NEBRE D
BERE(EBERATNZEEHETHE
BEZEEET - HESLRELUDERD
x%ﬂ%’m%ﬁf&%ﬁ%,ﬂﬁﬂ&

BHR > EEEESWARTERHE
F%ﬂiﬂﬁm%%ﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁmmi@uﬁz 5 2R
HX%‘TE}/EEE/‘]@ J‘I&/\"



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

15.

The unrealised loss arising on changes in fair value
of investment properties as at 31 March 2020 of
HK$196,888,000 (2019: unrealised gain of HK$114,542,000)
was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
March 2020.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of the investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used),
as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

BREWE @

MR2020F3A3MBZREMEZ RN FE
BBl E A WY R 2 3R 8518 196,888,000/8 7T
(20194 : KRR 114,542,000 7T)
EREE2020F3A31H L FEMIBF
R o

TRIVRIMAIEEREMEZ A FELZ
ER(LER  MIERAZEES ARE
A UERBREBEBAZABERREES D
WRFESR(EI1ZFEIR) 2R FER

EL©®

Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AEEREZRENE AHER3A3A ATEZR  HEFERIEEA EPRNCE £ DN SRE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$000
TET FET
Commercial units 1,104900 1,297,900  Level3 Income approach Term yield, taking into account of yield generated by The higher the term yield and
-~ term yield market average selling price and the market reversionary yield, the lower
average rental from comparable properties and the fair value
adjustment to reflect the conditions of the
building, which is ranged from 2.0% t0 3.0%
(2019: from 2.0% to 3.0%)
BEEN F3Mk WAE - E Bl ERlE - ZRTHENE TR THEER EHRGERES YRR -
METHREEL 2 WG RRMBENER ATHERE

ZHE  NTF2.0%Z3.0% (20195 ¢ $2.0%

F3.0%)

- reversionary yield

Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield

generated by market average selling price and the
market average rental from comparable properties

and adjustment to reflect the risk associated with

the future rental, which is ranged from 2.35% to
3.5% (2019: from 2.25% t0 3.5%)

-E5kE BEYs  ZEANBNE TS THERR
M TaRe 2 KaRREARE SRR
BE N THE2.35%Z235% (20195 : £2.25%

Z35%)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & 220203 531H - F &

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

15. B EWE @)

Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques

held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity

REBRAZRENE AFER3A3A AVHESR  HREREARTERA BAFABERA HEE

2020 2019
HK$000 HK$ 000
FAT FET
Commercial units ~monthly term rental Monthly term rental for each unit is derived fromthe ~ The higher the monthly term
(Continued) average of the rental as stated in the existing rental, the higher the fair value
rental agreements, which is ranged from HK$23
to HK$417 per square foot (2019: from HK$23 to
HK$417 per square foot)
BHREL -ARHES SRELEATHRL HRERAROMIZ BATEHSAR  ATEAR
® THREBEL  BTARNLAIETENT
BL(0195 - BT HRABETENTEL)
- reversionary rental Market monthly rental rate, which is ranged from The higher the reversionary rental,
HK$25 to HK$475 per square foot (2019: from the higher the fair value
HK$28 to HK$535 per square foot)
ik MH8AEE  FTARNFHBETELS EHRReAE  ATEAR
(20195 : B RM28%ETE5358T)

Commercial units 2,840 - Level3 Direct comparison Price per car park, using market direct comparables The higher the price per car park,
method - based on and taking into account of location, age and other the higher the fair value
market observable individual factors, which is HK$2,840,000
transactions of similar
properties and adjusted
to reflect the locations
and conditions of the
subject properties

BEEM F34MR ERNRA-ERER  SEENEE RATSERTHRMZEME Bk SEENEERS ATERS
NEZTSIEE IAREMEREER - B&{E2EH2,840,000 T
X5 RBARIRB
BEMEZNER
D

Industrial units 157,300 160,900  Level3 Direct comparison Price per square foot, using market direct The higher the price per square
method - based on comparables and taking into account of location, foot and price per car park, the
market observable age and other individual factors, which is ranged higher the fair value
transactions of similar from HK$8,200 to HK$8,210 per square foot (2019:
properties and from HK$8,300 to HK$8,460 per square foot), and
adjusted to reflect car park of HK$2,570,000 each (2019:
the locations and HK$2,400,000 each)
conditions of the
subject properties

TXEf £38 ERUBE-ERRE  STAREE RATSERTURMZELE - BYAREBRBEENIER
HEFACEES BRUAREMERRE - §FARNT8,200 A5 ATERS
25 REAEINRB B8, 210%87 (20195 : §THRNT8,300
BRMEZNER BILE84605T) + MR EEER2,570,000
&R #7(2019% : 5{82,400,000%7T)

1,265,040 1,458,800

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the

highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

16.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. & N AR
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEITL
Cost of listed investments in B A A ETIRE 2 AR
associates 402,886 402,886
Addition of equity interest upon the RAEB LS ILEEER
Group's conversion of convertible AR(ELtEDETZ
note issued by Eminence Enterprise AR AR AF IR 10 2 IR
Limited (“Eminence”) R (AME18(0)
(see note 18(b)) 16,980 16,980
Addition of equity interest upon EREELCERITHE
subscription of rights shares issued IR 1R IB B AR A A =
by Eminence 71,419 -
Acquisition of equity interest in W HE = 1L 1b SRR AN 2
Eminence 39,350 -
530,635 419,866
Share of post-acquisition profits and DG & s T & EAth
other comprehensive income: FEE :
— At beginning of the year - REA 252,055 245,800
— Share of (losses) profits and other - (BB RF REAEE
comprehensive income U =5 (63,312) 6,255
— Loss on deemed partial disposal of - RALE S NRAEREE
equity interests (130,957) -
— Gain on bargain purchase at date - IR A& A F]
of deemed acquisition of HIMETZ AHZ
additional interests in associates HEW 200,462 =
— At end of the year - RER 258,248 252,055
788,883 671,921
Fair value of listed investments in & NR EMRE 2 AFE
associates (note) (Ht5E) 126,664 46,578
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16.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

In August 2019, the convertible note issued by Eminence to
Madian Star Limited, an independent third party, was partially
exercised, and a total of 760,000,000 conversion shares
were issued by Eminence upon conversion. Accordingly, the
Group's equity interest in Eminence was diluted from 24.93%
t0 19.84% and a loss on deemed partial disposal amounted to
HK$130,957,000 was recognised in the profit or loss.

In November 2019 and February 2020, the Group has
subscribed the rights shares issued by Eminence and
acquired additional equity interest in Eminence through stock
market. The Group's equity interest in Eminence increase
from 19.84% to 27.47%. The excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associates’ identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment amounted to
HK$200,462,000 is included in results attributable to interests
in associates.

Note: The fair values of the listed shares are determined based on
quoted market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

16. B¢ & AR ERE @

N2019F88 r mlumBILE=F
Madian Star Limited3/TH) Al # IR = 1%
HOEEBITE  REBRESILBITAHK
760,000,000 # A% 15 o Bt - NEBR
S P AE 524 93% HEE19.84% -
RAEE S HE 2 EE S 130,957,000/
TLE AIBZSRER o

M2019F11 A K2020F2 8 » AEEP
RESLUBITHEBRBROTEBRED
BRESLOEMRKRE TXEERS
IR E 1 19.84% N ZE27.47% ° 7N
EESMEHE AT UHRINEERARE
MAFTEFEBBRERANERS
200,462,000 7T « BT ABE QRS
DIGFELE -

Wi EPRG 2 AT ETRB ARG
BB EREET -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

16. B¢ & N R ERE @

M2020%F 20193 AH31H » AEER
SLUCERTIELUCEZETBHER

16.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had interests
in Eminence and the following principal subsidiaries of

Eminence:

Name of associate

RIEA L

Place of incorporation/
establishment
and operation

Proportion of nominal value of
issued share capital/registered
capital held by the Group

Principal activities

ML, EEEBEERTRE/
BenrRERn RAREE L A AR A A TEER
2020 2019
Eminence? Bermuda 27.47% 24.93%  Investment holding
Bl BRE REZR
Capital Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Property investment
EM(EB)BERAA 30 MERE
Chancemore Limited British Virgin Islands 27.47% 24.93%  Property investment
("BVI")/Hong Kong
HRBRAHS NERE
(EBELEE]),/
0
City China International Limited Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Loan financing
A BERERAA B EXmE
Clever Wise Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Property investment
BRZRARAT] RERIHE/BA NERE
Daily Leader Limited BVI/Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Property development
RERIHS/BA MEER
Excellent East Limited Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Property investment
BRAERAR 00 NERE
Extra Glory Limited Anguilla/Hong Kong 27.47% - Property development
REN/BE MEER
Fanju Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Investment in securities
ZRREBRRA RERREE/BA FRRE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Investment in securities
KEERRRA 0 FEHRE
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

16.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16. Bt & AR ERm @)

Place of incorporation/ Proportion of nominal value of

Name of associate

establishment
and operation

issued share capital/registered
capital held by the Group

Principal activities

B3 A AEEBEERTRE/
- INGEE BIREEHH T AR A T A e IERER
2020 2019
Giant East Limited Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Property investment
ERARDA £ NERE
Glory Link Investment Limited Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Investment in securities
B ERRE
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Property investment
tEERERAT B NERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Property investment
RIEEXERAA 0 NERE
Grow Well Profits Limited BVI/Singapore 27.47% 24.93%  Property investment
and investment in
securities
ERELHE,/ AR NEREREFRE
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Property investment
RBEEXARRA 30 NERE
Jumbo Rainbow Limited BVI/Hong Kong 27.47% —  Property development
B ) A Y MEER
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Property development
RHRERERAA 30 NEBR
Real Supreme Limited Anguilla/Hong Kong 27.47% —  Property development
REN/BHE NEER
Silver Prosper Holdings Limited Hong Kong 27.47% - Property development
REEEFRAR 00 NEER
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Property investment
BwRtFAERAR BB NERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

16.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

16. B¢ & N R ERE @

Proportion of nominal value of

Name of associate

establishment
and operation

issued share capital/registered
capital held by the Group

Principal activities

ML, AEEBEEROTRE/
- NGRS BIRLEHH AR RAEEL G IRER
2020 2019

Treasure Arts International Group Limited BVI/Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Property development
BEEREEBRAA RERUHE/TA NEER

Wealth Plan Development Limited Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Property development
REIZEREAR AT 0 NFEER

Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong 27.47% 24.93%  Property investment

("Wellmake Investments”)
BEREBERAR(RERE) B NERE
Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd. People's Republic of China 27.47% 24.93%  Property investment

(“PRC")
FEI(HE)

(“Enterprises Huzhou")*

KEEXGIMBRRR(CHNER]

i Eminence’s shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

* Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14
December 2054.

The above table lists the associates of the Company, which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial
portion of the assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company result in particulars of excessive length.

NERE

o BILEZRENBAR LT -

* OMMNEER RN BEKIZIERE
3 - KB ERB0F - EE2054F12 A4
14H -

A ESIRFAFIR Z AR RIBE QA - &
ARAEZZER  TEFEFAZE
AABRAEEEEZEEMMD - MA
REABEFZEARE  REHEMEBER
BlZ#E  @TRHBBRILE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

16.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16. Bt & AR ERm @)

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in
the consolidated financial statements of Eminence and its
subsidiaries (the “Eminence Group"”) prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. The associates are accounted for using
the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial

BRASEZBERRBAYHEERH
SIERTR o AT B #5 B R T AR AR
BEBMBHRESENRRZSUEER
HfE QR ([mILEEEE &S M BR
R BERAIRNAEEZHREMBER
RIAE AR

statements.
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FRT F&T
Current assets MBEE 3,202,791 2,616,093
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,400,202 1,418,452
Current liabilities MBAE (538,644) (547,109)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (1,122,480) (753,266)
Net assets attributable to owners BUCERREIHEEFHR
of Eminence 2,941,869 2,734,170
Revenue Wz 80,682 62,228
(Loss) profit for the year REE (BB & F (206,192) 50,510
Other comprehensive expense for the year REFHEMEPERY (35,380) (25,421)
Total comprehensive (expense) income for REFZ2EFEDBA
the year (241,572) 25,089
Group's share of (loss) profit of associates REE S G E D R (EE) A (55,676) 12,593
Loss on deemed partial disposal of Tk N G
equity interests B 2 B8 (130,957) -
Gain on bargain purchase of additional NG G RSP NI v
interests in associates BB 200,462 =
Results attributable to interests in associates ~ Bt& A AR DL £4E 13,829 12,593
Group's share of other comprehensive REBEDIEHME AR HMEZE
expense of associates 53 (7,636) (6,338)

6,193 6,255
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

16.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. B¢ & N AR @)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information LA _E Bt B 75 B B R AR B B S IR R R
to the carrying amount of the interests in associates RZEE N ERREEYE

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETL
Net assets attributable to owners of S EEBBRES G
the Eminence Group BEFHE 2,941,869 2,734,170
Proportion of the Group's equity AEBRSILEEEER
interest in the Eminence Group & A #e 2 2 th 27.47% 24.93%
808,131 681,629
Less: Net assets of the Eminence B AEBERES G
Group not shared by the EEEEEFE
Group (19,248) (9,708)
788,883 671,921
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

17.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 17.—E&E QAR ER
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F#ET

Cost of investment in an unlisted joint R—EFELTEERRZTE

venture DN 1,744 1,744
Share of post-acquisition loss AMEWEERETE (1,682) (4)
62 1,740
Details of the Group's joint venture at the end of the reporting RBEPR - AEBZ2AEQRFEN
period are as follows: ™
Place of Proportion of Proportion of
Name of joint venture incorporation ownership interest voting power held Principal activity
BELELH TET B 3Lt B BB A PR R Al TEER
2020 2019 2020 2019
Bonita Springs Global Limited BVI 50% 50% 50% 50%  Investment holding
EBRZEHS REER
No financial information of the joint venture is disclosed in the HREELEHAEEN/RERNTE -
consolidated financial statements as the joint venture is not W ERN GRS BRRIBEEAELEDN
material to the Group. B ER} o
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 220203 531H 1L F &

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 1. RAFEFABREZEME

]

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFERFTABRZ
SREE :
— Listed equity securities in Hong -REA LM ZRARES
Kong (note (a)) (Kt (a) 61,411 105,666
- Convertible notes (note (b)) — AJRRR & (B 7t (b)) 85,914 28,033
— Life insurance policy (note (c)) - NERE W () 11,194 11,051
— Perpetual bonds (note (d)) - kK AEZ (Hfatd)) 14,339 39,916
172,858 184,666
Analysed as: DA
- Current portion - REEH 72,696 105,666
— Non-current portion - JEmENEB D 100,162 79,000
172,858 184,666
Notes: HaE -
(a)  The fair values of the listed equity securities were determined (a) LEMRAESZRFE TR FTAT
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock WG HEETE -
Exchange.
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18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(i)

On 11 May 2017, the Group subscribed for convertible
note (the “2017 CN1") issued by Eminence, with principal
amount of HK$16,000,000 which carries interest at 3% per
annum and payable semi-annually in arrears with maturity
on 11 May 2022 at redemption amount of 100% of the
principal amount. The 2017 CN1 can be converted at any
time from and excluding the date of issue to and including
the date falling on the fifth last business day prior to the
maturity date with conversion price of HK$0.16 per share.
The conversion price of the 2017 CN1 has been adjusted
from HK$0.16 per share to HK$2.63 per share effective
from 4 February 2020 as a result of the consolidation of
share and the completion of the rights issue. The Group
may redeem the 2017 CN1, at any time three months
after the grant date, at 100% of the principal amount
outstanding together with all interest accrued thereon up
to and including the date of redemption. Eminence may
redeem the 2017 CN1 on any business day prior to the
maturity date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding
together with all interest accrued thereon up to and
including the date of redemption.

As at 31 March 2020, the 2017 CN1 with principal amount
of HK$16,000,000 (2019: HK$16,000,000) remains
outstanding.

The fair value of the 2017 CN1 is determined based on
the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal Limited,
an independent firm of professional qualified valuers not
connected with the Group.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

18. RAVEFABRBZEHE

Ew

Hiet - ()

(b)

(i)

R2017F58118 - ZEERES
BT ZARBRER(E—H
2017F A RRER])  KAeSHA
16,000,000/8 A B FHI R f+F
FMER3I% 2 FERN202245
A1MBREHEHERI100% 2 A2
o BE—2017F AR EEA B
Tt T REEREIHAMNER
8% % A 1 2R 2 (AT B RS DA S A%
016/ 7L.2 HIRE R - B20204F
2A48 7% - BIRHE A TR R
1T BE—12017E AR ER 2
HRBMECHERI6BTARES
§82.638 T - AEEA HE#ITHE
=R ZEMEEREEDSE —%
2017 AT AR IR M 8R 2 100% A
CEEEMAIRANEEERDRE
FEO A - &L REIEHE AT
ZEMEERIREEDSE 152017
FARBREBEHNBZ100% R E S
BEEAATRIEEZERBEED
A -

M2020463A31H - F— 17
2017 A MR EBE RGBS
%8/516,000,000/8 7T (20194
16,000,000/ 7T) °

FE—2017F A MBRREERZ AFE
TRBEEFEARAR - —HE
FEBREMBZBISERER
HEMTREZGEEETE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(ii)

(Continued)

On 26 September 2017, the Group subscribed for
convertible note (the “2017 CN2") issued by Eminence,
with principal amount of HK$28,200,000 which carries
interest at 3% per annum and payable semi-annually in
arrears with maturity on 26 September 2020 at redemption
amount of 100% of the principal amount. The 2017 CN2
can be converted at any time from and excluding the date
of issue to and including the date falling on the fifth last
business day prior to the maturity date with conversion
price of HK$0.06 per share. The conversion price of the
2017 CN2 has been adjusted from HK$0.06 per share to
HK$0.9855 per share effective from 4 February 2020 as
a result of the consolidation of share and the completion
of the rights issue. The Group may redeem the 2017
CN2, at any time three months after the grant date, at
100% of the principal amount outstanding together with
all interest accrued thereon up to and including the date
of redemption. Eminence may redeem the 2017 CN2
on any business day prior to the maturity date at 100%
of the principal amount outstanding together with all
interest accrued thereon up to and including the date of
redemption.

On 18 October 2017, the conversion rights attached to the
2017 CN2 with principal amount of HK$16,920,000 were
partially exercised and a total of 282,000,000 conversion
shares were issued by Eminence to the Group upon
conversion.

As at 31 March 2020, the 2017 CN2 with principal amount
of HK$11,280,000 (2019: HK$11,280,000) remains
outstanding.

The fair value of the 2017 CN2 is determined based on
the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal Limited,
an independent firm of professional qualified valuers not
connected with the Group.

18. I AR EF ABZZ2EME
Euw

Kt -

(&)

M2017F9A268 - AEBERES

UJJJ:%%?:IZT?&'HQ?%TJ%(F%_ 7
2017FE A MR RIE]) - A o8
728,200,000/ TLZBR ¥ FH K
S ERE B3% 2 F B K& R2020
FOA26R | HARER100% 2 AN
4% F-M2017F R E
BRI AT #TREZBERHA
AT AEL B 1 HIM 2 TR
AEgRR0.068 Ty RiREHR - B

202052 A48 - BRMHA M
SERER AR BT 20175 a#

BREE 2 HBEDHER0.06/5 T
FHEEFH0.9855/8 T o AEET]
BETREZEA 2 EMEMER
BB 0] 55 — 19201 74F Al L AR 2245 14
2100% A& EREAATIRAE
EELBEELOBE - ;L
REIEABE R Z E A& ERIREER
FZM2017F A RBRRBE B2
100% A& B MATEHRANER
ZERBEERAS -

M2017410H188 » &£ =172017
iTM ZERMEE 2 iR
DITHEAE T R16,920, ooo,%
TR R BRES LS ES L%
282,000,000Hxﬁ%ﬁﬁx@%$%
£

MR2020%3A31H * F£ -1
2017F A AR EREHBAES S
%8/511,280,000/8 7T (20194
11,280,0003% 7T) ©

%:1&?2017%ﬂ?ﬁ%%—‘—?ﬁ§22¥1§
TRREEFEARAR - —HE
IS @xxﬁfiﬁ@Z%i §¢%§¥
HEMITRE GEETE -
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18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(iii)

On 28 August 2019, the Group subscribed for convertible
note (the “2019 CN") issued by Eminence, with principal
amount of HK$70,000,000 which carries interest at 3% per
annum and payable semi-annually in arrears with maturity
on 17 June 2024 at redemption amount of 100% of the
principal amount. The 2019 CN can be converted at any
time from and excluding the date of issue to and including
the date falling on the fifth last business day prior to the
maturity date with conversion price of HK$0.055 per share.
The conversion price of the 2019 CN has been adjusted
from HK$0.055 per share to HK$0.91 per share effective
from 4 February 2020 as a result of the consolidation of
share and the completion of the rights issue. The Group
may redeem the 2019 CN on the maturity date, at 100%
of the principal amount outstanding together with all
interest accrued thereon up to and including the date of
redemption. Eminence may redeem the 2019 CN on the
maturity date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding
together with all interest accrued thereon up to and
including the date of redemption.

At 31 March 2020, the principal amount of HK$70,000,000
(2019: nil) of the 2019 CN remains outstanding.

The fair value of the 2019 CN is determined based on the
valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal Limited,
an independent firm of professional qualified valuers not
connected with the Group.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

18. RAVEFABRBZEHE

Ew

Hiet - ()

MR201948H28H » AEERE
Al BT 2Bk ZEE (2019
FABRRER])  HASEHA
70,000,000/ 7T © FEE3% Z
BAISEFHAIMNFE - BIH
H /4202468178 HEE100%
ZAREEHE - 2019F A R EE
AIE%ETHCIEEZE)REDH
A% FEREZEEE (B21E%A)
IEZEREEER - RREASR
B 0.065/8 7T - B202092H 4R
# o B A BRI AR IR B 1T
2019F Al AR R 2 HIREE A
HHR0.055B T HAEEZFMRR0.918
JC o AR A O MR TERK - &
B2019F A MR EHRMRRESR
20202 A48 R TR/ 0.055
BILHAEBTRBRM0.91ETT - &
£ 3 7] A2 HA B BB 120194 AT #2 A%
ZE100% 2 A B LB EER
RBEZBE)ZAARIE -&
LRI A2 EA B B B120194F A AR =
BRHBRZ100% A 2B REEE
Bl B (81EZB) ZBTRFE °

M20205F3A31H © 20194F A[HA AL
ZiE #8744 %70,000,00078 7T
(2019%F : ) -

2019F AT AR T|IE 2 A FETIRIE
BEIEARAR - —HEAREER
T ERE BT A BIREEGER
TREZHEETE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The convertible notes are recognised as follows:

Ew

Hiet - ()

AR RIBERT

18. & AN FEFT AEH

ZEME

HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2018 MR2018F481H 71,694
Redemption f& ol (45,480)
Interest received B FIE (2,739)
Unrealised fair value gain recognised in R AER 2 R EH A FERE
profit or loss 4,558
At 31 March 2019 M2019F3A31H 28,033
Addition #n 70,000
Interest received B4 FIE (2,070)
Unrealised fair value loss recognised in RIBEH AR REH A FEEER
profit or loss (10,049)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3H31H 85,914

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the RERETRRER 2 A ERBEN
convertible notes are as follows: T

VALUATION OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The convertible notes are measured at fair value using the
Black-Scholes model with Trinomial Tree method, at initial
recognition and at the end of each subsequent reporting period.
The inputs into the model as at date of subscription and the end
of the reporting periods are as follows:

JRRERE 2 f5E

AR R SR AR IR 1) 46 T AR I A BB 1 18 (5
SRR AR - HFHBAEAR=X
BERRAFEFE - RRBBAPRBRE
HREARA 2B ABENT

2017 CN1 E—P2017FE R EE
Date of
subscription
At 31 March At 31 March 11 May
2020 2019 2017
A8 A A
120204 #2019 20174
3A31H 3H31H 5118
Stock price & (B HK$0.4957% T HK$0.063/8 7T HK$0.1397% 7T
Conversion price HiaE HK$2.637% T HK$0.1678 7T HK$0.1658 7T
Volatility 18 56.83% 76.66% 75.15%
Dividend yield AR F &= 0% 0% 0%
Time to maturity BI| BB 2.1 yearsE 3.1 years4F 5 years4E
Risk-free rate R B2 AG IR & 0.5783% 1.3563% 1.1572%
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

VALUATION OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Ew

Hiet - ()

by (&

18. RAVEFABRBZEHE

THRREBEZHEGE)

2017 CN2 E_R2017F T RBREE
Date of
subscription
At 31 March At 31 March 26 September
2020 2019 2017
RIEEH
A20204F R2019%F 20174
3A31H 3H31H 9H26H
Stock price A& & HK$0.4957% T HK$0.063% 7T HK$0.064 7% 7T
Conversion price HiE HK$0.98557% 7T HK$0.06/E 7T HK$0.0678 7T
Volatility B8 71.17% 56.74% 80.66%
Dividend yield & F == 0% 0% 0%
Time to maturity FI| B BF 0.5 years 1.5 yearstF 3 years®F
Risk-free rate R R AL IR R 0.6015% 1.4113% 1.0164%

2019 CN 2019 MR EE

Date of
subscription
At 31 March 28 August
2020 2019
RIEEH
120205 20194
3A31H 8H28H
Stock price & & HK$0.4953% T HK$0.030/& 7T
Conversion price HIRE HK$0.9158 7t HK$0.055/8 7T
Volatility KR 78.64% 68.70%
Dividend yield & ) 2= 0% 0%
Time to maturity BI| 2R 4.4 yearst 5 years4E
Risk-free rate [\ Bex B R = 0.5703% 1.0547%
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

In prior years, the Company entered into life insurance policy
with an insurance company to insure Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy,
a director of the Company. Under the policy, the Company is
the beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured sum
is United States dollars ("US$")10,800,000 (equivalent to
HK$83,808,000). The Company is required to pay an upfront
deposit of US$1,283,000 (equivalent to HK$9,956,000) including
a premium charge at inception of the policy amounting to
US$76,980 (equivalent to HK$597,000). The Company can
terminate the policy at any time and receive cash back based
on the cash value of the policy at the date of withdrawal,
which is determined by the upfront payment of US$1,283,000
plus accumulated interest earned and minus the accumulated
insurance charge and policy expense charge. In addition, if
withdrawal is made between the first to eighteenth policy year,
there is a specified amount of surrender charge.

Life insurance policy is classified as financial assets at FVTPL
as these financial assets have contractual right to cash flows
that do not represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.

At 31 March 2020, life insurance policy amounting to
HK$11,194,000 (2019: HK$11,051,000) was pledged to a bank
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

Life insurance policy is denominated in US$, a currency other
than the functional currency of the Company.

18. I AR EF ABZZ2EME
Euw

Het - (&

(c)

RUARTEE - AR R E—BRBR AR
V—TEABREURRAARNEEE A
fR& L - BIEZRE AR BEHEA
MIREHAE A RBIRIREE 10,800,000
Zt([=7]) (FBZ583,808,000/8 7T) °
KARIAES B 4£1,283,000% T
(H85749,956,0008 7T) + BIERFIR
BRHAYNZRET6,980%t(HBER
597,00078 7T) o AN/ &) A] fA T {A] B e 4R
HZRERBERREZREZREE
BWEIIRE - b TR A 511,283,000
U RATHRELZ 25 F B R R FHR
BENREBRAMAIMET ° b - MR
BEREE

oo A

REE-FEFTNFERRE
SRIERRRF -

ASRESBRBATEFARREZS
MEE AREEMEEZAOERZ
RERBITMREKR/INEE K
BEASNEZENALRE -

M2020FE3A318  ASREA
11,194,0007% 7T (20194F : 11,051,0005&
L) BHEBTRTEAERTASE—
RRERITEEE 23 -

ABREAARRINEEE AN 2B
XTLHIE °
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e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continved) 18. 3R AFET AEBHZEHE
B

Notes: (Continued) Bfet - (&)

(d) The fair values of the perpetual bonds as at 31 March 2020, (d) F2020F3A31H ' KABHFZAFE
which amounted to HK$14,339,000 (2019: HK$39,916,000), are 14,339,000/ 7T (20194F : 39,916,000
determined based on the quoted market closing prices available BIT) - DERE—FTEINRUBER S Z
on an overseas recognised stock exchange with fixed interest ¥R Wi (B LA B & & R = 7 F 8 5.90%
at a range from 5.90% to 6.25% (2019: 5.50% to 6.25%) per %£6.25% (20194 : 5.50% £6.25%) &
annum. JE °
The perpetual bonds are recognised as follows: KABHERAT :

HK$'000
FHEr
At 1 April 2018 7201844818 -
Additions NE 39,583
Interest received EUF S (1,132)
Gain on changes in fair value recognised in RIS AR A HEZ8) K
profit or loss 1,465
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H 39,916
Disposal HE (25,562)
Exchange difference ERER (355)
Interest received [ KN (1,807)
Gain on changes in fair value recognised in RIBESAERZ A EZ8) K
profit or loss 2,147
At 31 March 2020 #2020F3A31H 14,339
All perpetual bonds are denominated in US$, a currency other FTBEKABHFARBEEERIIENE
than the functional currency of the relevant group entity. BN B RITTEHE ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

19.DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI 19. B A FEFTAHMEZERE

ZEBHIH

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEITL
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong or ~ MEBEEIN b 2 B E
overseas with fixed interests ranging % EEFHENTHI.75%
from 3.75% t0 6.25% (2019: 3.75% £6.25% (20194 : 3.75% &
t0 6.35%) per annum and maturity 6.35%) * ZIHIH A202057 A
dates ranging from 19 July 2020 to 19 198 £20214F9AH19H (2019
September 2021 (2019: 19 January F : 20201 H19H £2026F
2020 to 15 December 2026), at fair 12H158) ' IEAFE
value 29,543 46,376
Analysed as: DA
Current portion mEE 3,843 11,762
Non-current portion JEMENZB 1D 25,700 34,614
29,543 46,376

As at 31 March 2020, debt instruments at FVTOCI are stated
at fair values which are determined based on the quoted
market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange or
overseas recognised stock exchanges.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI are listed bonds with the credit
loss allowance measured on 12m ECL basis as the credit risk
on these financial instruments has not increased significantly
since initial recognition. The Group assessed the ECL for
debt instruments at FVTOCI by reference to credit rating of
the bond investment published by rating agencies or internal
credit ratings, macroeconomic factors affecting the respective
industry for each issuer, corporate historical default and loss
rate and exposure of default of each bond investment. An
impairment loss of HK$126,000 was recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$1,505,000).

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 39.
All debt instruments at FVTOCI are denominated in US$, a

currency other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entity.

M2020F3AH318  HAFEFAEME
e 2 &5 T AERATFESRDRE
Bt X ATk B INR AT B AR B AT 2 Fr ik ik

BEATEFAEMEZEAKRKSEZEEIA
BE12@ R B EEERELEFEGES
BEEz EmES - EEVBERAR
TRMTAZEERRIT EBEEL - K
EE2EFARBEHESFREZEEF
BIRNBEETR  FESBHTASE
TEZRBEEREZ PERLEOX
FIERRUREEHEEENRR - 5T
HEAFEFAEMEZARSEZEBE L
B 7 EHEEEE - #122020F3A31H
IEFE - BEE18126,000/8 TR B A
(20194 : 1,505,000 7T) °

BRBER G 2 FHBE IR M FE39 ©
FrERAFEFARMEE KRS ZEH

T B AR B 4 B R 1) A P A SN
LA -
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20.OTHER DEBT INSTRUMENT AT

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

20. ZEIHA AT E 2 B

AMORTISED COST =t
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Unlisted debt instrument in Hong Kong  &#&IE FHERFIA
Fixed-rate unsecurred junior note (the & F = FEER VBRI
“Junior Note") (note (a)) (TREE]D K177 (a) 41,906 35,235
Fixed-rate secured note (the “Secured  [EF FI R ERZE ([EREE])
Note"”) (note (b)) (%1 #£(b) 16,015 -
Less: Impairment allowance J OB (7,876) (3,523)
50,045 31,712
Analysed as: AR
Asset classified as held for sale DEARBERECEE 34,830 —
Non-current assets EMBEE 15,215 31,712
50,045 31,712

Notes:

(a)

In August 2017, Charming Flash Limited (“Charming Flash”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Golden Glow
Limited (the “Issuer”), an independent third party incorporated
in the Cayman Islands, entered into a loan agreement with
principal amount of US$2,000,000 with an interest rate of 19%
per annum. The carrying amount of the loans receivable was
approximately HK$15,660,000 as at 31 March 2018.

In October 2018, Charming Flash entered into a subscription
agreement with the Issuer, pursuant to which Charming Flash
subscribed the Junior Note issued by the Issuer in the amount
of US$4,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$35,235,000)
and settled by the existing loans receivable amounting to
US$2,000,000 and an additional cash payment of US$2,500,000.
The Junior Note is at an interest rate of 14.65% per annum
and with maturity date on 30 October 2020 with an extendable
maturity date of one year after the maturity date.

183

Hiat

(a)

MN2017688 + ARF—HEZEMEBR
A]Charming Flash Limited([Charming
Flash)) B S B S ML MBS 5
=7 Golden Glow Limited (37T A )E]5Z
Bt - 2N4& % 52,000,0003 5T i 4
FZEAE19% - R2018F3A31RH » El
ERHEEEE4)15,660,000/ 7T °

720184108 » Charming Flash&2 3
TTARTAMREWE - L - Charming
FlashLA& %8 454,500,000 T (5 EY
35,235,000/ 7T) BB 1T ABITH WA
=9 W AR A E W E 372,000,000% 7T
K 585MNR 42,500,000 TEAE o (14
ZRFENRAE14.65% M2 H H A2020
F10A30H ' HHAREATERTIEHE—
q; °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

20.

OTHER DEBT INSTRUMENT AT
AMORTISED COST (continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(@)  (Continued)

In February 2020, Charming Flash entered into a tripartite
agreement with a buyer and the Issuer, under which Charming
Flash agreed to sell and the buyer agreed to acquire, the
Junior Note at a consideration of US$4,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$36,660,000). The disposal will be completed
in August 2020 and the Junior Note is reclassified as asset
classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2020. At 31 March
2020, a deposit of HK$15,480,000 has been received from the
buyer.

(b) In January 2020, Mark Profit Development Limited (“Mark
Profit”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a subscription agreement with Reliance Global Holdings
Limited (the “Note Issuer”), which its shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange, pursuant to which Mark Profit subscribed the
Secured Note issued by the Note Issuer in the principal amount
of HK$16,000,000. The Secured Note is at an interest rate of
7.125% per annum and with maturity date on 16 January 2023.
The Secured Note is secured by a debenture incorporating by a
first floating charge over all the undertaking, property and assets
of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Note Issuer.

The Junior Note and Secured Note were measured at
amortised cost since the Group's business model to hold
these debt instruments were to hold for collection of
contractual cash flows, and the cash flows represented solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The Group assessed the ECL with reference to the internal
credit rating of the issuers and its holding company. A
impairment loss of HK$4,353,000 was recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$3,523,000). Details of impairment assessment are set out
in note 39.

20. ZEIHA AT E 2 B

TR
Bzt - ()

(a) ()

72020428 © Charming Flash£# & 75 &
BIT AR =W - #BUt - Charming
FlashE B &K E4,700,0005= T (HE
1 4936,660,000 0) HEME FEE
WENAEE - HESHEBN2020F
SAEK + YR EEN2020F3A31H
BEHOBERDEARBELE)EE -
M2020%E3A31H ' BB EHKEIZRS
15,480,000/8 7T ©

(b) #2020F1 8 ARFRIEZEMBRARE
SHEARAR([E%]) BERERKE
PRAERAE ([ZHEEITA] - ERMD N

R ETRI BB - B - 2
R&%16,000,000/8 T REZHREITA

BEITMRERER - BEREEIEFANR
7.125%5t 8 - 72202341 F16 H %5 -
EREBTDASREBBEITAZENE
REMEHER  MERBEZE—F
By ifat 2 EREBEER -

HRAKERFAEZFER TANEHR
ABRURRENREREMBTAE » W
REBLEREBREBHENATE B
RenEERRAELRKEELNSH
B -

REES2EZHITAREZER QAR AES
EEFLAHTEREESE - 5E2020
FIANALEFEERERERREEE
754,353,000/ 7T (20194 : 3,523,000/
JT) ° AERHh B E A M FE39 ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & 220203 531H - F &

21.LOANS RECEIVABLE 21. EIRE K

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Fixed-rate loans receivable EEEKER 260,358 200,091
Variable-rate loans receivable FERKER 9,379 10,313
269,737 210,404
Less: Impairment allowance Ji B (32,986) (3,730)
236,751 206,674

Analysed as: R

Current portion mENERD 223,473 178,889
Non-current portion FETRBNER D 13,278 27,785
236,751 206,674

Secured BER 101,835 113,580
Unsecured AR 134,916 93,094
236,751 206,674
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B B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

21.LOANS RECEIVABLE continued) 21.EWER@®
The movement of impairment allowance for loans receivable AEENERE R REREE 2 EEH0M
for the current year is as follows: T~
Impairment
allowance
for loans
receivable
under
12m ECL
1218 A FE A
FEEE
BTERER
2B ERE
HK$'000
FEITL
At 1 April 2018 7201854 H1H 3,457
Changes due to loans receivable recognised R2018F4 A1 HEBREWER
as at 1 April 2018 F By 2 &)
- Reversal upon settlement by other debt - REBRBHENAGTE 2 it
instrument at amortised cost (note 19) B TR 2B (fiF19) (783)
- Reversal (note (i) — B o (H7aE0) (179)
Impairment loss recognised for new loans granted FE BRI ERERRERE
(note (ii)) (Fraz (i) 1,235
273
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3H31H 3,730
Changes due to loans receivable recognised 20193 A31 HE REWE K
as at 31 March 2019 Fr By & &)
— Impairment loss recognised (note (i) - BERERREEE (W52 () 27,365
- Reversal (note (i) - BB (A7) (1,229)
Impairment loss recognised for new loans granted PERNERERREEE
(note (ii)) (Bt (i) 3,120
29,256
At 31 March 2020 720204374318 32,986
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21.LOANS RECEIVABLE continued)

Notes:

(i) The impairment loss net of reversal of HK$26,136,000 (2019:
reversal of HK$179,000) was related to loans receivable
with gross carrying amount of HK$141,337,000 (2019:
HK$34,781,000).

(i) The impairment loss of HK$3,120,000 (2019: HK$1,235,000)
was related to loans receivable with gross carrying amount of
HK$65,000,000 (2019: HK$17,611,000) which are newly granted
during the year.

At 31 March 2020, the range of interest rate on the Group's
fixed-rate loans receivable is 2.3% to 16% (2019: 2.3% to
18%) per annum and the range of interest rate on the Group's
variable-rate loans receivable is prime rate less 1% to prime
rate (2019: prime rate less 1% to prime rate) per annum.

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the
potential borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits
granted to each borrower. The credit limits attributed to the
borrowers are reviewed by the management regularly.

No aged analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the aged analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of business of loan
financing.

The Group's loans receivable denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entities,
which is US$, amounted to HK$12,645,000 at 31 March 2019
(2020: nil).

Impairment assessment

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$269,737,000
at 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$210,404,000). During the
year ended 31 March 2020, a net impairment loss of
HK$29,256,000 (2019: HK$273,000) was recognised in profit
or loss. At 31 March 2020, the accumulated impairment
allowance for loans receivable amounted to HK$32,986,000
(2019: HK$3,730,000).

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

21.ERER @)

Hrat

() FREEERE 226,136,000/ 7T(2019
FBE179,00008 T) BIREE A
141,337,000/ 7L (20194 : 34,781,000
BT ZBREREH -

(i) RIEEE 23,120,000/ 7T(20194 :
1,235,000 7T) £ Bk {8 465,000,000
BIT(20194F : 17,611,000 7T) Z B &%
NERER -

M2020F3A31H ' AEB 2 EBRKE
HEFFNENF23%E16% (20194 :
23%ZE18%) R ANEE 2 )F B EKER
BENENTHREBEINERI%ERER
FIE(2019F : ZEBFNER1%ERE
BHEK) -

EROERTINKER  AEEFEE
EERAZEEERRBER TG
RAZIEER - EBEETHRAERA
ZIEE® -

REREREST  AARAES
Ao RERBREXBUEEMNS - R
iR BERIMELE -

=71
&

Vi

E=]

W

AEBUEBEEBRERNEEE (AIE
TO) AN EEEBIE R EUWE 2019
F3H31HA12,645,0005% 7T (20204
) o

R B AL
EREEZRTEN2020FE3A31HER
M4 1E269,737,0008 7L (20194
210,404,000 L) 2 EWER 2 EE
BE o HE2020F3A31HILFE @ |
EE18%%5829,256,000 7T (20194F :
273,000 L) N Em R o R202043
A31H BRERZ R RERES
32,986,00058 7T (20194F : 3,730,000/
JL) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

21.

22.

LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Impairment assessment (Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the loans receivable as at the reporting
date with the one as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the loans receivable from borrowers
are assessed by the management of the Group, based on the
financial background, collateral and the historical settlement
records, including past due dates and default rates, of each
borrower and forward-looking information that is reasonable,
supportable and available without undue cost or effort. Each
borrower is assigned a risk grading under internal credit
ratings to calculate the ECL, taking into consideration of the
estimates of expected cash shortfalls which are driven by
estimates of possibility of default and such as the amount
and timing of cash flows that are expected from foreclosure
on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of obtaining and
selling the collaterals. At every reporting date, the financial
background, collateral and the historical settlement
records are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals,
if any, in the absence of default by the borrower. There have
not been any significant changes in the quality of the collateral
held for the loans receivable.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, intangible asset represents a
trading right with carrying value of HK$500,000 that confers
eligibility of Constance Capital Limited (“Constance Capital”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to trade on
the Stock Exchange for the purpose of securities dealing
and broking. The trading right has no foreseeable limit to
the period that Constance Capital can use to generate net
cash flows. As a result, the trading right is considered by
management of the Company as having an indefinite useful
life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows
indefinitely. The trading right will not be amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite. It will be tested for
impairment semi-annually and whenever there is an indication
that it may be impaired. At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the
management of the Company determined that there is no
impairment of Constance Capital’s trading right based on its
value in use.

21.

22.

FEWE K@)

BB FEAE (8)
SEEERBR A VEERARSTEE
AR REEEEERERRESH
% A S A0 0 L B LR L R ) 4
RAMBEEEONER - (BTG
AEEEEBIGESERAZ BKER
TRBENEAS R RBEER
04 REAHARENE  URESD
BENRAXS NERNA RS EE
HATIE AR - SERARBRDEE
TRESRRRSHAS EEREEE
18 WIEEREHE SSRGS T
TR B 58 49 2 A ALt 2 1 40 T 23 4 4
DU B RS R ()W
EMERHEERG Y RA - NSRS
BE BHAR  ERSRBEERD
SeERTG  WEEAEE SRS
@] o

EERALEEOZERT  ARET
BHEXBEAZSHAR(0A) - B
BB R 2 BMG 2 BRI R
AERED -

BILERE

M2020F X 2019F3A31H  EFE
EDNRETILEERBR AR ([BLHEE
K] ARRz—BE2ENBRAA - &
BRARBRXMEBE 2R ZEZREE
500,000/ 7T ° SAHEE AN A 5 % B HRRR
ZRBENEERSTEFRE - AL
KRR EEEBRARIEAERFERT
HERBHENERBERBESTEF
BoRGEITSWHIEEZHFTRFH
ETABR URXIEENREFrERET
ERTEB A RERETRENH -
R2020F M 2019F3AH31H » ARAE
BEDBEBEEFHEEETLAEERY
RGELBRE -
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23.PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

FOR SALE

The Group's properties held for development for sale are
situated in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2020, the amount of properties held for
development for sale which is expected to be completed
more than twelve months after the end of the reporting
period is HK$912,675,000 (2019: HK$886,606,000).

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group performed
assessment of net realisable value on its properties held
for development for sale with reference to valuations made
by independent qualified professional property valuers not
connected with the Group. The valuations were arrived
at by using the residual method. At 31 March 2020, the
estimated net realisable values of certain properties held for
development for sale was lower than their carrying amounts,
a write-down amounting to HK$28,573,000 was recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: nil).

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

23. FIEFHERRME

AEBZHELREERVETIURE
B o

M20209F3A31H © BEAEE 2 #HEL
EERMERBREPRE T _BART
X2 % %8/5912,675,000/ 7T (20194 :
886,606,0005 7T) °

MR2020F K 2019F3A31H » AEEE
MIFIEHEERMFLET Y EIRFER
G2 ELAREEIBEHECHLEE
BEEYEGBEMITZMEE -ZSHE
TR B FI R EAB L - R2020%3 A
3NE - ATHIEREERME 2 JER
FEENREE - 8122020F3A318 1
FEE - FIE28,573,000/8 7T (20194 -
)P EE AR o

Analysis of leasehold lands component: A THED DT

HK$'000

FET

As at 31 March 2019 A2019%3H31H
Carrying amount EEEE] 1,932,432
As at 31 March 2020 A2020%3A31H
Carrying amount BRHEE 1,984,981
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE2020F3A31ALFE
Operating cash outflows KRS (67,245)
Additions #n 81,122
Write-down VERED (28,573)

Effective from 1 April 2019, the carrying amount of leasehold
lands is measured under HKFRS 16 at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
residual values are determined as the estimated disposal
value of the leasehold land component. No depreciation
charge is made on the leasehold lands taking into account the
estimated residual values as at 31 March 2020.

H2019F4A 108 - HA LD MR
HERBE(EBHBRELER)E165 A
AR A R RET T EFMERRE R K
FTE - FIEEREABO LIS K
HETEEEE - £ E52020F3A31H
REETRE  REHOLTTIRITER
)EH °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25.

24. 8 5 K H b B WK TR

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Trade receivables: B 5l EIE
0-60 days 0-60H 2,586 243
61-90 days 61-90H 213 -
2,799 243
Prepayments SEENES 3,556 710
Interest receivable eI B 958 3,803
Dividend receivable JE AR B 2 1,139
Refundable stamp duty (note) AR B ENFERE (A1 a) = 89,400
Other receivables and deposits HEWsIERIES 1,884 1,616
9,199 96,811

The Group did not grant any credit period to its tenants. The
aged analysis of trade receivables is determined based on
invoice date which approximates revenue recognition date.

Note:

In accordance with the provisions of the Hong Kong Stamp Duty
Ordinance, the Group will apply for refund of the stamp duty paid
when the property redevelopment project commences. The balance
at 31 March 2019 was refunded to the Group during the year ended
31 March 2020.

The management closely monitors the credit quality of
trade and other receivables and considers trade and other
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be of
good credit quality.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables at 31 March 2020 are set out in note 39.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, at prevailing market interest rates ranging
from 0.001% to 2% (2019: 0.001% to 2.6%) per annum.

25.

AEERERTHEPEMEER - &
ZRYGRIAR RE MR 2Rk - T5
REZIREEABRAZEZ AR

T o
Mt -

RIREBEEROAD 2 (R5R - EWXERIAR
REE - ANEEKRERE D IEER o ®
20193 H31 R Z & #2020 3A31 A F
FRETARE -

EIEE Y BRI E B A A R U R IR HY
EEEEYRA/RBIMIARKBENE
SMEMEUFAEEERTFNEE M

R202053A31 R E 5 M EAth B K RIR 2
EFHE IS BN FES9

RITERRBAE

RITEBREFSBREASEEFEAE 2 HS
ARIZRBITMSFEFEBO0.001%E2%
(20194 : 0.001% £2.6%) 2 ={A A=k~
AT EIER 2 e HRERITI7 3K ©
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e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

25.BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued) 25. RITHEBR R B €@

Included in the bank balances as at 31 March 2020 is M2020F3A318 @ RITEHBERESEA
an amount of HK$16,106,000 (2019: HK$51,172,000) 16,106,000/ 70 (20194 : 51,172,000/
denominated in US$, a currency other than the functional T AHBEE TR ER AN B
currency of the relevant group entities. EITHIME °
Included in the bank balances as at 31 March 2019 was an M2019F3A31H » RITEHBIELHE
amount of HK$80,689,000 denominated in New Zealand 480,689,000/ TLAMBE LB E I8
dollars (“NZD"), a currency other than the functional currency BN B Fam T ((Fmamrl)s)
of the relevant group entities. (=R
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. B 5 R H MM RIE
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FETL
Trade payables B 5 R RIE 5,508 1,993
Retention payable (note) FEfRIE ® (KT E) 11,460 11,204
Rental deposits received and rental Bl eke KFBEWHES
received in advance 9,944 10,551
Deposits received for disposal of HEVRER 2 BRIZS
Junior Note (note 20(a)) (Kt&£20(a) 15,480 =
Property management fund payable ENMEERES = 7,277
Interest payable FE 7.2 419 674
Accruals and other payables TR & H fth FE T 3R IE 9,351 10,233
52,162 41,932
Note: As at 31 March 2020, retention payable of HK$11,460,000 Bt - 20203 A31H - ERNRES
(2019: HK$11,204,000) is expected to be settled within twelve 11,460,000/ 7L (20194F : 11,204,000
months after the end of the reporting period. B ERENRERRETZEAR
XAt e
The aged analysis of trade payables determined based on BEZHEAR  BHERNRERRSH
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RZBRWRDITOT ¢
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
0-60 days 0-60H 5,508 1,534
Over 90 days HB3E90H = 459
5,508 1,993
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

27.AMOUNT DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 27.FEff3EZERBRREE
SHAREHOLDER

The amount is unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand ZEeBEREBER 28 - HEHANHZRK
and non-trade in nature. IFRXG2ME o
28.SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 28. B RBITREE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEITL
Carrying amount repayable as follows JEEEZREENT
(based on the scheduled repayment (REHINNRER H#
dates set out in the loan agreements): JEEEERE)
= within one year -—FR 823,275 752,551
— between one to two years - —EmMF 237,787 29,349
- between two to five years - —_ERF 133,492 247,756
— more than five years - HF1% 233,632 256,328
1,428,186 1,285,984
Less: Amount due within one year shown & - BERRARBEEY
under current liabilities —FRNE R (823,275) (752,551)
Amount due after one year shown BRRIERBEEBZ
under non-current liabilities —FRIPEHE 604,911 533,433
The Group's secured bank borrowings carry interest at Hong AEE BRBRITEESFUEBR
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 1% to HIBOR TREFRB(EBRITAERED N %
plus 2% (2019: HIBOR plus 1% to HIBOR plus 2%) per EHRBRITRAIEFEMN2% (20195 : &
annum, with effective interest ranging from 2.66% to 4.05% BIRITRIZER B %2 FBRITRER
(2019: 2.26% to 3.66%) per annum. The loans are secured BN2%)etHE - BEBRFHEITIA2.66%
by certain assets as disclose in note 32. The proceeds were £4.05%(20194F : 2.26% £3.66%) °
mainly used to finance development of properties. ZEERTDUNE TEEEREBEMRL HE
MRHIEE32 - FIISRBXERAERNTEE
M o
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e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & 220203 531H - F &

29.LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HEAE
2020
HK$'000
FHET
Lease liabilities payable: JENFREAE
Within one year —FA 851
Within a period of more than one year but not REI—F A LB HEBRE
more than two years 410
1,261
Less: Amount due with 12 months shown JB BB AE 2 T =@ A A EIH
under current liabilities o] (851)
Amount due after 12 months shown under non- B RRIERBEEZ + @A %D H& 5
current liabilities 410

193



Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2020 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

30.DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years:

30. B LR A

TXRREMMBEFEERANEIER
ERBEE) BBENREEE :

Accelerated

ECL tax
allowance depreciation Tax losses Total

HHEE IR IE
EERE e HIEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET T&T T FEIT
At 1 April 2018 20184 H1H - 831 (831) -

Charge (credit) to profit RiE=ER GTA)

or loss - 535 (535) -
At 31 March 2019 M2019F3H31H - 1,366 (1,366) -
Credit to profit or loss RiBEETA (2,476) (16) (140) (2,632)
At 31 March 2020 720203 H31H (2,476) 1,350 (1,506) (2,632)

At 31 March 2020, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$125,080,000 (2019: HK$53,506,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset had been
recognised in respect of HK$9,127,000 (2019: HK$8,279,000)
of such losses as at 31 March 2020. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$115,953,000 (2019: HK$45,227,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams. The tax losses can
be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 March 2020, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of HK$44,157,000 (2019: nil) arising from the
ECL on loans receivable, ECL on other debt instruments
at amortised cost, write-down of properties held for
development for sale and write-down on properties held for
sale. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation
to deductible temporary difference of HK$29,151,000 arising
from write-down of properties held for development for
sale and write-down on properties held for sale as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

M2020F3A31H + AEBEBEREFA
T8 [E518 /125,080,000 7T (20194 -
53,506,000 70) + A AR 8 oK 2R 4
A o R A202063A31H 2 HIBEEIE
9,127,000/ 7t (20194F : 8,279,000/
TEERABEEMBEE - ANEE
TR GEFmA ML EERHBT
115,953,000/ 7T (20194 : 45,227,000
B ZMBEBBARLEHREBELE - HIE
BB AR HR A o

M2020F3A31H » AEBEEKEKTE
HEEBEEEENUNBREREES
44,157,000/ 7T (20194 : #&) - Hih(E
HBITEMEHREEEBREHEX A
2 WORREL BB B Y E RMURRE
HEWZE - BERMBFIELEERED
3 MUR RS DB W S E A R ] HURER
FFZ%629,151,0008 THERBELERIBE
E - REAEFRS &R0 s 8% AR
AR R Z A B B 2 FIEEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

31.SHARE CAPITAL 31. kA&
Nominal
value Number of
per share shares Amount
BREE BAEE ot}
HK$ HK$'000
T FET
Authorised: JEIE ¢
At 1 April 2018, 31 March R2018F4H1H -
2019 and 31 March 2020 20193 HA31H
20203 A31H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREE -
At 1 April 2018 MR20185F4H1H 0.1 79,420,403 7,942
Issue of new shares (note) BATHRAD (A aE) 0.1 11,900,000 1,190
At 31 March 2019 and MR2019F3H31H &
31 March 2020 202043 A31H 0.1 91,320,403 9,132
Note: On 17 May 2018, the Company allotted 11,900,000 ordinary Mt 20186 817H » AR A E 3%

shares of HK$0.1 each by placing to not less than six placees
at a placing price of HK$4.60 per placing share. The Company
raised HK$54,193,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at
the time of placing for acquisition of properties. The new placing
shares were issued pursuant to the general mandate granted to
the directors by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company
passed at the annual general meeting held on 7 August 2017.

All shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2019
rank pari passu with the then existing shares in issue in all
respects.

11,900,0000% & §% 0. 178 7T 2 38 A A% 17
NEREERNHESEE4.608 T
ETFTRLONANEGEREA - KRATES
54,193,000 7T (F0 5k F 2 18 ) X Bt & B
TEREKREYE - FTRERG IR
20178 A7HBEFREHARRIBRRELS
Tz — MR IEEET -

FrAREE201943A31 8 ILFE TR
PDRETEHEERDBRTROZTARS
R o
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z202043531H - &

32.

33.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32.

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of
the Group were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities
granted to the Group:

EERR

RB|EMR  AEEERTRITIEAE
BYAKEERBEEZEENT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FETL

Leasehold properties HEYE 74,602 74,676

Investment properties KEYE 1,262,200 1,297,900

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BB EMREFES 12,911 40,366

Life insurance policy ASRE 11,194 11,051

Perpetual bonds KAEFH 14,339 39,916
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAFEFAEMEE

Was 2 BT A 29,543 46,376

Properties held for development for sale ~ #F{EHERREME 1,984,981 1,463,166

Properties held for sale FIEHEWE 91,174 91,174

3,480,944 3,064,625

At 31 March 2020, 71,500,000 shares of Eminence with fair
value of HK$33,041,000 (2019: nil) held by a subsidiary of the
Group is pledged to a bank.

In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment
properties and future sale proceeds and rentals in respect
of the above properties held for development for sale and
properties held for sale are also pledged to banks.

MR2020F3A31H » "EBH— B
BARAREHEERNT71,500,000 M ES
33,041,000/ 7T (20194 : #)M = 1L
¥RHEEIFTFRIT -

gsh - BRI EYM R M E R Bl
HEBRRMEEFFELENMEZ RKH
SRS REE IR TRT -

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS  33. &AL H
The Group as lessee TEBEREEA
2019
HK$'000
FET
Minimum lease payments recognised in profit or A ERNRIBESHER 2 &K LR
loss during the year 1,632
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33.OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

33.BREHANZTHE )

EEEEREBEA®

R|ERR - NEERB A RELSE
F#) Z R R &K A8 49 1~ FOE & B BR 40
T

2019
HK$'000
THET

—2E Py

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

As at 31 March 2019, operating lease payments represent
rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office premises
and directors’ quarters. Leases are negotiated for terms of
two to three years.

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease
payments were fixed and no arrangements had been entered
into for contingent rental payments.

1,281

F_EFAFAN(BREREMT) 708

1,989

R201953A318 - REMONFTIEAE
EEETHAENESEMZENE
T HAOMERR—_2=%F-

REASEFTZ 2L BONKES
Bl & W AT L AT B REHE -

The Group as lessor AEBERAHEA
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Property rental income earned RERTRILZ %

during the year el A 38,957 54,892
Less: Outgoings B 2 (1,435) (2,179)
Net rental income HEWAFRE 37,522 52,713

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

RS ¢ REHEMNKNT :

2020
HK$'000
TAET

—FR"
EF-FN

Within one year
In the second year
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33.OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

The Group as lessor (Continued)

At 31 March 2020, lease payments receivable on lease by the
Eminence Group fall due as follows:

33.

KREHNLTH @

REBEREHEA @

7202053 A31H, SR EEEKA
B &EBRERNRMAT :

2020
HK$'000
&L

Within one year —F R

The Group had contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum lease payments:

1,040

RNEBEBEF RIS AT RRKEELN

E
A -

2019

HK$'000

FHEIT

Within one year —FR 10,150
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERFNA

(BRREEMF) 2,587

12,737

As at 31 March 2019, under the leases entered into by the
Group, the lease payments were fixed and no arrangements
had been entered into for contingent rental payments. The
properties held have committed tenants for terms of one to
three years.

As at 31 March 2019, operating lease rentals committed by
close relatives of certain directors of the Company fall due as
follows:

R2019%3A31H » RIEAEBEFI 2
4 MONRABETE R ELT LA
SNFRLH - BFEMEZRAY AR —=
=fF-

R2019%3A31H  ARBETFESF 2
BRREZCEHERS 28R MT ¢

2019
HK$'000
TAET

Within one year —FR
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

The Group as lessor (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, operating lease rentals committed by
the Eminence Group fall due as follows:

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

33.BREHANZTHE )

REBEREHEA @

201993 A31H © mIUEEBFTAE
ZRETHERS 2RI ¢

2019
HK$'000
FAET

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum
of HK$1,500 and they can choose to make additional
contributions. The employer's monthly contributions are
calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to
a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory contributions”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’'s mandatory
contributions upon their retirement at the age of 65, death or
total incapacity.

The aggregate employers’ contributions which have been

dealt with in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
amounted to HK$719,000 (2019: HK$706,000).

199

F_EFAFAN(BEERMF)

2,496
1,040

3,536

34. R IRERIGTE

AEEREE S BB ERTRS & K
] - 2EBREFTE

REEe:TET  EEERBESRFS
HHE5%kEH%A1,5008 7 EEILA]
EERELEIIMR - BEXZBARKARE
EBEECBRAFEHEMRTISNIEEZ A
1,500 7T « ([&&IMHEFK]) - BER
BERRIRIRES « LT SKER B ARITAREN
K - Al ZAEEARSIMEHEKZ100% °

HZE2020F3A31HILFERBHERB 2
1B F 48 %E &719,00078 7T (20194 -
706,0005 7T) °
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35.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 July 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 El
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company.
Under the 2012 EI Scheme, the directors of the Company
may at their absolute discretion grant options to all directors
(including any executive and non-executive directors), full-
time employees and consultants of the Group to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The 2012 EI Scheme is valid for ten
years commencing 5 July 2012, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 EI Scheme are to encourage
eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 El
Scheme must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the
date of adoption of 2012 ElI Scheme. The overall limit on the
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2012 El
Scheme and other share options schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates shall be subject to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of
their respective associates, would result in the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted to such person in the 12-month period
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the
Company issue and having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of each grant,
in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of options
shall be subject to shareholders’ approval with the connected
persons of the Company abstaining from voting.

35. IR EET 2

MR2012F7AB AR AR ER A —IB
BEAR REAT B (20124 5k 3 B0 B B A% 4
T2 - BIE201 25 k& BB BT
2 ARREEAREMBRAMBES
(BEEABITRIENTES)  AEH
Z2EBES MERIREERE - URE
AN B ZBAD © 201 24F 5k F B B B8 A 4
STEIBRFEAE M 5 X ss sk - TR
201267 A5+ ER—EER

2012 K EERBRE S 5 BB T
BERZEERNEAARA REKN
ZEEATEARBRERR ZZEHN

S o
T

AR201 25k EBERBREEIMAE
BREZBERETUITERETZRSK
MEE - TRBEEBN2012F kEZEERE
RiEFERAB B ZEETRMNI0% °
AIR20125 k EBRBRER 8 AR
AIEMBRESSMESREERKRT
FEZRERETUTERZRTZRNEAR
ZEBLR FEEATKDRHTRN
30% °

RAAABEMESE  FBTHRABERE
ERRAEAREZTBEZIBHEARLZ
FEBRE - 9ARSARAIEMIEHR
TEFEHE - MAARAEZERRIIE
VHMTEFTHEMRESEZHEA
RO EAERE  MAERE12EA B
A MZEALTERHEBRHEZM
BERBERETERS BT RSETIR
DS BEARRDEITRN0.1% -
MRERGRELAMRBRMzER
BERMINZARB RO BT EFEZ
fig 7 48 [ #83%15,000,0008 T - L5
E—SREBEREANERRZHE
MARBZBEALTRERABHER

o= °



KEBREBAERAT 20205

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Subject to the aforesaid, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to each grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further
grant of options in excess of the limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval with such grantee and his associates
abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under the 2012
El Scheme is determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall end on a date which is not later than ten
years from the date of grant of the options. At the time of
grant of the share options, the Company must (a) specify the
minimum period(s), if any, for which a share option must be
held before it can be exercised in whole or in part, and (b)
specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which
must be achieved before the share options can be exercised
in whole or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an
offer for grant of share options is HK$1.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option
of the 2012 EI Scheme shall be no less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company's shares on the date of
offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 EI Scheme or
exercised during both years.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &
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36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows

from financing activities.

36. RERMEEH 2R EZHAEH

&

TRHAVAKERERE TS 2 BEE
B SRACKIReEH - KAME
BB ZBEENAEBRERES » KK
ReREREIBRAKEZEERS

MERZKEAMEED HENE °

Amount
due to a non-
Lease Dividend Interest Secured bank  controlling
liabilities payable payable borrowings shareholder Total
Bt —fu
BEA F21K
HERE EfRE ERFIE RITE BReE an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#r T#r T#T TET TET TET
At 1 April 2018 12018F4A1R = = 735 1,151,742 - 1152477
Bank borrowings raised ZERTER - - - 359,765 - 359,765
Repayment of bank borrowings BB R{TIEE - - - (522,848) - (522,848)
Interest paid BRFIS - - 33,782) - - (33,782)
Dividend paid ERRE - (4,566) - - - (4,566
Advance from non-controlling FERBRES
shareholder - - - - 101,009 101,009
- (4,566) (33,047) 988,659 101,009 1,052,055
Non-cash changes: FREEE:
Acquisition/disposal of assets ~ EBUEE /HENE
and liabilities through DA/ HERE
acquisition/disposal of REEW7408)
subsidiaries (note 40a) - - - 296,988 - 296,988
Interest expense on bank RITEEHERY
borrowings - - 33,721 337 - 34,058
Dividend declared (note 17) BEMREWZ11) = 4,566 = = = 4,566
At 31 March 2019 201937318 - - 674 1,285,984 101,009 1,387,667
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 SRAEBEH 4 £
F165% 2 2,390 = = = - 2,390
At 1 April 2019 (restated) 20195471 B (BH51%) 2,390 = 674 1,285,984 101,009 1,390,057
Bank borrowings raised ZERTET = = = 257,803 = 257,803
Repayment of bank borrowings (BB R{TIEE = = = (115,966) = (115,966)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMEAR (1,236) - - - - (1,236)
Interest paid BFIE (105) = (47,284) = = (47,389)
Dividend paid BRRE - (4,566) - - - (4,566)
Repayment to a non-controlling BB F—fIIERER
shareholder = = = = (17,600) (17,600)
Advance from anon-controlling  —fIIERIRAR R B
shareholder - - - - 6,939 6,939
1,049 (4,566) (46,610) 1,427,821 90,348 1,468,042
Non-cash changes: FReEy
Interest expense on bank RABEEZFIBAT
borrowings - - 47,029 365 - 47,39
Addition of lease liabilities HEAEEM 107 = = = = 107
Interest expense on lease REaEFHERY
liabilities 105 = = = = 105
Dividend declared (note 17) BERREWZ11) = 4,566 = = = 4,566
At 31 March 2020 120206374318 1,261 - 419 1,428,186 90,348 1,520,214
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e MR R

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

3N.BEALRE BEXS

During the year, the Group had the following transactions (a) RER AEFES LOEEEE
with the Eminence Group: TITRS :
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHEITL
Rental income HeHKA 2,496 2,496
Management fee income BEEBRA 420 =
Disposal of a motor vehicle HERE = 405
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director and substantial shareholder BEEU%RLLT ARAIESERFER

of the Company, is also a director of Eminence.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group holds
convertible notes issued by Eminence, details of which
are set out in note 18(b).

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

R-NAESULEES-

(b) 720204 %201943A31H » A&

ERFAHRUCERBETZARRE
& FHIEEIIRHIEE18(b) ©

(c) EEEEANBZHM

E=EHEMEIBZEERERFAL

management during the year was as follows: BT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Short-term employee benefits EHEERA
Salaries and other benefits FrehEtEH 18,912 15,933
Performance-related bonus HRIVB@E RS = 34,500
Retirement benefits scheme RRFEFIET B
contributions 336 303
19,248 50,736
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37.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Compensation of key management
personnel (Continued)

The Group has been providing accommodation to Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu for use by her and her family members.
With effect from 1 March 2019, the Company further
determined to provide these residential units and
carparking spaces to Mr. Koon Chun Ting, a son of
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a director of subsidiaries of the
Company, free of rental and charges for as long as he
is employed by the Group. With effect from 20 March
2020, the Company further determined to provide these
residential units and carparking spaces to Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy. Details of this arrangement are set out in
note 9(a)(ii).

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and the
executive directors, respectively, having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

In January 2011, the Company entered into an
employment agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee to act
as general manager of the Company. The employment
agreement, which constitutes a connected transaction,
commenced on 21 February 2011 but may be terminated
by either party at any time by three months’ notice. The
monthly salary has been adjusted twice to HK$180,000
with effect from 1 April 2017. The remuneration of Mr.
Koon Wing Yee as general manager of the Company
during the year was HK$2,600,000 (2019: HK$2,340,000)
and was included in the “compensation of key
management personnel” in (c) above.

Mr. Koon Wing Yee is the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
who is a director of the Company. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu also
holds 19.09% (2019: 19.09%) equity interest of the
Company through an entity wholly-owned by her.

3N.BEALRE BEXZ®

(c)

(d)

FEEEASZHM@®

AEERBELELIRZL 15
BERFEZREKEFER - 52019
FIRATBRBRER  ARAFE—FR
FTRAEBEEELE  EEURLENRE
THARARWBARESRRMEZ
EREEMREEMN  WRIBHEF
ERAEBNIEERHEANER -
B2020F3 204 © KD A
E—HREREAIR/NAREZS
FEBEMNEBEM - BELTHEN
B B KT FE ) ) ©

EENTETBRABZME S HIH
FHZE e RATEFRRERA
TZRBRMEBBMET -

R2011F1 8 » RRAREEKEL
SEINERHE BEREALRAT
2RI o ZER W B R
X5 H2011F2A218F% 0 8
AREFREM—AREREELS T
“EABMMKRIL - AHEHAER
X Z180,000/ T © B2017F4 A1
HEX - BEXELEERFRELLE
NEIBLEIE 7 B4 52,600,000 7T
(20194F : 2,340,000 7T) - RO B
FEENECBEZIEEEEBABZH
B A o

BERBREABEREHR LT ZEE -
BEBARRES - BEHKRELIINE
B-RHEEEREZERREEAR
7]19.09% (20194 : 19.09%) fx A

MR o
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37.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

During the year, the Group received rental income
totalling HK$234,000 (2019: HK$240,000) from certain
close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy.

During the year, the Group paid HK$1,750,000 (2019:
HK$1,594,000) to Wing Yee Football Team Company
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Koon Wing Yee,
which is recognised in profit or loss as “advertising”.

During the year, the Group paid HK$3,311,000 (2019:
HK$200,000) to Easyknit Charitable Foundation Limited,
a company controlled by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon
Ho Yan Candy, which is recognised in profit or loss as
“donations”.

()  During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
acquired 100% equity interest of Total Expect and
shareholder loan from the Eminence Group for a
cash consideration of HK$1,035,000,000.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
disposed of its entire 100% equity interest in
Wellmake Investments and shareholder loan to
the Eminence Group for a cash consideration of
HK$470,000,000 resulting in a gain on disposal of a
subsidiary of HK$7,913,000.

(i)  The cash consideration payable to the Eminence
Group amounting to HK$586,040,000 per (i)
above was offset with the cash consideration
receivable from the Eminence Group amounting to
HK$317,954,000 per (ii) above, which gave rise to a
net settlement of HK$268,086,000 by the Group to

the Eminence Group.

Details of the above are disclosed in note 40 and the
announcement and circular issued by the Company
jointly with Eminence dated 21 November 2018 and 12
February 2019 respectively.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

3N.BREALRE BEXZ®

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

RER AREBWREEHRZEI R
BAMZLETEHR 2 HEWAS
234,000/ 7T (20194 : 240,00078
JL) °

RER - ANEE 1,750,000 7T
(20194 : 1,594,000/ 7T) T k& &
KBEAERAR  —BEKELEE
flznm REZEREIESH
X e

RERN + AEEFZ 13,311,000 7T
(20194F : 200,000/ 7T) Tk FE#EE
HEe2FRAR  —HHEEKRL
T REARZETESZ AR KRB
mER BB -

) BZE20199%3A31HItF
B AEBMNUNBE KB
1,035,000,000/8 oA = Ll 1> %
&= E U Total Expect 100% 2
PR AR R R E K o

(i) EHZE2019F3A31HILEE -
ARE B PAIR £ X 8470,000,000
BTHEERBELEREZRE
100% B A= R4 F el
X¥EEBREER  BEHE
— BB AR #=7,913,00078

JC ©

Fai)EMSLtEERE YR
4 X {8586,040,0005% 5t = &
FaiiEl s LrESE IR
B £ %E317,954,000/8 TR
- AEEASILEEEET
R F 455 268,086,000/8 7T ©
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38.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes secured bank borrowings disclosed in note 28
and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, accumulated
profits and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and raising or repayment of bank
borrowings.

Constance Capital (see note 22) is regulated by the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission and is required to
comply with the financial resources requirements according to
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules (the “SF(FR)R"). Management closely monitors, on a
daily basis, Constance Capital’s liquid capital level to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirement
under the SF(FR)R. Constance Capital has no non-compliance
of the capital requirement imposed by the SF(FR)R during the
year.

3. EXREERE

RERAEERTERIEBFAL
2 AREHEEAETERE  BEE
BEMEAGEHRERREFGN SRR
FRERSEE - AEEZEEBREKE
BEFEREFTIE -

AEENEARBRSERFEETE
BREENME28 2 G IEMRITEERE
M-k EkReRE  RehFRR
ERANFRREGED  EFEER
BATHA ~ BEHa A R #E

ARARESTEHRRIBEARE - (FAR
A —#D EFEREARARER
MARRER - RIBEENER - A5E
REBIRNRE - BITHRO RESH
BERRITEE - UTFEHERERRSE -

SAIEEAR(RKMIE22) IR BEES KH
EERERZBeEENEETRESR
ABREsE GBRER R (ER R
EEFBRERRAUDZHABRERER -
EEESHEYERLEEAZRDE
SKFAERENEESLRAE (MHE
RIRANZZERBESER - REAL
HEALETTERLZRLBE(MBE
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

39. ¢RI T A
(a) 2RI E>ER

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets CHEE
Amortised cost 3[R
~ Trade and other receivables - B 5 R E WA 4,351 5,381
- Other debt instruments — B AT EZ
at amortised cost HMEBIA 50,045 31,712
- Loans receivable - EWER 236,751 206,674
- Bank balances and cash - RITEERNIES 117,920 191,670
409,067 435,437
FVTPL BRAFEF AR
- Financial assets at FVTPL - ROV EFABRRZ
SREAE 172,858 184,666
FVTOCI BAFEFARMEERES
- Debt instruments at FVTOCI -BRAFESFAEME
[El Gy v 29,543 46,376
Financial liabilities SHEE
Amortised cost 3[R
- Trade and other payables -B 5 REMEMNKIE 43,841 34,059
- Amount due to a non-controlling - AR SR
shareholder 90,348 101,009
- Secured bank borrowings - BEAETEE 1,428,186 1,285,984
1,562,375 1,421,052
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39. €@ I A
(b) BIEEREEEZERBR

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include other
debt instruments at amortised cost, debt instruments at
FVTOCI, trade and other receivables, loans receivable,
financial assets at FVTPL, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder, lease liabilities and secured bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure that
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to certain bank balances, bank borrowings
and variable-rate loans receivable. The Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate loans receivable. The Group has not used
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to
such interest rate risk, however, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk on
financial liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group's cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of HIBOR arising from bank borrowings.

AREBZFTESHMTAGEREE
RAFEZHEMEBTA - BAF
Bt AEMEmEE 2 EBIA -
B hHEMEWIE - BRER

BRAFEFABEZEHEE - R
THEHEES  EHREMEMNK
ﬂ§ B —IEERRESEE -
EAEREBRBRITEE - %52
BMTEAEZHBEEENEBN G
WeMZEEMTES R AR
LA K2 P& AR 5% 5 R\ Bx 2 B 2R BN 51 40
T - EEEERERERZ %@ﬁl«‘/ﬁ
AR & A U SR EGE & E 1 o

5 8 B

(i) FIE=@EZ
REBAXBNE TRITHE
# - RITEE M BRKER
ZiﬁiumgﬁtU?J—wA $E B
NAXBERESRKRERZ R
FEMEXRR  AEEWRE
8 RERDTE S &9 LA 3% A
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Total interest revenue/income from financial assets
that are measured at amortised cost is as follows:

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

39. €@ T A
(b) BEEBREEEERBER®)

% B ()
(i) Py @5 (&)
BEERATEZCEREE L

A Sz, WALREIT

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FETL
Interest revenue N B UL S
Financial assets at amortised cost R K ANzH & 2
TREE 23,487 18,591
Other income H A
Financial assets at amortised cost R K ANz E 2
TREE 7,216 8,096
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAFERT AEAM
EHEKEZER
TE 1,979 1,240
Total interest income B A B EE 32,682 27,927
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for certain
bank borrowings and variable-rate loans receivable.
The analysis was prepared assuming these
balances outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. 50
basis points (2019: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
If interest rate had been 50 basis points (2019: 50
basis points) higher or lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's profit for the year
ended 31 March 2020 would decrease or increase
by HK$5,924,000 (2019: profit for the year would
decrease or increase by HK$5,326,000).

The bank balances are excluded from the sensitivity
analysis as the management of the Group considers
that the interest rate fluctuation is not significant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

UWTZ@EEDMERET
BITEERZEEKRERZF
REABE - BREADH IR
R ERBER R EHRE
FEFRE - OEE%Z (2019
& 5OfE A 2 2h) 1% Nk s
RE EIEJEHH‘JTZT‘*M
BEE) - WA XN EIERE0
EEAESE (20194F : 5OEE%E
BOMATAEEMAEEETE
REBNREE2020F3A31H
W FE 2 5% T35 4 sk g 0
5,924,000 7T (20194 : F /&
st I #8838 hn5,326,0005%
JT) °
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39. £ T A
(b) BEREBREEEERBER®)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) 5 R B (&)
(i) Currency risk (i) B b

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign
currency denominated monetary assets at the end

RE|BEHR - UINETIEZ&E
BERBCEREEZREED

of the reporting period are as follows: N
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
uss$ ET 106,012 192,872
NZD AR - 80,689
Sensitivity analysis BREDT

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate
risk on HK$ against US$ and NZD for the foreign
currency denominated monetary assets. Under the
pegged exchange rate system, the financial impact
on exchange difference between HK$ and US$ will
be immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in HK$ against NZD.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. A positive number below
indicates decrease in post-tax profit where HK$
strengthen 5% against NZD. For a 5% weakening
of HK$ against NZD, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the
balances below would be negative.

AEERINENEZEREE
ZERERETERKRBBITLA
X RHARIT - ARBEE
RHE - REAETEEITER
ZERIUBHELTEKN 8
R A R EBURE T ©

TREIIAREBET LI
BT ERRES% ZHEE
HBE bR NAETREEAER
MER 2 HHMNE R B 5K A 2 BURK
B ®E  URKREEEHING
EXRSEAIREEF 2 FE - T
5] 2 IE 8R3N8 JT 5 HT B B
TETHED % B BR 3 1% 4 7R
Do BLAHBAMITRESS
B BEBRREENEFER
MRZFE  MATESRER
BH-

Decrease in post-tax profit B 514 g 1R

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET T

- 3,369
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iir)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy to eliminate the currency
exposures. However, the management monitors
the related foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its
investments in debt instruments at FVTOCI,
perpetual bonds, listed equity securities measured
at FVTPL. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles and the Group has a team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the
risk exposure should the need arise. The Group's
price risk is concentrated on equity securities listed
in Hong Kong and these investments are diversified
into several different industries.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to price risk at
the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the debt instruments at FVTOCI had
been 10% higher/lower, FVTOCI reserve for the
year ended 31 March 2020 would increase/decrease
by HK$2,954,000 (2019: HK$4,638,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of debt instruments at
FVTOCI.

If the prices of the perpetual bonds had been 10%
higher/lower, post-tax loss for the year ended
31 March 2020 would decrease/increase by
HK$1,434,000 (post-tax profit for 2019: increase/
decrease by HK$3,992,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL.

e

B35 SRR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

39. €@ T B
(b) HHREAREEEERBE®)

B R ()

(i) B%E R )
BURE DT (8)
7K 55 B 3R B X AR SIS S 0 BUR
OB E®ER - AT - 32
@@%ﬁﬁ%%‘%ﬁ%ﬁZﬁl\%@ﬁﬁ
REREBTERRERINE
J—USM TT;‘J/EP

(iii) 1E15 /22

BBRAKERERRAFER
AHfzEBEZEHIA -
KAES - BRATFEFAEBR
ZEMBEARS  BEAEH
A ERRR - BEEEBR
ETARBRzEBSFREEEIA
IR AR $EIEI%W
ZERERAEEREES
%QF&H& $EIZFW

&R R R EE LT 2 RAE
% M FEHREE D BAERE
TRTTE -

BURRE D
ATBEED T ERER RS
HIRATAS Z BRERERE °

W A FEFFAHE M2
ZEBIEEBREH TR
10% * & Z= 20203 H318 1k
FERAFEFAHEMEEY
w2 REBRZRATEF AR
teEElEsEETAZAF
EEEE 12,954,000

7C(2019% : 4,638,000/ 7T) °

WXAEHFERE TR L
10% * & Z£2020F3AH31H It
FEBRBMEEBEESRIZATE
§+]\¥§¥Zéﬁﬂﬁé2’&¥ﬁ

7t(2019¢1* Wémﬂ :
F+/ T F4£3,992,000/ 7T) °
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39. €@ I A
(b) BIEEREEEEZERBEK®)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of the listed equity securities had been
10% (2019: 10%) higher/lower, post-tax loss for
the year ended 31 March 2020 would decrease/
increase by HK$5,128,000 (post-tax profit for 2019:
increase/decrease by HK$8,823,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group’'s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets except for listed
equity securities, as detailed in note 18. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risk associated with its financial assets,
except that the credit risks associated with loans
receivable is mitigated because they are secured over
marketable securities or properties.

TS E R (&

(iii) 1E15 /7 Bz (&)
BURRE DT (48)
fiti E R ARE S BRI, £
F10% (20194 : 10%) * &
Z2020FE3A31BILFEBRT
BEREEE A E AR
CEMEBEZAFEE L
hn,/ @ 45,128,000 7. (2019
FREBFEBEF - #mn,5m
8,823,000/ 7T) °

=B R R B EFE

R2020F &201943A31H » A&
ERARSHEFRAEBRBTEAMEE
B BELA s ERNEERRIEE
A& IEE R éﬁﬁéﬁzﬁfﬂﬁ(t
MRAFEHBRIN) - FEHIFE18 o &
EEYESAETMEFARSETHmEL
e fEE ﬁm%&ﬁﬁﬁé@ﬁi@ﬂ
EEMRBEN :fﬁ CEEEWE
FAEBENEER Wfﬂz " BHEMA
BEE %t%%%ﬁ?ﬁﬂ
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39. &R T A
(b) BIEEREEEZERBEK®)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

=B /m R KB E TG ()

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
REBHANIEE R T RTEE
FELAT AR -

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal Financial assets other
credit rating Description than trade receivables
B2 EWRIEAINZ
AMEETR  Hl TREE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have 12m ECL
any past-due amounts
1K 2 B RSGEFREARBEIEK - B &M@ HAzRIE 128 AFEHEEEE
Medium risk Debtor frequently repays but usually settles after due date 12m ECL
R BEBALTERELERIHARERER 1218 R HEEEE
High risk There have been significant increase in credit risk since Lifetime ECL -
initial recognition through information developed internally or  not credit-impaired
external resources
= AR FRAIINBE RSN ER T AEERRBVGRERIA  FEHNEREEEE
REREIZ - BEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
BB BEBETNZEECHFEGERE FEMNTEREEEE
- FHEEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
g FRETEBABAREMNBREEAESERAEERK MHEFHESE

[l AJ B
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
In addition, the Group has applied different loss rates

to the internal credit rating category according to the
classification and nature of respective financial assets.

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL

39. £ T A
(b) BEEBREEEEZERBER®)

1= B /7 B2 K BB 5712 ()

4N

AEHECRESGHEEL

DB R EE M E AR E SR AR
FER T REER -

TRANAKESREEZEER
b - WA TREMEEEEG

assessment:
External Internal Gross
credit credit 12m or Loss rate carrying
2020 Notes  rating rating lifetime ECL range amount
128 A
M g FERN i -E
Mt &R BETR RACEHS gE BEAE
HK$°000
Tin
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
BAVESAHE2ZENEZ
BEHIR
Investments in listed bonds 19 B (i) 12m ECL 251% to 30,644
7.36% (note iv)
RER FifEs 12EARLEEERR 251% 2 (Rt=Eiv)
7.36%
Financial assets at amortised cost
RBRRATTEZEREE
Loans receivable 21 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 3%t0 6% 244,679
FEWER TEH EEE 12BARHEEER 3%Z6%
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 100% 25,058
TER ) FERANESEEFR
Bank balances 25 AltoPrime-1 N/A 12m ECL N/A 117,919
RITER MEREE-1 TER 12BARHEEER TEA
Other debt instruments at amortised cost 20 N/A Lowrisk 12m ECL 4% 16,015
BREERAT R EMERTR TER EER 1L2@EARSEEFE
20 N/A High risk Lifetime ECL 26.78% 41,906
THER BEE HFEMNAHRCEERR
Trade receivables 24 N/IA (i) Lifetime ECL N/A 2,799
B AR THER FERMNESREEFR TER
Other receivables 24 N/A (i) 12m ECL N/A 1,552
Hhfelesion TER 12ERREEERE TER
24 N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 100% 1,819
TER S FERNRHEERR
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. 2R T AEw
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) R EEEERBER®)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment =B B B2 R Bl E 7718 (&
(Continued)
External Internal Gross
credit credit 12mor Loss rate carrying
2019 Notes  rating rating lifetime ECL range amount
12f8 A5
oD A FERR BEX
Mgt fREER BETE EHEESSE &2 BEEE
HK$'000
T#1
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
BRAVEG AR 2EKREZ
EHIA
Investments in listed bonds 19 B (i) 12m ECL 2.06% to 46,185
5.59% (note iv)
RER L% NEAESEESR 2.06%ZE (Higtiv)
5.59%
Financial assets at amortised cost
REMRATEZ SRER
Loans receivable 21 NA Lowrisk  12m ECL 3%1t05% 193,604
FEYERR TEA ERR 12EAESEESS 3%Z5%
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 100% 16,800
(note i)
T B FEMNBNEIER (ietii)
Bank balances 25  AltoPrime=-1 NA 12m ECL N/A 191,668
BRI MESES-1 TER  12EARHEESS TER
Other debt instrument at amortised cost 20 NA Lowrisk  12m ECL 10% 35,235
RRENATEZAMBERIA TR ERR  12EARSEESE
Other receivables 24 NA (ii) 12m ECL N/A 5,138

Eft EFR el 1EARREEER TER
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

For the purpose of internal credit impairment assessment,
the Group estimates with reference to external credit
rating adjusted by a premium on probability of default rate
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

For the purpose of internal credit impairment assessment,
the Group considers if there is any past due record or
other relevant information available without undue cost
or effort to assess whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

The loans receivable was fully collateralised, and therefore
no impairment allowance was recognised.

For the purpose of ECL assessment, the Group considers
the gross principal amount and the related contractual
interests of the debt instruments. As at 31 March 2020,
the gross principal amount of these debt instruments
amounted to HK$29,543,000 (2019: HK$46,376,000).

Debt instruments at FVTOC/

The Group assesses the credit risk of debt instruments
at FVTOCI at the reporting date. The Group's debt
instruments at FVTOCI mainly comprise listed bonds
that are graded by credit-rating agencies as per globally
understood definitions and certain bonds without
external credit rating are assessed by internal credit
ratings.

39. €@ T B
(b) HREBREEEERBE®)

1= B /m R KB E TG ()

Wit -

0 FABEERERETE . Aem
= AL

%ﬁkﬁ&”ﬁﬁﬂiZﬁu A Ii{éﬂEﬂ

(i) BMABEERENEHE - AEE
ZEELSAEMBEEELERNE
AEB I UERAL S SR 2 K
AR ERAHAEERR B V)56
HERIARB B AR LT -

(i) FENEREBEIEM - AL EAER
ERE -

(iv) BEHEEEBETAmE A58
ZREBIAZAEREREEBS
HF B o R20209E3A31H » ELk
%f%lﬂz,%@,ﬂﬁ@ﬁ?%zg,ms,ooo
77T (20194 : 46,376,000/ 7T) °

A FEIGARMEE ZZE
ETA

ZIKE@EM&iEHH;HEE/AWEH
AHEtzERE 2B IAZE
BERkE - ANEERAFESTAEM
PHNE EETAETERERE
ETARERBENBEMR I EET
Mz EmESE mETFTILEINTE
%pﬁ&wf%}ﬁuéﬂW*M:ff%i& i

12m ECL
1218 A7
EEEE
HK$'000
FEIT
At 1 April 2018 M2018F4H1H =
Impairment allowance recognised HEBETMEE
for new financial assets purchased R ERE 1,505
At 31 March 2019 20193 H31H 1,505
Change due to financial assets recognised BAREmEENR2019F3H31H
as at 31 March 2019 MRz
— Reversal upon redemption Eﬁﬁi‘i@ﬁ—ﬁﬁ@ (530)
— Impairment allowance recognised - R EEE 126
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3HA31H 1,101
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39. €@ T A
(b) BIEEREEEZERBEK®)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loans receivable

The Group had concentration of credit risk in
relation to gross carrying amount of loans receivable
amounting to HK$269,737,000 at 31 March 2020
(2019: HK$210,404,000) with 43% (2019: 55%) of
the balances secured by marketable securities with
fair values of HK$57,090,000 (2019: HK$134,557,000)
or properties with fair values of HK$110,000,000
(2019: HK$43,649,000). In addition, the unsecured
loan receivable amounting to HK$45,000,000 (2019:
HK$18,800,000) are with personal guarantee. The largest
borrower of the Group by itself and together with the
other four largest borrowers of the Group accounted for
approximately 19% and 57% respectively (2019: 19%
and 64% respectively) of the Group’s loans receivable
at 31 March 2020. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management has reviewed the recoverable
amounts of the loans receivable regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment is made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk on loans receivable
is significantly reduced. During the year ended 31 March
2020, impairment loss for loans receivable amounting
to HK$29,256,000 (2019: HK$273,000) was recognised
in profit or loss. At 31 March 2020, the accumulated
impairment allowance for loans receivable amounted to
HK$32,986,000 (2019: HK$3,730,000).

Bank balances

No allowance for impairment was made since the
directors of the Company consider that the probability of
default is negligible as such amounts are receivable from
or placed in banks with good reputation.

=B /m R KB E TG ()

ERE

AEBNKR2020F3A31HABE
WEFNBEEEZESREER

% & %8 £269,737,000/8 (2019
% :210,404,000 L) © H&
43% (20194 : 55%) & 82 A A F
/457,090,000 7L (20194 :
134,557,000 L) < BEZSHHA
F{E4110,000,00078 7T (20194 :
43,649,000/ 70) Z WA - 1t
AN SR AR LAE AR 2 FEUR
B3 A45,000,000/8 7L (20194 -
18,800,00087T) - AEE A H 2
RAERARERASE B H N
BRAEBRADBMEAREER2020F
3A31 EIZJEHSZ?T?MMW/O&W%
(20194 : %IJ19%&64%> o B
BEZEERR  SEECTH
EHRKER Z‘Mﬁz@i%ﬁ LARE
RAAJWEICEE RHARBERE -

it RRREEFRAAEERE
WERZEZERBERAERD - B
HZE2020FE3A31HIEFE - B
B 2R EE18/529,256,000/8 7T
(20194 : 273,000/ L) B R 1EZ
RFER ° 120203 A31H » EIK
Bz 2R ERE#E 532,986,000
BT (20194 ¢ 3,730,000/ 7T) °

RiTAERR

*E%ﬂf’ﬁﬂjﬁfﬁﬁé{% RAARBIES

RAEBNFIEREM T e BHNZF
@%EEXQITB&ECE‘{E%Z@
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39. €@ I A
(b) BIEEREEEEZERBEK®)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other debt instruments at amortised cost

The Group assesses the credit risk of other debt
instruments at amortised cost at the reporting date.
The Group's other debt instruments at amortised cost
mainly comprise the Junior Note and Secured Note, the
Group has assessed by internal credit rating determined
by financial background of the issuer. During the year
ended 31 March 2020, an impairment loss on other
debt instruments at amortised cost amounting to
HK$4,353,000 (2019: HK$3,523,000) was recognised
in the profit or loss. At 31 March 2020, the impairment
allowances for other debt instruments at amortised cost
amounted to HK$7,876,000 (2019: HK$3,523,000).

Trade receivables

The Group assess the credit risk of trade receivables
individually by estimation based on historical observed
default rates and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment
of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date.

No allowance for impairment was made since the
directors of the Company consider that the ECL
allowance is insignificant.

1= B /m R KB E TG ()

R AT E R bERE T A
REBRHKE AT ERBHERA
HEZEMBERIAZEERR -
REBIZBERNAITE 2 HME
BKITAFTEZEBRVAEERER
ZE THEALSEEREZETA
2HBESMET ZNEEEFT
WAEITRHE - RELE2020F 3 A31
BIEFE @ REHEKATTE2HAM
B TR 2R EREA4,353,000
770 (20194F © 3,523,000) B8
FEAMER o A2020%3A318 © %
BN ATEsLEMERTAZR
BB 15 57,876,000 7T (20194 ¢
3,523,000/ 7T) °

B SN IE
AEBEFARLERINENE
B ALERMEITERN —REEM
SUA R TESRE B & B A TE R 1T
M TT 2 5T 15 R A4S & B R KA
SRR -

HRARBEERLAMEERSRE
BmMN BB - BB R E
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39. €@ T A
(b) BIEEREEEZERBEK®)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other receivables

During the year ended 31 March 2020, an impairment
loss on other receivables amounting to HK$1,819,000
(2019: nil) was recognised in the profit or loss.

No allowance for impairment was made for the
remaining balances since the directors of the Company
consider that the probability of default is minimal after
assessing the counterparties’ financial background and
creditability.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations. The management
also monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

At 31 March 2020, the Group has available unutilised
bank loan facilities of HK$367,652,000 (2019:
HK$308,395,000).

=B /m R KB E TG ()

/ﬁ/—gyﬁ?wﬁ
HZE2020F3H31H  RIEFRA
BRAZEMERZZBEEEA
1,819,000/ 7T (20194 : 4&) o

HRARREFTEFEHE T 2 H
BERAEEERRBRBEN ALK
D ECH R T SRR R HORE B
o

HmEBELEE

RRBESEREREMS  ~&E
ERENEFEEERARHKFZ
RekFRBEEAEAEER 2K
% - ERENEREEZHAL
TR E B SF BRI o

MR2020F3A31H » AEBEABE XD
FIRITEREEE 5367,652,000/5 7T
(20194F : 308,395,000/ 7T) °
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.

39.

£FT He
(b) BIEEREEEEZERBEK®)

mEBELEER B

TRANAEEZz BB EZ TG
BHIBHR -FENTESRAE
ME » &Z&RIDBAEE AW E R
TNRFIHENEREERTR
REREIR °

Liquidity risk tables THEE LR R
Weighted
average  On demand
effective or Total  Carrying
interest lessthan 3 months 1t05 Over5 undiscounted amounts at
rate  3months  to1year years years  cashflows  31March
nErs  REOAY ARRE  R3A3NA
EBflz  HW3fER 3BAZIE 1258 BB5F MEAE ZBEE
% HK$000  HK$000  HK$00O  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
TAT FET FET FET T FET
2020
Trade and other payables ~ ZHREMENFE N/A 16,901 26,940 = = 43841 43,841
TER
Amount due to a non- ER—RERRE N/A 90,348 = = = 90,348 90,348
controlling shareholder X TER
Secured bank borrowings  AHERITEE 3.35 773,649 73057 413418 278,188 1538312 1,428,186
Lease liabilities HEaR 4.65 24 674 426 = 1324 1261
881,122 100,671 413,844 278,188 1,673,825 1,563,636
2019
Trade and other payables 2P REMENTE NA 33,600 459 = = 34,059 34,059
1 ER
Amount due to a non- et —frFEARRR N/A 101,009 = = = 101,009 101,009
controlling shareholder X ] TER
Secured bank borrowings  AERITEE 3.24 290023 489,088 319720 304764 1403595 1,285,984
424,632 489,547 319,720 304,764 1538663 1421052
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

39. £ T Ewm
(c) AP
(i) RIBAZMEERZLNFHE
ECAEFEAEEZAF
Vel
REEDHEBMEENRS B
KIEATETE - TRHHIE
BNAEE RS REAEAT
BOLES A2 GETER
FTBHA) 2B o

used).
Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs
SREE AFER3A318 ALEER EEAZREEGA EATTHEHA
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Financial assets at FVTPL
BAFEFABEZERERE
- Listed equity securities 61,411 105,666 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
market
- FRAES A ARSI E A
- Convertible notes 85,914 28,033  Level3 Black-Scholes model with Volatility from 56.83% to
(note (a)) Trinomial Tree method 78.64% (2019: 56.74%
(note 18(b)) 10 76.66%)
-AARER ERE MR - HRBEAR=EZE KIEAR56.83%%78.64%
(Hiit(a)) (B2 18(b) (2019% : 56.74% %
76.66%)
~ Life insurance policy 11,194 11,061  Level 2 Quoted asset value provided by~ N/A
a financial institution (note (b))
- A\BRE EVE SRMBRE MREEERE  TER
(Hizt b))
= Perpetual bonds 14,339 39,916  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
market
- KAEF AL GBS LB M
Debt instruments at FVTOCI 29,543 46,376 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
market
RATESAHG2EAKE E1R R RTISATIRL LB NEA

BEIA
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value

(i)

(ii)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

Notes:

(@) A slight increase in the volatility used in isolation
would result in a slight increase in the fair value
measurement of the convertible notes, and vice
versa.

(b) Quoted asset value provided by a financial
institution represents the fair value of the underlying
investments.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3
in both years.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

Except for the Junior Note to be disposed in August
2020 as detailed in note 20(a), the directors of the
Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
to their fair values.

39. €T H®w
(c) A¥1{&E
(i) RIBALFEMEERL N FHEG

BeErEEEHEEZRF
E (%)
Mt
(a) B BEE M0 B RE R A0S

YA BRRERZ A FEF
EBMALT  RZIA -

b) SEEBRHEZMBEEE
BIEBREZAFE-

RMEFE  F1& - F28 K
FE3R A E|EETE

(ii) WBERIFZEMEERZ LT

BB EHAERSBA
#=>AFE
SHEERSRMABEHATE
RIBISHTRIA S5 T 2 —
R e (L B

BrBI5E20(a) FTRF il 2 #522020
FEAHENTAZEIN - K
NAIEZRE NG UHBH
FIENSRHEERSHAE
MERAEEE N FERE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

40. ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Acquisition of Total Expect and disposal of

40. ZBWE HEME QW
B HEEEREE

(a) W B Total ExpectRk HEEE

Wellmake Investments

On 8 March 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% equity interest in Total Expect from a subsidiary of
Eminence for a cash consideration of HK$1,035,000,000
and the disposal of its entire 100% equity interest in
Wellmake Investments to a subsidiary of Eminence for
a cash consideration of HK$470,000,000. The principal
asset of Total Expect is the residential properties
development project located at Inverness Road, Kowloon
and the principal asset of Wellmake Investments is
the industrial building located at No. 609 Tai Nan West
Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon. Total Expect was
acquired mainly for the purposes of redevelopment of
properties for sale. This transaction had been accounted
for as an acquisition of assets as the acquisition does not
meet the definition of a business combination.

BrE

M2019%43A8H  AEEK =L
TtEZ—HRBARNUNBESKRE
1,035,000,000/% 7t 5E ik U BE Total
ExpectZ 236100% K AB &R E
470,000,000/ JTSEAK (1 & B A g 2
BEZ2E100% AR T =L
¥ —fEME2A A - Total Expect
ZEEBEEANARNELEELE
MEEMERERE  MELKRE
ZEEBEEMNNRNERDEERNE
Fa#E609% 2 T¥ KE - Wi Total
ExpectE Z B M AEEWENUED
E - ARNLKERITEEBEH
TFE MUERFIEIEABREBEEA
/B\E °
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40. ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Acquisition of Total Expect and disposal of (a) WiBTotal Expectk HEZE
Wellmake Investments (Continued) RE @)

The net assets of Total Expect at the date of acquisition RULEE B 8 - Total Expectz BEF
were as follows: ERCINN

40.:ZBWE HEKE QW
B HEEERERG®

8 March 2019

201943 H8H
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 667
Properties held for development for sale BEHERRME 1,044,525
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk HAbFEW IR 329
Bank balances and cash RITEHREE S 102
Amount due to Eminence ENELtXSE (456,269)
Trade and other payables 2 5 R E M FRIE (10,623)
Secured bank borrowings EHEPRITEE (448,858)
Net assets acquired BB EE T 129,873
Net cash outflow on acquisition: Wb 2 38 & SRR ¢
Cash consideration paid BENIRERE 1,035,000
Bank balances and cash acquired BUREIRITHEBR LIRS (102)
Secured bank borrowings BERBRTEER (448,858)
Net cash payment on acquisition of I B Total ExpectZ
Total Expect RSN FE 586,040
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40. ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Acquisition of Total Expect and disposal of

40.:ZBWE HEKE QT W
B HEEERERG®

(a) W B Total ExpectRk HEEE

Wellmake Investments (Continued)

The net assets of Wellmake Investments at the date of

BRE@®

RKBEEY  RBEKREZEERE

disposal were as follows: mF
8 March 2019
201953H8H
HK$'000
FET
Investment properties REME 463,573
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 167
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEKZIR 2,378
Tax recoverable AR EFE 288
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRAS 176
Amount due to ultimate holding company ERNREERARIEE (4,232)
Trade and other payables B o5 REMENZE (4,495)
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEE (151,870)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 305,985
Cash consideration ReRE 470,000
Net assets disposed of HEEETE (305,985)
Amount due to ultimate holding company [ENBEER AR (4,232)
Secured bank borrowings BHEBRAEE (151,870)
Gain on disposal of Wellmake Investments HEREEE I 7,913
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HESIBRERNFE :
Cash consideration received BUHSRE 470,000
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERTESHRRIAE (176)
Secured bank borrowings BHEBRTEE (151,870)
Net cash received on disposal of HERLREBWASFE
Wellmake Investments 317,954
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition and disposal: WEREESIB RS R FE
Net cash payment on acquisition of Total Expect Wi Total ExpectZ IR & FUF (586,040)
Net cash received on disposal of HERERE L BWREFRE
Wellmake Investments 317,954
Net cash outflow on acquisition/disposal of assets ERWE/ HENBLRWE HEEE
and liabilities through acquisition/disposal REEZRERLFE
of subsidiaries (268,086)
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40.:ZBWE HEKE QW
B HEEERERG®

40. ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Acquisition of Success Active Limited (b) WkESuccess Active Limited

(“Success Active”)

On 27 July 2018, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Success Active, and
shareholder’s loan from an independent third party for
a cash consideration of HK$154,713,000. The principal
assets of Success Active are property purchase
agreements entered into by Success Active with
respective property vendors regarding 35 units of five
buildings at 470, 472, 474, 476 and 478 Chatham Road
North, Kowloon. Success Active was acquired mainly for
the purposes of redevelopment of properties for sale.
This transaction had been accounted for as an acquisition

([Success Activel)

201857 H27H » AEEE—%E
S E=FARE K (E154,713,0008 7T
TeRk U EESuccess Active 2 100% A% 7%
TS AR E 7R » Success Active 2 ==
ZEZE ASuccess Active R BRI
BEH BB RNERREI470
Sk~ 4725% - 47458 - 47655 47855
FEEEF AN 2 35REEN 2 MEEE H
& o WiESuccess ActiveE=E B AE
BYIEELE - AR TRE
¥BEHIEE R FEIERK

of assets as the acquisition does not meet the definition BEEANR -
of a business combination.

The net assets of Success Active at the date of FULEE B EE - Success ActiveZ BE

acquisition were as follows: FEMAT -
27 July 2018
2018%7H27H
HK$'000
FET
Deposits paid for acquisition of WIS ER S RYE 2
properties held for development BES 154,713
Amount due to the vendor HEREFGHE (123,667)
Net assets acquired EWEEETFTE 31,046
Net cash outflow on acquisition: W 2 IR &m HFE
Cash consideration paid BENBEENRE (154,713)
Settlement of amount due to the vendor ENEREL 123,667
(31,046)

The cash flows impact regarding the acquisitions of EBE=2019%3A31HIEFEK
Success Active for the year ended 31 March 2019 were BESuccess ActiveZ IR & REFER
presented as operating cash flows in the consolidated RIFEHREREREVNAKLERS
statement of cash flows. ME o
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41.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL MNETEREB AT ZFHE

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31
March 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

MR2020F 20193 H31H » A A=+
DB ARZFBOT ¢

Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Nominal value of value of issued share capital/
establishment issued share/ registered capital held directly/
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital indirectly by the Company Principal activities
HEMRL/ BT/ ARFER/BEREERORE/
MEARER RukSend  ARRAEE EMBRAEEL TEEY
2020 2019
Ace Winner Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
BRRARRAT Bl LRRIAT EARE
Amazing Universe Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% = Property investment
EBRNEE/  ERRIER WERE
&
Arrowfield Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
ERELEE/  EERER EARE
&
Asia Million Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BEREARAT i LRARIET WERE
Charming Flash Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
ERELEHE/ EERER ERRE
&
Coconut King Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
ERELEE/  EERER EARE
&
Constance Capital Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment in securities
HK$46,000,000
HEERBRAR i LRk EARE
46,000,000/ 7
Day Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
RERERR AT i LRaRIET WERE
Easyknit Properties Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property management
Limited
KENEEBERAF i LR 10,0008 S
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41.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

N FTEMBLTZFE@®

Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Nominal value of value of issued share capital/
establishment issued share/ registered capital held directly/
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital indirectly by the Company Principal activities
KL/ BT/ ARFER/BEREERORE/
MEARER RIRBELE  ZMRFEE AR AEE LA TEEH
2020 2019
Everjet Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property development
KEREBRAR i L %10,000% T NEERE
Flourishing Day Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
ERABRAT ABRRER/  ERERIER EXRE
B
Fortunate Master Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% = Investment holding
ABRRER/  ERRIERL RERR
)
Global Chance Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
RRERIERBR AR ABRREE/  ERERIER NELR
&
Gold Winner Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
FRREARAR Bl TERIET EFRE
Golden Star Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property management
ENERBEARAT B LTERIET NEER
Good Merit Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property holding
ERERERAT Bl LRRIAT S
Goodco Development Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERERERAT ABRREE/  ERERIER REER
6
Grandcorp Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
REERERARA Bl LRRIET NERE
Great East Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
KERERRAR B LRRIET NEER
Great Sail Global Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
BRRRAR AT ABRRER/  ERRIERL ERE
&
Happy Light Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
RERAERAA ABRREE/ ERERIER NELR

5%
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41.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL N ETEMBAR 2FF @

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Nominal value of value of issued share capital/
establishment issued share/ registered capital held directly/
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital indirectly by the Company Principal activities
HmRL/ BT/ ARFER/BEREERORE/
MEARER RIRGELE  ZRRFEE MR A E LA TEEH
2020 2019
Main Profit Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
RERAERAA i LaRIET ERRE
Mark Profit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment and
investment insecurities
SHERARAT &R LRk NEREREFRE
On Channel International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
ZERRARAA &R LaRIET NERE
Pacific Land Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
BERRERRAT &R LaRIET WEER
Pacific Way Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
BERERRAT &R LaRIET WEER
Planetic International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Loan financing
&R LRk ERRE
Quick Access Enterprises Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
iBREEE/  ERERIER ERRE
&
Richstar Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
REZRBRAA Bl LRRIAT NELR
Success Active Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
iBRREE/  LRERIER WEER
&
Total Expect Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
iBREEE/  LRERIER WEER
&
Trump Elegant Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property development
IEREGRAT Bl ZiB1R10,000%7T NELR
Well Honest Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
RAREERATA &R LaRIET NERE
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41.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

N FTEMBLTZFE@®

Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Nominal value of value of issued share capital/
establishment issued share/ registered capital held directly/
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital indirectly by the Company Principal activities
AL/ BRf1/ ARAEE/ MEREERARE/
MWEAREMR KukBend  HRRAEE SR AE AL TREY
2020 2019
Well Smart Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 80% 80%  Property development
R ERGRAR Bl LBR100% T NELR
Winsor Miles Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ABRREE/ ERERIER REER
&
Widetop Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
REREBRAR Bl LRRIAT NELR

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial
portion of the assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the

Company result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal

activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

A EFNRMIIRZANARIMBAR 1R
BARREZEZER  ZEXEFAZ
REIBRAKREEEZTEZRD oM
ARBEZFZERRE  RHEMKE

RAZHBEEEFERTTE

RBEHR - ARARHBEHMHAEH
METREAZHMBAR - LEMBAR
AAHINEBELLE - WENBARZ

ETBXHBHMEDOT ¢

Number of subsidiaries

TEXH TEEXME MEARHE
2020 2019
Investment holding Hong Kong 20
REER i
Inactive Hong Kong 6
FEE BB B

26
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31
March 2020 or 31 March 2019.

No financial information of the non-wholly owned subsidiary is
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as the non-
controlling interest is not material to the Group.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed otherwise in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following non-cash
transaction. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
acquired equity-linked investments for HK$46,001,000 (2019:
HK$70,000,000). These equity-linked investments were
linked to securities listed on the Stock Exchange. Subsequent
to the acquisition, certain equity-linked investments of
HK$25,537,000 (2019: HK$47,834,000) were converted into
listed equity securities as the share price at date of maturity
of the underlying securities reached the strike price.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19")
has a severe negative impact on the retail property market
in Hong Kong. The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties which are mainly comprised of commercial
properties, is expected to decrease in 2020. Besides, the fair
value of the residential and commercial properties held by the
Group’s associates, Eminence, for leasing are also affected
if the rental income for the residential and commercial
properties by the associates will be reduced in 2020.

Given the unpredictability of future development of COVID-19,
the impacts to the Group cannot be reliably quantified or
estimated at the date of issuing the consolidated financial
statement. The Company continues to closely monitor the
situation. The actual financial effects, if any, will be reflected
in the Group's future financial statements.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 22020435 31H 1+ &

MNFTENBLATZFE®

BAENEARR2020%53 A31H32019
FIANBETEMEEES

HRIFERERHARELTEKN - &
WERNEEMBRREBEI2EMNER
BZMEER

2. FEFRERF

RV BEBRRSEEEIN  AEEF
INTIRERS - REE2020F3 A 31
BIEFE  AEEBARZHHBERE
46,001,000 7t (20194 : 70,000,000
BIL) o ZERZHBILE T ERBE R
FrEmz@EH#E - BAK BTR
Z R E 25,537,000/ 7L (20194
47,834,000 m) B & A EHRAE
% RAEBESFRERIHBECERY
B -

43. FEHMREEH

2019F ATk mE ([COVID-19)) &Y
BEUEENTEEHEMSERTE
ENEETE AEENKREDETES
HEEMEBRK - BTR2020FEEEY
E2DRABHEMTR - 1 AARE
EEAQR] mUtE  BENEEM
BEMENTH S WA MR IEE20205 7
Lo HEBEERERHENEEMEEDE

MARBELERZIZE -

# R COVID-19#9 R 2 3 & 19 7] T8
- ERMEEMBRRZ BEEA 5
WEARGEAEARENTE - A0F
METYVERBRAEN BEREUBEE
(2N A ) # = BR 1 75 52 [ /9 2K 2R B 765 S 2k
o
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

44. KRB 2 B HAR R EK

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT FEIT
Non-current assets EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries B ENEIE: Fa 2,348,451 2,381,086
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFABRZ
EREE 11,194 11,051
2,359,645 2,392,137
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables H b e W 5k IE 140 140
Tax recoverable AT U Bl 7 = 55
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIR S 19,850 21,963
19,990 22,158
Current liabilities mEBaE
Other payables Hofh FE A 5RIE 1,126 1,299
Amounts due to subsidiaries A IEPNGIE S 995,742 969,910
Tax payable FERT TR IR 732 =
Secured bank borrowings BERIBRITEE 1,366 34,150
998,966 1,005,359
Net current liabilities mENBEFE (978,976) (983,201)
Total assets less current liabilities BEATERTEEE 1,380,669 1,408,936
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Secured bank borrowings HIRFRTEER 32,442 -
1,348,227 1,408,936
Capital and reserves BN R
Share capital &% 2R 9,132 9,132
Reserves (note) i (A at) 1,339,095 1,399,804
1,348,227 1,408,936
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

44. D7) 2 B AR R 3R B)

Kt -

ARAZRERFRRBEFEZBBOT ;

Movements of the Company's reserves during the current and prior

years are as follows:

Share Capital Contributed Accumulated

premium reserve surplus profits Total

AP RE BERGEE BARH KRR k]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET

At 1 April 2018 2018F4A1H 218,330 196,565 220,937 721,818 1,357,650
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEER

expense for the year 2ERAYBE - - - (6,283) (6,283)

Dividend paid BERRE - - - (4,566) (4,566)

Issue of new shares BITHR D 53,550 = = = 53,550
Transaction costs attributable BIIHRO 2

to issue of new shares TR (547) - - - (547)

53,003 - - (10,849) 42,154

At 31 March 2019 M2019%3H31H 271,333 196,565 220,937 710,969 1,399,804
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEER

expense for the year 2ERAYEE - - - (56,143) (56,143)

Dividend paid RS - - - (4,566) (4,566)

- - - (60,709) (60,709)

At 31 March 2020 72020438318 271,333 196,565 220,937 650,260 1,339,095

ZETE
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RESULTS E 4
Year ended 31 March
BZE3A3NALEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FEr FET FET FET
Revenue HEm 693,374 529,475 331,521 830,347 63,633
Profit (loss) before taxation B AE A (B 18) 196,968 (219,885) 319,809 354,985 (298,936)
Taxation B (32,326) (23,961) (22,646) (39,171) 877
Profit (loss) for the year AEERF (BB 164,642 (243,846) 297,163 315,814 (298,059)
Profit (loss) for the year JE G AR B s A
attributable to: (B1#8)
- owners of the Company - AARRE 138,936 (243,846) 297,163 315,959 (297,755)
- non-controlling interests - R 25,706 = - (145) (304)
164,642 (243,846) 297,163 315,814 (298,059)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
W3A31H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET FHET
Total assets BEE 4,124,851 3,871,349 4434511 5026789 4,858,129
Total liabilities BEE (1,031,851)  (1,019,089)  (1,244,356)  (1,479,439)  (1,622,308)
Net assets BEFE 3,093,000 2,852,260 3,190,155 3,547,350 3,235,821
Equity attributable to owners AREIRE
of the Company JE(RiER 3,093,000 2,852,260 3,190,155 3,547,495 3,236,270
Non-controlling interests R = - - (145) (449)
Total equity BrER 3,093,000 2,852,260 3,190,155 3,547,350 3,235,821
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Summary of Properties

Y E B E

As at 31 March 2020 7#2020%3531H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A. REYE

Approximate
gross floor/

Location Purpose saleable area Lease term
BRgmE

41t Jizkes EAERE HAOFH
(sq. ft.)
(FHFR)

1. Block A on Seventh Floor and Industrial 11,874 Medium

Car Parking Space No. L11,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan,

Kowloon
NERDEE BI85 T FRER
B ZABERLISRERN

2. Block B1 and portion of Block B Industrial 6,992 Medium

on Seventh Floor,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

NERDEE B85 T% eh Hf
2 B1E RBEES
3. Shops 1, 2, 3 on Ground Floor Commercial 13,544 Medium

together with showcase on

Ground Floor, First Floor and

Second Floor of Fa Yuen Plaza,

No. 19 Fa Yuen Street,

Mong Kok, Kowloon

B BIEREE195GIERES T [EES HHf
12 MR TIHE —ER_E

4. Ground Floor, No. 50 Yun Ping Road, Commercial 1,200 Long
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
EEIREEEFIER05 M T [EES REA
5. Shops A and B on Ground Floor and Commercial 3,953 Medium

Shop C on First Floor, One Victory,
Nos. 1, TA and 3 Victory Avenue,
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
BEfI S H B FE 195 - 1ASR KR 358 [HES HHf
# AR B & —1ECH

6.  Car Parking Space No. 407, 4/F, Capital Centre, Commercial N/A Medium
No. 151 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai
B ETITEI51% [EES TEA + HA

B AR L4075 E AL
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Summary of Properties

YE 3

As at 31 March 2020 #2020%3531A

B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B. #F{EHEZEWE
FOR SALE

Approximate Stage of
Location Purpose gross site area Lease term  completion
31k A& BA®EEE HEOFH 5T AP Bt
(sq. ft.)
(FHR)
1. Nos. 14-20 Inverness Road Residential 15,602 Medium Under development
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon
NBEENBEREEIE B 14-205% TF= HHA BREF
2. Nos. 93, 93A, 95 & 95A Residential 9,800 Long Under development
Waterloo Road, Kowloon
NEEB T ZEI35R  93AK - T= R H ERH
955% J 95A5R
3. Various units of Residential 4,685 Long Not yet commence

Nos. 470, 472, 474, 476, 478

Chatham Road North, Kowloon

NERBBILAT05R ~ 47255 - F= KH EENEES
AT7ASR ~ 4765 4785 Z BN

236
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